
 
 

Cabinet 
 

 Monday, 5th July, 2010 
 
Traffic Regulation Orders start at 
2:00 PM 
Executive Business starts no 
earlier than 5:00 PM 
Council Chamber 

 
This meeting is open to the public 

 
 Members 

 
 Councillor Samuels (Leader) 

Councillor White, Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care and Health 
Councillor Holmes, Cabinet Member for Children's 
Services and Learning 
Councillor Smith, Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development 
Councillor Dean, Cabinet Member for Environment 
and Transport 
Councillor P Williams, Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Local Services 
Councillor Hannides, Cabinet Member for Leisure, 
Culture and Heritage 
Councillor Moulton, Cabinet Member for Resources 
and Workforce Planning 
Councillor Walker, Cabinet Member for 
Safeguarding Children and Youth Services 
 

 (QUORUM – 3) 
 

 Contacts 
 Cabinet Administrator 

Ed Grimshaw 
Tel: 023 8083 2390 
Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk  
 

  

 Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy)  
Joy Wilmot-Palmer 
Tel. 023 8083 4428 
Email: joy.wilmot-palmer@southampton.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT INFORMATION 
 

The Role of the Executive 
The Cabinet and individual Cabinet Members make 
executive decisions relating to services provided by the 
Council, except for those matters which are reserved for 
decision by the full Council and planning and licensing 
matters which are dealt with by specialist regulatory 
panels.  

Procedure / Public Representations 
Reports for decision by the Cabinet (Part A of the 
agenda) or by individual Cabinet Members (Part B 
of the agenda). Interested members of the public 
may, with the consent of the Cabinet Chair or the 
individual Cabinet Member as appropriate, make 
representations thereon. 

Executive Functions 
The specific functions for which the Cabinet and 
individual Cabinet Members are responsible are 
contained in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution. Copies 
of the Constitution are available on request or from the 

City Council website, www.southampton.gov.uk  Smoking policy – The Council operates a no-
smoking policy in all civic buildings. 

The Forward Plan 
The Forward Plan is published on a monthly basis and 
provides details of all the key executive decisions to be 
made in the four month period following its publication. 
The Forward Plan is available on request or on the 
Southampton City Council website, 

www.southampton.gov.uk  
 

Mobile Telephones – Please turn off your mobile 
telephone whilst in the meeting.  
 
Fire Procedure – In the event of a fire or other 
emergency, a continuous alarm will sound and 
you will be advised, by officers of the Council, of 
what action to take.  

 
Key Decisions 
A Key Decision is an Executive Decision that is likely to 
have a significant  

• financial impact (£200,000 or more)  

• impact on two or more wards 

• impact on an identifiable community 
Decisions to be discussed or taken that are key  
 

Access – Access is available for disabled people. 
Please contact the Cabinet Administrator who will 
help to make any necessary arrangements.  
 
 
Municipal Year Dates  (Mondays) 

2010 2011 

7 June 17 January  

21 June 7 February 

5 July 14 February 

2 August 14 March 

6 September 11 April  

27 September   

25 October   

22 November   

20 December   
 

Implementation of Decisions  
Any Executive Decision may be “called-in” as part of the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function for review and 
scrutiny.  The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel may 
ask the Executive to reconsider a decision, but does not 
have the power to change the decision themselves. 
 
Southampton City Council’s Six Priorities 
 

• Providing good value, high quality services 

• Getting the City working 

• Investing in education and training 

• Keeping people safe 

• Keeping the City clean and green 

• Looking after people 
 

 



 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
The terms of reference of the Cabinet, and its 
Executive Members, are set out in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 
 
Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this 
meeting. 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
The meeting is governed by the Executive 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

QUORUM 
 
The minimum number of appointed 
Members required to be in attendance 
to hold the meeting is 3. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 
 

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, 
both the existence and nature of any “personal” or “prejudicial” interests they may have 
in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 
 

PERSONAL INTERESTS 
 
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a personal interest in any matter:  

 
(i) if the matter relates to an interest in the Member’s register of interests; or 
(ii) if a decision upon a matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting to a greater 

extent than other Council Tax payers, ratepayers and inhabitants of the District, 
the wellbeing or financial position of himself or herself, a relative or a friend or:- 
(a) any employment or business carried on by such person; 
(b) any person who employs or has appointed such a person, any firm in which 

such a person is a partner, or any company of which such a person is a 
director; 

(c) any corporate body in which such a person has a beneficial interest in a 
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 

(d) any body listed in Article 14(a) to (e) in which such a person holds a 
position of general control or management. 

 
A Member must disclose a personal interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cont/… 
 



 

 
Prejudicial Interests 

Having identified a personal interest, a Member must consider whether a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably think that the interest was 
so significant and particular that it could prejudice that Member’s judgement of the public 
interest. If that is the case, the interest must be regarded as “prejudicial” and the Member 
must disclose the interest and withdraw from the meeting room during discussion on the 
item. 
 
It should be noted that a prejudicial interest may apply to part or the whole of an item. 
 
Where there are a series of inter-related financial or resource matters, with a limited 
resource available, under consideration a prejudicial interest in one matter relating to that 
resource may lead to a member being excluded from considering the other matters 
relating to that same limited resource. 
 
There are some limited exceptions.  
 
Note:  Members are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or his staff in 
Democratic Services if they have any problems or concerns in relation to the above. 
 

Principles of Decision Making 
 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
 

• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

• respect for human rights; 

• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

• setting out what options have been considered; 

• setting out reasons for the decision; and 

• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
 

• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the 
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known 
as the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual 
basis.  Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward 
funding are unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

Agendas and papers are now available via the Council’s Website  

 
1 APOLOGIES    

 
 To receive any apologies.  

 
2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS    

 
 In accordance with the Local Government Act, 2000, and the Council’s Code of 

Conduct adopted on 16th May, 2007, Members to disclose any personal or 
prejudicial interests in any matter included on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the 
Democratic Support Officer  
 

 TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS: STARTING AT 2.00 PM 
 

3 PROPOSALS TO EXTEND THE COXFORD AREA RESIDENTS' PARKING 
SCHEME IN WARREN CRESCENT, WARREN AVENUE, CHESTNUT ROAD, 
SYCAMORE ROAD, HOLLAND PLACE, STOKES ROAD AND BRACKEN LANE. 
(TRO)    
 

 Report of the Head of Highways and Parking Services detailing unresolved 
objections to the proposals to extend the Coxford Residents’ Parking Scheme into 
the Warren Crescent area, attached.  
 

4 PROPOSED REVERSAL OF ONE-WAY SYSTEM, LYON STREET (TRO)    
 

 Report of the Head of Highways and Parking Services detailing unresolved 
objections to a proposal to review the flow of the one-way system in Lyon Street, 
attached.  
 

 EXECUTIVE BUSINESS: STARTING AT 5.00 PM 
 

 
5 STATEMENT FROM THE LEADER     

 
6 RECORD OF THE PREVIOUS DECISION MAKING    

 
 Record of the decision making held on 7th June 2010 and 21st June, attached.  

 
 
 
 



 

7 MATTERS REFERRED BY THE COUNCIL OR BY THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR RECONSIDERATION (IF ANY)    
 

 There are no matters referred for reconsideration.  
 

8 REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES (IF ANY)    
 

 There are no items for consideration  
 

9 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS    
 

 To deal with any executive appointments, as required.  
 

 MONITORING REPORTS 
 

10 CORPORATE PLAN 2010-13    
 

 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) outlining the progress made to 
date in the development of the 2010/11 Corporate Plan, attached.  
 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION BY CABINET 
 

11 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - CONFIDENTIAL PAPERS 
INCLUDED IN THE FOLLOWING ITEM    
 

 To move that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the Access 
to Information procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration of the 
confidential appendices 1 and 2 to item no 12. 
 
Confidential appendices 1 and 2 contain information deemed to be exempt from 
general publication based on Categories 3 (financial and business affairs), and 7A 
(obligation of Confidentiality) of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules.  
 

12 HIGHWAYS SERVICE PARTNERSHIP:  APPROVAL TO AWARD CONTRACT  
 

 Report of the Head of Highways and Parking setting out the final terms of the 
proposed Highways Service Partnership, attached. 
 
NOTE:   

(i) This report is presented as a general exception item in accordance with 
paragraph 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of Part 4 of 
the Council's Constitution. 

(ii) There is a confidential appendix attached to this item  
 
 
 
 
 



 

13 RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO DISTRICT CENTRES  
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Economic Development in association with the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport seeking approval for a response to 
the recommendations contained within the Economic Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel’s 
report on District Centres, attached.   
 

14 RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO DOMESTIC VIOLENCE  
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Economic Development seeking approval for a 
proposed response to the 9 recommendations contained within the original report 
from the Chair of the Safer Communities Scrutiny Panel, attached.  
 

15 WOOLSTON AND ST ANNE'S CONSERVATION AREAS APPRAISAL    
 

 Report of the Head of Planning and Sustainability seeking approval in respect of the 
revised Conservation Area boundaries, attached.  
 

16 SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT POLICY    
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Resources and Workforce Planning seeking 
approval for the Council’s Sustainable Procurement Policy, attached.  
 

17 CHANGES TO EXISTING REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS  
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Resources and Workforce Planning, detailing 
changes to existing Revenue and Capital budgets, attached  
 

18 REDUCTION IN SIZE OF PLOT FOR DISPOSAL AT HAREFIELD PRIMARY 
SCHOOL    
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and Learning seeking 
approval for matters relating to the disposal of land at Harefield Primary, attached. 
 
NOTE:   

(iii) This report is presented as a general exception item in accordance with 
paragraph 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of Part 4 of 
the Council's Constitution. 

 
(iv) To move that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the 

Access to Information procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration 
of the confidential appendices 1 and 2 to item no 18. 
 
Confidential appendices 1 and 2 contain information deemed to be exempt from 
general publication based on Categories 3 (financial and business affairs), and 
7A (obligation of Confidentiality) of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules. 

 
  
 



 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION BY CABINET MEMBER 
 

19 SCHOOLS' DEFICIT BUDGETS 2010/11  
 

 Report of the Head of School Standards seeking approval to set deficit budgets in 
some schools within the City, attached.  
 
Friday, 25 June 2010 SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL 

 



 ITEM NO:3  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: PROPOSALS TO EXTEND THE COXFORD AREA 
RESIDENTS’ PARKING SCHEME IN WARREN 
CRESCENT, WARREN AVENUE, CHESTNUT ROAD, 
SYCAMORE ROAD, HOLLAND PLACE, STOKES ROAD 
AND BRACKEN LANE. (TRO) 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND PARKING 

AUTHOR: Name:  Graham Muir Tel: 023 8083 2337 

 E-mail: graham.muir@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

 

SUMMARY 

A Traffic Regulation Order was proposed on 19th February 2010 to extend permit 
parking restrictions in the vicinity of Warren Crescent. Following public consultation 
the proposals were revised to add additional lengths of 4 Hour Limited Waiting to 
assist groups providing community services. A sustained objection however remains 
to the loss of parking for hospital staff, the adequacy of our parking strategy and the 
appropriateness of sustainable travel policies to the SUHT General Hospital with its 
catchment area. The matter is therefore following due process in being brought to the 
Cabinet of the Council for a decision. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Cabinet consider and determine the objection to the 
proposals to extend permit parking in the vicinity of Warren 
Crescent. 

 (ii) That if the Cabinet supports the proposals they are approved as 
revised  

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To fulfil the Council’s obligation to consult upon proposals and consider 
objections 

2. To enable the planned proposals to be implemented as revised following 
public consultation 

CONSULTATION 

3. Following concerns from residents over the problems arising from commuter 
parking in the area around Warren Crescent, a survey was undertaken on 
resident views over introducing possible permit parking restrictions.  

4. The parking scheme was advertised in the Daily Echo and on street notices 
on 19th February as part of a wider public consultation. 



 2

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. Any other parking restrictions would equally apply to residents and non-
residents and would not be of benefit to or supported by the community.  

6. Although the roads could remain unrestricted it would not address the 
resident concerns over the level of commuter parking. In rejecting this option 
we are also mindful that many of these roads are also affected by parking 
related to the “school run”. 

DETAIL 

7. Over recent years the Traffic Management team have received a number of 
requests to introduce permit parking in the vicinity of Warren Crescent, 
including a petition with 25 signatures from the residents of Holland Place. 

8. In response to this a survey was undertaken in 2009 to assess residents’ 
views over introducing permit parking. In the roads most affected by 
commuter parking the support for a permit scheme was high (78%) and 
proposals were drafted for these roads accordingly (see Appendix 1). 

9. In response to the public notice local resident Sarah Beesley highlighted the 
following points in her objection (see Appendix 3). 

• Most houses have driveways and there are parking spaces at best of 
times 

• Residents are not inconvenienced by daytime use 

• Parking facilities in Warren Crescent and adjacent streets are poor and 
grossly insufficient to warrant a fee. 

• No provision for other stakeholders including nursery / education 
facilities, Shirley Warren Action Church, Shirley Warren Club and key 
professionals working with Southampton General Hospital. 

• That the loss of parking for a friend could lead to a loss of employment 
and income for both families due to limited childcare options. 

10. In sustaining her objection Sarah Beesley (see Appendix 3) further highlighted 

• That the parking strategy in the whole area is widely inadequate 

• Her support for a multi-storey car park in the area  

• Sustainable travel is out of context for hospital and other businesses 
with large catchment areas 

• The Park & Ride facilities are restricted to staff and there is a 2 year 
waiting list 

• Need to address the real issues of traffic management and 
infrastructure improvement 

11. Officer views.  

• The resident concerns we have received and the support (78% in favour) 
for permit parking in the survey show that residents are experiencing 
difficulties with the level of non-resident commuter parking in the vicinity.  

• The proposals have left kerbside in Chestnut Road and Warren Crescent 
that may continue to be used by non-residents without restriction. 

• The proposals were amended in response to concerns from the Warren 



 3

Centre and users of the nearby Buffy’s Nursery to include further 
provision for 4 Hour Limited Waiting (see Appendix 2). 

• The only charges currently applying to this scheme are for second 
resident’s permits. These help contribute to the costs of administering 
and enforcing the scheme. 

• Government Policy supports the restriction of on-street parking in these 
circumstances as shown below:- 

“where appropriate introduce on-street parking controls in areas adjacent 
to major travel generating  development to minimise the potential 
displacement of parking where onsite parking is being limited”  

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport,  Department for Communities and Local Government 

• The Council’s Local Transport Plan 2006-11 also reflects this policy:- 

“Parking in residential areas will continue to focus on ensuring that 
residents do not experience problems resulting from commuter parking, 
or from parking generated by major attractors (such as hospitals, 
education establishments, leisure venues etc).” 

• Whilst it is not within the scope of the Traffic Regulation Order process to 
amend Government and Council Traffic, Travel and Parking policies, the 
importance of these areas to the operation of the SUHT General Hospital 
and to the locality is recognised as a component of the Local 
Development Order that is being established between the Council and 
SUHT (see below):- 

“Highways issues have always been the most problematic issue to 
resolve during redevelopment and operation of the site and these will 
need to be covered in the LDO up front. A very detailed and potentially 
lengthy piece of survey work is to be undertaken with regard to car 
parking levels, green travel planning and securing future section106 
contributions to deliver off site highway improvements based on trip 
rates to the hospital by car.” 
(http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/core/page.do?pageId=195104) 

• The availability of sustainable travel options is also reflected in the 
current level of bus services for the SUHT Site with over 30 bus 
departures per hour including a 10 minute service to the central rail 
station and city centre taking around 20 minutes. 

• Within the Local Transport Plan there are objectives to provide Park & 
Ride facilities at key points of entry to the city (including on the M271 
corridor) and there are other locations around the city where vehicles can 
be parked with access to bus routes to the General Hospital. 

12. In conclusion, the current proposals align with Government and Council 
Policies on promoting sustainable travel and deterring commuter parking in 
residential areas. The proposals should therefore be approved, as revised. 
The sustainable transport opportunities for access to the hospital are 
significant and underused. There is some scope to improve the proportions of 
visitors and staff accessing the hospital by sustainable modes, through travel 
plans, the LDO process and car park management strategies, which is 
primarily the responsibility of the General Hospital to influence and manage. 



 

 4

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

13. N/A  

Revenue 

14. The cost of the TRO, consultation, road signing and permit issue is estimated 
to be £8,000, which can be met from the Environment and Transport portfolio. 

Property 

15. N/A 

Other 

16. N/A 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

17. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 permits the introduction of the parking 
restrictions as set out in this report in accordance with a statutory consultation 
procedure set down in the Act and associated secondary legislation. 

Other Legal Implications:  

18. In preparing and determining the proposals set out in this report the Council is 
required to have regard to the provisions of Equalities legislation, the Human 
Rights Act 1988 and s.17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (the duty to have 
regard to the need to remove or reduce crime and disorder in the area). It is 
considered that the proposals set out in this report are proportionate having 
regard to the wider needs of the area. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

19. The proposals in this report are consistent with the Local Transport Plan 
2006-11 policy on promoting sustainable travel and the Strategic Parking 
Policy 

 



 5

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. Map showing proposed parking restrictions in the vicinity of Warren Crescent 
as advertised 

2. Map showing revised parking restrictions in the vicinity of Warren Crescent 
following responses to the public notice 

3. Letters/Emails relating to the objection to the proposed parking restrictions 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: None 

KEY DECISION? NO   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Coxford 

 

  



This page is intentionally left blank











ITEM NO: 3 Appendix 2: Map showing revised parking restrictions in the vicinity of 
Warren Crescent following responses to the public notice 
 

Based on the Ordnance Surv ey 's 2010 Map with the permission of  the Controller of  Her Majesty 's Stationery  Of f ice, Crown Copy right Reserv ed

Unauthorised reproduction inf ringes Crown Copy right and may  lead to prosecution or civ il proceedings, Southampton City  Council Licence No 100019679, 2010

Key

Draw ing Title

Mick Bishop

Head of Highways and Parking 

45 Castle Way

Southampton

SO14 2PD

NORTH

Drawn by: 

Date: 

Scale:

Plan No:

Graham Muir

Si nk s

Is s ues

Hol ly

Shirley  Pond

30

50

74

An im al

Wel fare

30

43

57

52

40

69

46

48

6
0

9
3b

42

Garage

1
37

a

27

13

17

to

21

10

14

1 5

7

1 1

1

1
51

1
41

1
56

1
46

6

180

53

2

1
19

1
31

1
44

Ce ntre

1
31

a

173

Shirley  Wa rren

1

Sc hool

11

Prim ary  and Nurs ery  Sc hoo l

Shirley  Warren

12

The Warren Ce ntre

18

3
6

22

140

2

152

162 162a

126

2
1

1
32

1
28

62

1
362

3

8
5

1

64

125

9

1

119

1
08

1
71

9

10

33

31

2
5

Buc k ley  Court

1
68

2
1

17

5

5
7

1

1
7

164

1
7a

(priv ate)

of The Sac red He art

Chapel

St Cl ares

Cotta ge

16

Cou rt

30

Th e Hutc h

Cha l font

26

1
3

28

1
4

1
8

1
6

24

11

19

1

2

3

20

1

8
1

26

36

14

9
5

PO

110

1
00

9
3

9
3a

1
14

132

1
07

1
22

7
1

6
9

9
0

1

23

13

21

7
0

24

3
3

1
7

Churc h

Hal l

5
2

3
5

227
2

8
9

8
7

49

3

33

50

2

Rose
dale

105

1
02

1
78

1
82

T
h

e

1
75

2
04

(P
H

)

6

Poor Cl are M ona s tery

22

2

1

El

E
l  S

ub
 S

ta

Sub Sta

Pa rk

Po nd

Shirley

SM

El  Sub Sta

SM

El Sub  Sta

OLD SHIRLEY

Shirley  Po nd Park

J ESS
AMINE ROAD

CHESTNU T RO AD

W
A

R
R

E
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

WARREN CR ESCENT

W
A

R
R

E
N

HO LLAND PLACE

Path

W
A

Y

Pos t

Path

C
y
cle

 T
ra

ck

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T R

O
A

D

W
A

R
R

E
N

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T SYCAM ORE RO AD

STOKE

BRACKEN  LANE

STOKE R
OAD

CRESC ENT

LB

TCB

FB

23.5 m

28.3 m

2 7.4m

BM  24 .05
m

B
M

 1
9

.96
m

19.2 m

Proposed additional 2 Hour Limited Waiting (except Permit Holders only), 8am to 6pm,

Monday to Friday, parking restrictions

Proposed additional No Waiting at Any Time parking restrictions

Proposed Permit Holder parking only, 8am to 6pm, Monday to Friday (signed only)

Proposed 4 Hour Limited Waiting, 8am to 6pm, Monday to Friday parking restriction

Map showing proposed permit parking scheme in the area of

Warren Crescent

20/4/2010

1:2200

GMCWAR4

 



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO: 3 Appendix 3:  Letters/Emails relating to the objection to the proposed 
parking restrictions in the area of Warren Crescent 
 
 
From: Sarah Beesley [mailto:Sarah.Beesley@Arcadis-UK.com]  

Sent: 22 March 2010 09:14 

To: Muir, Graham 
Subject: Parking Appeal - Warren Crescent Shirley 

  

Mr Muir,  
I hereby state my objections to the plans for making Warren Crescent a permit parking area. I 
apologise for the late submission, I was made aware of you intentions only recently. 

I would appreciate that consideration for this area be taken realistically. Most houses have 
driveways and there is spaces at best of times, thus leading to the conclusion that residents are 
not inconvenienced by daytime use. As far as the visitors are concerned, parking facilities on 
Warren Crescent and adjacent streets are poor and grossly insufficient to warrant a fee. At present 
there is no provision made to accommodate stakeholders: namely a corner shop, Shirley Warren 
pre-school, Shirley Warren school, Warren Centre, Shirley Warren Action Church, Buffer Bears 
nursery, Shirley Warren Club  in addition to key professionals working with Southampton General 
Hospital. 

My child attends Buffer Bear nursery. My friend who has to drive him there with her son needs to 
be able to park safely in the area. Being deprived of this facility compromises the already limited 
childcare options available to us. The consequences of this could lead in a loss of employment and 
income for both our families. 

Could you please advise where to follow the planning process with regards to this particular 
situation?  
Your consideration will be greatly appreciated.  

 

Kind regards,  

Sarah Beesley | Senior Project Manager | sarah.beesley@arcadis-uk.com 

 

ARCADIS | White Hart House | London Road | Blackwater | Camberley | Surrey | GU17 9AD | United 
Kingdom 
T. + 44 (0) 1276 34399 | F. + 44 (0) 1276 34695 | M. +44 (0) 7966 478222 
www.arcadis-uk.com 

 

Be green, leave it on the screen. 
This e-mail is confidential and may also be privileged. It is intended for use by the addressee only. If you are not the intended addressee, we 
request that you notify us immediately and delete this e-mail, and any attachment(s), without copying, forwarding, disclosing or using it in any 
other way. ARCADIS (UK) Limited, with registered office at 10 Furnival Street London EC4A 1YH, Company No. 1093549, will not be liable for 
damage relating to the communication by e-mail of data or documents.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix 3:  Letters/Emails relating to the objection to the proposed parking 
restrictions in the area of Warren Crescent 
 

From: Muir, Graham [mailto:Graham.Muir@southampton.gov.uk] 

Sent: Thu 25/03/2010 13:32 
To: Sarah Beesley 

Subject: FW: Parking Appeal - Warren Crescent Shirley 

Dear Sarah Beesley 
 

Thank you for your objection to the current proposals for permit parking in the Warren Crescent 
area, which we have now reviewed with the other correspondence we have received in response 
to our public notice. The proposals were put forward following residents highlighting issues with the 
extent of non-resident parking in the vicinity. It is Council policy to assist residents affected by high 
levels of non-resident parking through permit parking schemes and to promote the use of 
sustainable travel to reduce carbon emissions and reduce congestion. We are also mindful that 
residents in Warren Crescent are also affected by parent parking from the school run. 
 

As you can see from the attached map, outside of the proposed areas of parking restrictions, there 
are a number of areas of unrestricted parking (excluding the School Keep Clear markings) that 
non-residents would be able to use as required, if available. The permit parking restrictions (if the 
scheme is approved through due process) which would operate between 8am and 6pm Mon to Fri 
also have a 2 hour Limited Waiting period. Whilst there is an exemption for picking or dropping off 
passengers (for up to 5 minutes) or up to 30 minutes for continuous loading or unloading, visitors 
could also park for up 2 hours on one occasion in the same street per day. We are also revising 
our proposals to extend the available 4 Hour Limited Waiting (see second map), to assist 
businesses and organisations providing wider community services (as you have noted), which may 
require more extended parking hours.  
 

I would therefore hope that the in general parents making use of the Buffer Bears Nursery would 
be able to do so with minimal inconvenience. Where parents are also are seeking longer stay 
parking during their working hours, this will depend on the availability of the unrestricted kerbside in 
Warren Crescent or in other roads in the area. I have however attached a further briefing on 
initiatives being undertaken by the Southampton University Hospitals Trust which includes a park 
and ride facility that may also be of benefit. 
 

Therefore whilst appreciating the points you have raised, I have concluded that reasons for 
proposing these restrictions are still valid and I regret that I am unable to uphold your objection. I 
hope that you will find this decision acceptable, but if, for any reason you do not, and you still wish 
to make an objection, you have a right to do so. Your objection would then be placed before the 
Council’s Cabinet for consideration and a decision (unless the proposal is withdrawn for any 
reason). Should you wish to make an objection in this way, please write to me stating your 
reasons for doing so and making sure your email/letter reaches me no later than 16th April 
2010. Please note that in the event you wish to make an objection and request that it be 
considered by the Council’s Cabinet body, any such correspondence may be included within a 
Cabinet report accessible by the public or be subject to disclosure under Freedom of Information 
legislation.  
 

If the matter requires to be taken to Cabinet for a decision, all objectors are provided with details of 
the meeting date and the web address see below at which any prospective Cabinet Meeting 
agenda and report would be available for access. Any member of the public may also attend these 
Cabinet Meetings and may be invited to speak for or against the proposals at the discretion of the 
Chair of the Meeting. The outcome of the meeting is accessible from the same pages as a decision 
notice. 
 



Appendix 3:  Letters/Emails relating to the objection to the proposed parking 
restrictions in the area of Warren Crescent 
 
 
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=126&Year=2010 (there are 
no items related to this matter, but examples can be viewed of similar items e.g. 15th March 2pm 
meeting) 

   

If you require any further information please contact me. 

  

Regards 

   

Graham Muir  
Traffic Engineer,  
Highways and Parking 
Southampton City Council  
023 8083 2337              

This email is confidential but may have to be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 1998 or the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004. If you are not the person or organisation it was meant for, apologies, please ignore it, delete it and 
notify us.  SCC does not make legally binding agreements or accept formal notices/proceedings by email. E-mails may be monitored.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Appendix 3 (cont) :  Letters/Emails relating to the objection to the proposed parking 
restrictions in the area of Warren Crescent 
 
 
 

From: Sarah Beesley [mailto:Sarah.Beesley@Arcadis-UK.com]  

Sent: 08 April 2010 09:01 
To: Muir, Graham; Lee, Bob 

Subject: RE: Parking Appeal - Warren Crescent Shirley 
 
 
Dear Mr Muir, 

  

I understand the situation and your reasons to decline my objections, however I am concerned the 
parking strategy in the whole area is widely inadequate. As a local resident myself, I would rather 
support the implementation of multi-storey car park to accommodate the extensive requirements 
generated by the local businesses (namely and mainly Southampton General 
Hospital). Sustainable travelling seems very much out of context for a hospital and other 
businesses with such large catchment and requiring users to be dropped as close by as possible, 
unless of course there are proposal to make Southampton public transports worth using?  
As you mention the Park and Ride facilities at the hospital, I believe these facilities are subject to a 
mere 2 years waiting list for the SGH and are solely limited to staff. 
  

Assuming the restrictions about to be imposed on Warren Crescent and the surrounding streets 
form part of a greater strategy, I wish to pursue my appeal further. Like other residents and other 
stakeholders, I would be interested in finding out what is done to address the real issues of traffic 
management and improvements to the town's infrastructure to bring us a step closer to modern 
times and realistic utilisation of means of transport. 

  

Many thanks for your consideration and demonstrating good practice is in place at the Council. 

  

Kind regards, 

  

Sarah Beesley | Senior Project Manager | sarah.beesley@arcadis-uk.com 

 

ARCADIS | White Hart House | London Road | Blackwater | Camberley | Surrey | 

GU17 9AD | United Kingdom 

T. + 44 (0) 1276 34399 | F. + 44 (0) 1276 34695 

www.arcadis-uk.com 

 

Be green, leave it on the screen. 

This e-mail is confidential and may also be privileged. It is intended for use 

by the addressee only. If you are not the intended addressee, we request that 

you notify us immediately and delete this e-mail, and any attachment(s), without 

copying, forwarding, disclosing or using it in any other way. ARCADIS (UK) 

Limited, with registered office at 10 Furnival Street London EC4A 1YH, Company 

No. 1093549, will not be liable for damage relating to the communication by e-

mail of data or documents. 

 

 

 



 ITEM NO:4  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: LYON STREET – OBJECTION TO PROPOSED 
REVERSAL OF ONE-WAY SYSTEM 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND PARKING 

AUTHOR: Name:  Barbara Thomas Tel: 023 8083 4416 

 E-mail: barbara.thomas@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

 

SUMMARY 

A proposal to reverse the one way system in Lyon Street was advertised on 7 
December 2009.  The reasons for the proposal are to prevent traffic from illegally 
using this road as a short-cut (the road is subject to a Prohibition of Motor Vehicles 
except for access).  The issue was raised by local residents and Hampshire 
Constabulary.  The proposals attracted three objections, two of which were able to be 
resolved by officers.  One objector has requested that his objection is considered 
further. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Cabinet consider and determine this objection to the 
reversal of the one-way system in Lyon Street 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To fulfil the Council’s obligation to consult upon proposals and consider 
objections. 

2. To enable the scheme to be introduced if the objection is not upheld.  The 
officers’ view is that the proposal should be approved to address the illegal 
use of this road as a short cut. 

CONSULTATION 

3. The proposed Traffic Regulation Order for the scheme was advertised in the 
in the Daily Echo and on street notices in the vicinity of the affected road, on 7 
December 2009. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

4. Do nothing.  This would mean that vehicles would continue to illegally use the 
road as a short-cut.  The Police enforce the Prohibition of Motor Vehicles 
restriction when their resources allow, but this appears to be of little 
deterrence. 

 

 



 

 2

DETAIL 

5. The part of Lyon Street under consideration is a narrow road between Dorset 
Street and Onslow Road.  The road was enhanced by the Council some 20 
years ago, with traffic calming, a block paved surface and heritage street 
furniture; a 20mph speed limit and prohibition of motor vehicles (except 
access) was introduced.  The Prohibition of Motor Vehicles restriction is 
largely ignored, and even regular enforcement by the Police does not appear 
to have deterred a large number of drivers, who are using the road as a short 
cut to avoid Charlotte Place roundabout.  The traffic noise is exacerbated by 
the narrowness of the road, and the continuous traffic is damaging the block 
paved surface of the carriageway.   

6. As a result of requests from residents of Lyon Street and the Police, a 
proposal to reverse the one-way system from its current eastbound direction 
to a westbound flow was advertised.  This attracted three objections; two of 
which were resolved by introducing a cycle facility on Cranbury Place.  The 
third objector, Chris Edmond of Chris Edmond Architects, 1-3 Lyon Street, 
has requested that his objection is considered further. 

7. Mr Edmond’s office has a garage in Lyon Street which can accommodate 
seven cars; there are six employees, most of whom use cars.  He objects to 
the proposal on the following grounds: 

• The proposed access to Lyon Street involves a complicated and time 
consuming series of left turns, through four sets of traffic signals 
ending in an acute left turn into Lyon Street. 

• Many of the journeys his staff make are during busy times of day; the 
proposed scheme would add up to ten minutes to their journey time. 

• Onslow Road at its junction with Charlotte Place is even more 
congested than Dorset Street.  Queuing time for staff would be greatly 
increased, especially in the morning. 

• Visitors and delivery drivers to the office would find the access 
confusing and difficult. 

• The office works with the commercial area of London Road on the 
opposite side of the Inner Avenue.  This proposal will almost write off 
the business from the commercial area, with Lyon Street accessed 
from the less attractive Onslow Road. 

• There are very few cars that take the short-cut (never more than three 
per hour, and most of these are in rush hour), and in any event it is not 
a problem for residents. 

• There is no proof that cars will not use the road as a short cut under 
the proposed arrangements i.e. from Onslow Road to Dorset Street.  
The difference in illegal car movements would be marginal. 

• The egress onto Dorset Street is has tight radii, traffic travels fast on 
the dual carriageway; this exit is highly dangerous. 

• The tight turn into Lyon Street from Onslow Road is not acceptable, 
highly dangerous and would seriously interrupt the flow of traffic. 

• Why waste money on changing signs for an unnecessary exercise? 



 3

8. The shortest alternative route to Lyon Street will be via Dorset Street, left at 
Charlotte Place roundabout, left into St Mary’s Road, continue onto Onslow 
Road and left into Lyon Street, a distance of approximately 660 metres.  This 
is in fact the correct route for traffic on Dorset Street to access Onslow Road, 
rather than the illegal short cut down Lyon Street.  The proposed new 
arrangements could be seen as more attractive than the existing because 
traffic will have more direct access to Lyon Street from both north and south.  
London Road is a few minutes’ walk from Mr Edmond’s office and is easily 
reached on foot from Lyon Street. 

Traffic counts show that an average of 513 vehicles per day travel along 
Lyon Street.  There are approximately thirty off-street parking spaces 
accessed from Lyon Street.  Even allowing for legitimate access, this shows 
a large proportion of recorded vehicles illegally using the road as a short cut.  
The counter recorded the highest numbers of vehicles between 11am and 
7pm (between 30 and 36 vehicles per hour).  An average of fourteen 
vehicles was recorded between 8am and 9am, and twenty-seven between 
9am and 10am.  Overnight an average of eighty vehicles was recorded 
between 10pm and 6am. 

Residents have petitioned the Council to reverse the direction of the one-way 
system in Lyon Street, in order to make the route less attractive to through 
traffic.  This view is also supported by the Police.  The Ambulance Service 
and Fire Service have made no objection to the proposal.  The residents are 
prepared to suffer the inconvenience of using Charlotte Place roundabout if it 
results in an effective prohibition of through traffic.  

Swept path drawings show that cars are able to turn into Lyon Street from 
Onslow Road from either the northbound or southbound direction.  Larger 
vehicles would find it easier to carry out the manoeuvre by approaching from 
the north.  At the proposed exit from Lyon Street onto the southbound 
carriageway of Dorset Street, visibility of oncoming traffic is 66 metres; this is 
considered sufficient for the speed limit on this road.  If the proposal comes to 
fruition, the central lane markings on Dorset Street will be changed to hazard 
markings to denote the presence of the junction. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

9. N/A 

Revenue 

10. The costs of the TRO, consultation, and road traffic signing as far as they 
relate to these proposals is estimated to be £3500, which can be met from the 
Environment and Transport portfolio. 

Property 

11. The proposals in this report have no specific property implications. 

Other 

12. N/A 

 



 

 4

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

13. The proposed changes to the waiting restrictions would be made under the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 

Other Legal Implications:  

14. The Council is required to comply with the statutory consultation procedure, 
laid down by the Local Authorities’’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996.  In considering the objections set out in this report, 
the Council must have regard to the provisions of Equalities legislation, the 
Human Rights Act 1998 and section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (the 
duty to have regard to the need to remove or reduce crime and disorder in the 
area).  It is considered that the proposals set out in this report are 
proportionate having regard to the wider needs of the area. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

15. The proposals in this report are consistent with the Local Transport Plan 
2006-20011 policy on promoting safer roads. 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. Mr Edmond’s objection 

2. Officer’s response 

3. Mr Edmond’s sustained objection 

4. Plan of Lyon Street and vicinity, showing proposal 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None  

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: None 

KEY DECISION?  NO   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Bevois 

  











ITEM NO: 4 APPENDIX 2 

Highways and Parking 
Network Management 
Southampton City Council 
45 Castle Way  
Southampton SO14 2PD 
 
Direct Dial: (023) 8083 4416                     Fax: 023 8083 3981 
Email: Barbara.Thomas@southampton.gov.uk                    Ref.:TSM/TID/BAA/CA16.C1 
Please ask for Barbara Thomas  
 
 
Chris Edmond 
Chris Edmond Associates 
1-3 Lyon Street 
Southampton 
SO14 0LD 
 
15 February 2010 
 
Dear Mr Edmond 
 
PROPOSED REVERSAL OF ONE-WAY SYSTEM, LYON STREET 
 
Thank you for your recent comments regarding the proposed reversal of the one-way 
system in Lyon Street, Southampton. 
 
The proposed scheme was requested by residents of Lyon Street, who are concerned 
about the level of through traffic, and the noise and damage it creates.  Although the 
Police enforce the Prohibition of Driving Order from time to time, there are still large 
numbers of drivers who ignore the restriction.  The proposed reversal of the one-way flow 
would have the effect of greatly reducing the number of vehicles using Lyon Street, since it 
would no longer be attractive as a short cut.  The residents who requested the scheme are 
prepared for the inconvenience of using Charlotte Place, if it results in an effective 
prohibition of through traffic.   
 
The visibility for exiting Lyon Street onto Dorset Street is more than 60 metres, which is 
considered ample for the speeds of vehicles on Dorset Street.  The turn from Onslow 
Road into Lyon Street is not dissimilar to many other urban junctions, and is not likely to be 
any more hazardous.  I have established that the swept paths for traffic turning into Lyon 
Street are adequate for vehicles which would need to use it.  The refuse collection route 
would be amended to take the new arrangements into account. 
 
There is no reason to prohibit the left turn from Onslow Road since there will be very few 
vehicles using Lyon Street, and most of them will be private cars.  The proposed new 
arrangements could be seen as more attractive than the existing because traffic will have 
more direct access from both north and south. 
 
CCTV cameras are expensive to install and maintain, and would be unlikely to act as a 
deterrent.  Average speed cameras will not work in this location. 
 



I regret I am unable to uphold your objection and I would advise you that the 
Council intends to proceed with the one way system in Lyon Street as advertised on 
7 December 2009.  I hope that you will find this decision acceptable.  However, if for 
any reason you do not, you have a right of appeal against it, provided that you do so 
in writing and make sure that your letter reaches me no later than 12 March 2010.  
The matter would then be placed before elected members of the Council for further 
consideration and decision. Please note that in the event you wish to make an 
objection and request that it be considered by the Council’s Cabinet body, any 
future correspondence may be included within a Cabinet report accessible by the 
public or be subject to disclosure under Freedom of Information legislation. 
 
 
Thank you for your interest in this matter. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

B A Thomas 

 
Mrs B Thomas 
Traffic Engineer 
 
cc Tony Westgate, Transportation Engineering 
Bob Lee, Legal Services 













This page is intentionally left blank





















This page is intentionally left blank





This page is intentionally left blank





This page is intentionally left blank



Record of meetings attached 
 
7th June 2010 
21st June 2010 



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO: 6  

 

- 1 - 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISION MAKING 

RECORD OF THE DECISION MAKING HELD ON 7 JUNE 2010 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillor Samuels - Leader’s Portfolio 

Councillor Hannides - Cabinet Member for Leisure, Culture and Heritage 

Councillor Holmes - Cabinet Member for Children's Services and Learning 

Councillor Moulton - Cabinet Member for Resources and Workforce Planning 

Councillor Smith - Cabinet Member for Economic Development 

Councillor Dean - Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 

Councillor Walker - Cabinet Member for Safeguarding Children and Youth 
Services 

Councillor White - Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health 

 
Apologies: Councillors P Williams 

 
 

1. RECORD OF THE PREVIOUS DECISION MAKING  

 

The record of the Executive decision making held on 19 April 2010 was received and 
noted as a correct record. 
 
 

2. SOUTHAMPTON'S NIGHT TIME ECONOMY  

 

On consideration of the report of the Chair of the Environment and Sustainability 
Scrutiny Panel detailing the Panel’s inquiry and presenting its final report into 
Southampton’s Night Time Economy the decision maker agreed the following 
 

(i) to receive the attached inquiry report on Southampton's Night Time Economy 
to enable the Executive to formulate its response to the recommendations 
contained within it, in order to comply with the requirements set out in the 
Council’s Constitution. 

 
3. OBESITY INQUIRY  

 

On consideration of the report of the Chair of the Healthy City Scrutiny Panel detailing 
the Panel’s inquiry and presenting its final report into obesity the decision maker agreed 
the following: 
 

(i) to receive the attached inquiry report on obesity to enable the Executive to 
formulate its response to the recommendations contained within it, in order to 
comply with the requirements set out in the Council’s Constitution 

 
 



 

- 2 - 
 

4. EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS  

 

On consideration of the amended report of the Solicitor to the Council detailing the 
executive appointments to all organisations and bodies which relate to executive 
functions,  
 
Amendments as set out below 
 

Ref 
no 

Committee/Panel 
/Group /Organisation 

Representative/s Action Appointment 
till 

A11 Learning Disabilities 
Partner Board 

Cllr Holmes  To the Con 
vacancy 

Until May 
2011 

A19 Standing Advisory 
Council for Religious 
Education (SACRE) 

Vacancy  Declined by Lib 
Dems 

Until May 
2011 

D09 Thornhill Plus You Cllrs Stevens and 
White 

There are 2 
appointments to 
be made. 
Organisation to 
disband next year 

Until 31st 
March 2011 

E19 Southampton Municipal  
Charities   

Cllr Drake  In place of Mrs 
Milton 

Until May 
2014 

H04 Project Integra Policy 
Review and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Cllr Slade  To the Lib Dem 
vacancy 

Until May 
2011 

 
 
the decision maker made the following modified decision:- 
 

(i) that the executive appointments for the 2010/11 Municipal Year be approved 
as set out in the attached revised Register; and 

(ii) that all appointments be for one year save where the terms of reference and 
or constitution of the body or organisation concerned specify the duration of 
an appointment or where the decision on any nomination by the City Council 
to their membership is reserved to the body or organisation concerned to 
determine the appointment or continuation of appointments, in light of any 
changes in City Council Administration. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF FIRST YEAR REVIEW OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S 

PLAN 2009-2012  

 

DECISION MADE: (Ref: CAB 10/11 3215) 
 
On consideration of the report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and 
Learning Cabinet agreed the following: 
 

(i) To approve the action plan for 2010-11 (see Appendix 1), arising from the 
review of progress of the first year of the Children and Young People’s Plan 
2009-2012. 



 

- 3 - 
 

 
6. THE INTRODUCTION OF NEW GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE 

COUNCIL'S REGISTRATION SERVICES  

 

DECISION MADE: (Ref: CAB 10/11 3358) 

On consideration of the report of the Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 
Cabinet agreed the following: 

 

(i) To authorise the Head of Environmental Health and Consumer Protection, 
following consultation with the Cabinet members for Environment and 
Transport and Resources and Workforce Planning, to prepare a Scheme and 
apply to the General Register Office for approval of a new scheme of 
governance for the Council’s Registration Service. 

(ii) To authorise the Solicitor for the Council to sign and seal the new scheme of 
governance. 

(iii) To authorise the Head of Environmental Health and Consumer Protection to 
continue to act as the Proper Officer for the Registration Service under the 
new scheme of governance.  

(iv) To authorise the Head of Environmental Health and Consumer Protection, 
following consultation with the Solicitor to the Council and the Executive 
Director of Resources, to do anything necessary to give effect to the proposals 
in this report including but not limited to the entering into of any required Code 
of Practice, establishment and management of any performance management 
arrangements, determination of any objections to the proposed new Scheme. 

 
 

7. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) CAPITAL PROGRAMME PROJECT 
APPROVAL - DECENT NEIGHBOURHOODS 2010/11  

 

DECISION MADE: (Ref: CAB  10/11 3454) 
 
On consideration of the report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Local Services 
Cabinet agreed the following: 
 

(i) To approve in accordance with Financial Procedures Rules the spend across 
the following schemes: 



 

- 4 - 
 

 
 
 

 

Decent Neighbourhoods 2010/11 

£000s 

2011/12 

£000s 

2012/13 

£000s 

Holyrood Estate 500 0  

Northam Estate 250 0  

Kingsland Estate 275 0  

Millbrook / Maybush 400 0  

Thornhill 100 0  

Estate Improvement 
Programme 

200 200 200 

Total Decent 
Neighbourhoods 

1.725 200 200 

Decent Homes Plus    

Challis Court (Sheltered 
Improvements) 

291 0  

Total Decent Homes Plus 291 0 0 

Total 2.016 200 200 



ITEM NO: 6 

 

- 5 - 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISION MAKING 

RECORD OF THE DECISION MAKING HELD ON 21 JUNE 2010 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillor Samuels - Leader’s Portfolio 

Councillor Smith - Cabinet Member for Economic Development 

Councillor P Williams - Cabinet Member for Housing and Local Services 

Councillor Hannides - Cabinet Member for Leisure, Culture and Heritage 

Councillor Moulton - Cabinet Member for Resources and Workforce Planning 

 
Apologies: Councillors White, Holmes, Dean and Walker 

 
 

8. GRANTS TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS 2010/11  

 

 
DECISION MADE (CAB 09/10 3247) 
 
On consideration of the report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Local Services  
and having considered the Community Strategy (City of Southampton Strategy), 
particularly where grants are authorised pursuant to S.2 Local Government Act 2000 in 
pursuance of the Council’s priorities, having also considered representations made by 
various voluntary grant organisations and receiving verbal impact assessments 
presented by the Stronger Communities and Equalities Manager (set out below),  
Cabinet agreed the following: 
 

(i) To defer the decision to cease the grant award to City Shopmobility to gather 
more information in relation to the assessment of impact and to award a grant 
of £40,331 from 1st July until 31st March 2011 to allow this to happen. 

(ii) In respect of Fairbridge Solent to part fund the request to a maximum of 
£45,600 subject to demonstration to the Council’s satisfaction that the grant 
is not double funded or being used to meet costs that might be expected to 
be included in other contracts (subsidisation). 

(iii) In respect of Intech to Fund at 2009/10 level. 

(iv) Subject to recommendations (i) to (iii) above to approve the grant 
recommendations set out in Appendix 1 to the report.   

(v) To approve an increased allocation of £100,000 of the budget to fund the 
Community Chest small grants scheme. 

(vi) To delegate authority to the Head of Stronger Communities and Equalities 
Team following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Local 
Services to allocate Community Chest grants in two rounds during the year. 

(vii) To delegate authority to the Executive Director of Neighbourhoods following 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Local Services and 
the Executive Director of Resources to: 



 

- 6 - 
 

• determine any outstanding applications for grants for 2010/11 and to 
authorise grants to applicants subject to remaining within approved 
budgets 

• develop criteria for the award of three year funding in 2011/12 

• do anything necessary to give effect to the review and allocation of 
grants for 2010/11 

(viii) To approve the use of general fund contingencies up to a maximum of 
£100,000 in 2010/11 to fund recommendations in this report. 

 
OTHER RELEVANT MATTERS CONCERNING THE DECISION: 
 
Following the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee meeting held on 17th 
June 2010, and concern expressed at that meeting, all Cabinet Members were provided 
with information in advance of the Cabinet meeting letters of support and testimonial 
letters from Voluntary Organisations together with notes of the impact assessment 
meetings and the integrated impact assessments carried out in relation to affected 
organisations. 
 
Cabinet received the following impact assessment updates at the meeting: 
 
City Shopmobility 
The purpose of the assessment was to clarify the perceived potential duplication of 
services between City Shopmobility and the WestQuay scheme. 
 
Officers have met with Southampton Voluntary Service (SVS), City Shopmobility and 
WestQuay Shopmobility. 
 
The results of these meetings have been to identify some points of difference between 
these two schemes, which include: 

- the boundary covered by the City Shopmobility Scheme is slightly larger 
- this boundary includes the Royal South Hants Hospital and even though at times 

the WQ service may allow scooters/wheelchairs to go there on request they do 
not offer a pick up service if broken down 

- the customer groups are different – City Shopmobility is predominantly local 
customers who are regular users, WQ mainly for visitors and WQ shoppers. 
Many of the City Shopmobility customers cannot afford to shop or do not want to 
shop in WQ. 

- Anecdotal evidence (letters from existing users) suggest that they may not use 
the WQ service if the City service closed, either meaning that they could become 
more housebound or use other schemes e.g. the scheme in Eastleigh. This 
potentially has a knock-on effect to local businesses currently used by City 
Shopmobility customers. 

- There are a range of access issues with the WQ service which could prevent 
some City Shopmobility customers using the service – lifts crowded and not easy 
to access; difficult to access the car park with its ticket barrier system, 
negotiating from bus stops to the WQ scheme, high vehicles (including specially 
adapted vehicles) above 2m not being able to access the WQ car park 

- Additional services provided by City Shopmobility e.g. signposting to other 
services, driver training, extended hire for manual wheelchairs 

- Impact of cessation of funding would mean redundancies for the 3 staff 



 

- 7 - 
 

- A number of issues were raised about the ability of the WQ service to cope with 
the increased demand should the City Shopmobility service close 

 
Southampton Voluntary Services (SVS) 

- SVS has externally credited quality awards including the Positive about Disability 
award. 

- In addition to the proposed 10% cut in quarters 3 and 4 of this financial year, 
SVS has already lost £40K of funding from the council’s Safer and Stronger 
Communities Fund. There are a number of other funding streams that are 
uncertain for the next financial year, so the Chief Executive has written to the 
Executive Committee to say that as from next year, the financial stability of the 
organisation is potentially threatened. 

- As SVS manage the Shopmobility service, if funding for this were to cease, they 
would lose their management fee, which is common practice to charge.  

- This loss of funding cannot be met by existing reserves. 
- SVS is currently holding 2 vacancies due to uncertainties caused by the grants 

review. 
- Should the proposed 10% cut be approved, then it is difficult for SVS to say 

exactly at this stage what the impact would be, but there will be an impact on 
staffing levels, cutting back on the Voluntary Sector Support Team and it could 
mean cutting out completely the Criminal Record Bureau Check service that they 
offer. If this were to happen this could increase the risk to the city of a 
safeguarding incident happening. 

- Generally there would be less support to groups they support around issues 
such as accessing external funding opportunities, smaller groups needing to do 
more work for themselves e.g. CRB checks and less ability to engage in 
partnership working with a reduced staff complement. 

- If the proposed cut is approved then SVS would seek to negotiate with the 
council about what is expected to be delivered as part of a reduced grant. The 
organisation is also concerned that this proposed reduction possibly sets out a 
‘marker’ for a 10% full year reduction in the next grant round. 

 
SARC 

- has the Community Legal Services quality mark 
- 15 – 20% of their benefits clients are pensioners; being represented doubles the 

chances of success 
- Are currently holding a staff vacancy due to uncertainties about the outcome of 

the grants review; if this 10% reduction is applied then they would not be able to 
fill the post 

- They currently have a 3 week waiting list for appointments and are trying to meet 
customer demand by doing more work on the phone, but this is less effective 
than face to face work 

- Their Macmillan funding recently ceased after 4 years 
- They have recently used about £45K of their own reserves to refurbish their 

current building which is leased to them from the council 
- There are various options the service will need to consider if the proposed 10% 

reduction is approved including- recruiting only on a fixed term or part time basis 
to their current vacancy; scaling back their outreach sessions in Thornhill, 
Lordshill and St Marys; decreased capacity to join in with city wide campaigns, 
reducing the number of clients seen. 



 

- 8 - 
 

- The organisation is also concerned that this proposed reduction possibly sets out 
a ‘marker’ for a 10% full year reduction in the next grant round and the impact of 
this could mean reducing operating hours and losing a post. 

 
TWICS 

- the grant is a contribution towards core costs and enables TWICS to lever in 
other sources of funding to the value of 5 times the core grant 

- they don’t duplicate training provided by other organisations and deliver training 
in neighbourhood venues, in a style and at a cost that attracts less confident 
participants 

- they are the only provider in Southampton of community development work 
courses 

- they deliver accredited courses as well as more informal learning opportunities 
- if the 10% proposed reduction in quarters 3 and 4 of their grant is approved the 

service will have to consider various options including: 
- offering fewer free or subsidised places 
- not paying for childcare 
- using reserves, but they made a small loss last year so really need to increase 

their reserves 
- running fewer accredited courses which are the most expensive type of course 

they run e.g.food hygiene courses which are valued by the community but don’t 
bring in much income 

- potentially reduce their work in the inner city 
 
Fairbridge Solent 
Having carried out some further work to assess whether their grant application is to 
help meet costs to subsidise other contracts, the group has confirmed that 20% of their 
work does not support Southampton residents. 
 
This means that the maximum grant that can be awarded is £45,600 not the £48,000 
proposed in the schedule at Appendix 1. 
 
Further work is still required to assess whether contracts are being run on a full cost 
recovery basis or not.  
 
Intech grant condition 
The recommendation was to fund Intech on condition that they give free entry to the 
Planetarium. They have written in to appeal against this. The Service Manager of 
Children’s Services as the lead appraiser recommended this condition, has read their 
letter and is now happy to remove it.  
 
Request from Audit 
Verbal clarification at the request from Audit that the budget figures are to the nearest 
£100 but the individual grants listed are to the nearest £1 and this is why there is a 
difference between the total in the report and the total in the schedule.   
 
 
 
 

 



 ITEM NO:10  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: CORPORATE PLAN 2010/11 

DATE OF DECISION: 5th JULY 2010  

REPORT OF: ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (STRATEGY) 

AUTHOR: Name:  Joy Wilmot-Palmer Tel: 023 8083 3093 

 E-mail: joy.wilmot-palmer@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None. 

SUMMARY 

The Corporate Plan forms part of the Council’s overall Policy Framework and it must 
be approved by Full Council following consideration by the executive and scrutiny. It is 
a cross cutting document which covers all aspects of the Council’s activities. The plan 
demonstrates the organisation’s commitment to securing best value in all areas of 
service delivery. It also reflects the leadership role of Cabinet Members in securing 
the delivery of the Council’s key policy objectives, value for money and service 
improvements for the benefit of residents and businesses in the city.  

This report outlines the progress made to date in the development of the 2010/11 
Corporate Plan to ensure that it reflects local priorities, as well as national policy and 
budgetary changes which have a significant impact on the city. The Council remains 
fully committed to delivering its planned medium term aspirations and key projects, 
however progress over the next few years will be partially dependent on the 
availability of national and local resources. The original intention in drafting this year’s 
Corporate Plan was to ensure that it contained a 3 year medium term financial and 
policy perspective. However, given the Government’s focus on reducing the public 
sector budget deficit and the forthcoming national Comprehensive Spending Review 
in the Autumn, it will not be possible to conclude this work until later in the year for 
inclusion in next year’s Corporate Plan. In the meantime this report seeks delegated 
authority to the Chief Executive, following consultation with the Leader of the Council, 
to amend the Plan as necessary to ensure that it reflects member feedback and aligns 
with the Council’s approved 2010/11 operating budget as well as any new significant 
national, regional or local developments which will impact on the Council’s activities.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) To note the comments received from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee as set out in the consultation section of 
the report.  

 (ii) To endorse the draft 2010/11 Corporate Plan and refer it to Full 
Council for approval as part of the council’s overall Policy 
Framework 

 (iii) To delegate authority to the Chief Executive, following consultation 
with the Leader of the Council, to amend the draft plan as 
necessary to ensure that it reflects member feedback and aligns 
with any new budgetary or policy developments which will have a 
significant impact on the council’s activities in 2010/11.  



 2

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. In accordance with Section 4 of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules as a Policy Framework document the Corporate Plan must 
be formally considered by the Executive prior to its submission to Full Council 
for approval. 

CONSULTATION 

2. The draft Corporate Plan reflects the Council’s six approved priorities and the 
2010/11 budget approved by Full Council in February, which were both 
formulated following extensive consultation with local residents and 
stakeholders. The plan also incorporates key service improvements contained 
within directorate and divisional Business Plans, which have been developed 
in conjunction with staff.  

3. On the 17th June a draft of the 2010/11 Corporate Plan was considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee. The linkages between the 
draft Corporate Plan and the Government’s emerging policy and budget 
priorities were explored at the meeting. A number of issues were raised by 
scrutiny members concerning the number of residents participating in 
feedback surveys, the longevity of the National Indicator Set, the optimum 
time for the submission of this plan, the scope for making in year adjustments, 
the importance of highway improvements in the city and the need to ensure 
(via a proposed priority traffic light system) that the content of the final version 
of the plan reflects the Council’s primary objectives rather than policy 
aspirations, which may not be forthcoming as a result of future reductions in 
public sector expenditure.  

4. With the exception of the proposed “priority traffic light system”, where 
appropriate, these issues have been addressed in the latest draft of the 
Corporate Plan, the document has also been aligned with the proposals set 
out in the “Changes to Existing Revenue and Capital Budgets” report 
presented elsewhere on this agenda to ensure that the commitments 
contained within the document are deliverable within the known resource 
constraints at this point in time. Delegated authority is also being sought to 
enable the plan to be amended by officers as necessary, following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to reflect any changes required at 
the decision making meeting as well as new national policy or budgetary 
changes which will have a significant impact on the city. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. None, since the Corporate Plan is a Policy Framework document.  

DETAIL 

6. The Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s approach to securing overall 
business efficiencies, value for money and service improvements for the 
benefit of local residents. The commitments set out in the plan reflect the 
Council’s agreed priorities and the operating budget for the year, the City of 
Southampton Strategy as well as any council led actions contained within 
approved partnership plans. The published version of the Corporate Plan will 
also include final 2009/10 performance and financial information.  



 3

7. In previous year the document has been presented to Full Council in May and 
included planned improvement measures as well as financial forecasts for the 
current and next two financial years. However, given recent significant 
national policy and budgetary changes the submission of this year’s plan to 
Council has been delayed to enable the document to reflect key in-year policy 
and budget changes.  

8. The Council remains fully committed to securing its planned medium term 
aspirations and major projects. However in practice their successful delivery 
will be partially dependent on the availability of national and local resources 
over the medium term. In the Autumn there will be a new national 
Comprehensive Spending Review, which will determine departmental public 
expenditure levels for the next 3 years against a backdrop of reducing the 
current level of public sector debt. Whilst a revised high level financial 
forecast has therefore been devised to respond to the Government’s June 
Interim Budget and 2010/11 grant announcements a new medium term 
financial strategy has not been included in the 2010/11 Corporate Plan. This 
will be developed later in the year as the likely levels of future local 
government settlements become clearer. 

9. The 2010/11 Corporate Plan is much shorter than previous year’s 
documents to ensure that it focuses only on the key improvement areas and 
major projects to be delivered by the Council over the twelve months within 
known resource constraints. In addition the document has been split into two 
parts. The first part provides a summary of the key challenges facing the 
Council over the medium term as well as the proposed actions that will be 
taken by the executive in 2010/11 to address them. The second part of the 
document is a technical appendix, which sets out indicative three year 
targets for the key performance measures and national indicators currently in 
place, to enable the Council to demonstrate its commitment to securing 
“continuous improvement” within existing resource levels to fulfil its Best 
Value obligations.  

10. Where appropriate the Plan includes a number of service improvement and 
efficiency proposals to ensure that value for money is secured for local 
residents. The technical appendix also includes customer feedback 
information as well as appropriate benchmarking information and comparative 
data.  

11. In practice the Corporate Plan provides an integrated framework for the 
delivery of services across the Council to ensure that they provide value for 
money and are being delivered to local residents and businesses in the city in 
line with members’ priorities. The content of the plan therefore provides the 
basis for the Council’s quarterly corporate performance management 
arrangements by ensuring that agreed actions by members are delivered 
within required timescales and to expected standards. 

 

 

 

 

 



 4

12. Before the publication of the final version of the Corporate Plan its content will 
be refined as necessary to ensure that it reflects any new budget 
announcements that could have a significant impact locally. In addition in light 
of the discussion at the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
delegated authority is sought to enable officers to amend the plan as 
necessary, following consultation with the Leader of the Council to reflect any 
new major budgetary or policy changes that take before the end of the 
financial year.  

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

13. There are no additional capital implications arising from the proposals outlined 
in this report. 

Revenue 

14. There are no additional revenue implications arising from the approval of the 
report’s recommendations. The targets and commitments contained within the 
Plan will be met from the resources allocated to Portfolios through the 
2010/11 budget setting process. The approved revenue budgets for each 
Portfolio are included in the appropriate sections of the draft Corporate Plan. 

Property 

15. None as a consequence of the recommendations contained within this report. 

Other 

16. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

17. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the 
Local Government Act 2000. 

Other Legal Implications:  

18. The statutory powers for producing this plan can be found in the Local 
Government Acts 1972, 1999 and 2000. The Council has a statutory duty to 
secure continuous improvement and value for money in all of its activities. 
The production of the Corporate Plan demonstrates that the council has an 
integrated and planned approach to securing this objective. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

19. The Corporate Plan 2010-13 is a policy framework document which Full 
Council will be invited to approve on 14th July 2010. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 5

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

 None 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

 Draft Corporate Plan 2010-13 (Part 1) 

Draft Corporate Plan – Technical Appendix (Part 2) 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing 
document to be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

 None.  

FORWARD PLAN No:  N/A KEY DECISION  No 
 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED:  None at this stage.  

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 ITEM NO: 12  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: HIGHWAYS SERVICE PARTNERSHIP: APPROVAL TO 
AWARD CONTRACT 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF:  CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND 
TRANSPORT 

AUTHOR: Name:  Mick Bishop Tel: 023 8083 2435 

 E-mail: Mick.bishop@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

Appendices 1 and 2 of this report are not for publication by virtue of categories 3 
(financial and business affairs), and 7A (obligation of Confidentiality) of paragraph 10.4 
of the Council's Access to Information Procedure Rules as contained in the Council's 
Constitution. 

It is not in the public interest to disclose this information as the appendices contain 
confidential and commercially sensitive information supplied by the bidder. This 
information has been supplied during the course of a strictly regulated procurement 
process which included provision for transparency and openness where appropriate. It 
would prejudice the Council’s ability to operate in a commercial environment and 
obtain best value in procurement negotiations and would prejudice the Council’s 
commercial relationships with third parties if they believed the Council would not 
honour any obligation of confidentiality. 

SUMMARY 

Based on an updated business case, Cabinet on15/02/10 delegated authority to the 
Executive Director for Environment in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council and 
Executive Director for Resources and following consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for 
Environment and Transport to close dialogue, call for Final Tenders and appoint a 
preferred bidder, within set parameters, for the Highways Service Partnership 
Contract. A company within the Balfour Beatty Group was appointed in 27th May 
2010.  
This report sets out the agreed final terms of the proposed Contract and requests 
authority to enter into Contract with a company within the Balfour Beatty Group. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Having complied with the requirements of Paragraph 15 – General Exception 
of the Access to Information Procedure Rules: 

 (i) To enter into a contract for a period of 10 years plus period of flexible 
extendibility with a company within the Balfour Beatty Group to 
deliver the Council’s highways services.    

 (ii) To delegate authority to the Solicitor to the Council, following 
consultation with the Executive Director of Neighbourhoods and 
Executive Director of Resources to finalise and enter into all 
necessary or ancillary contractual arrangements and documentation 
with a company within the Balfour Beatty Group, subject to the 
parameters set out within the report, and specifically in confidential 
Appendix 1. 



 2

 (iii) To authorise the Executive Director of Resources and / or  the 
Solicitor to the Council to take any further action necessary to give 
effect to the decisions of the Executive in relation to this matter.  

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. This report is submitted for consideration as a General Exception under 
paragraph 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in part 4 of the 
City Council’s Constitution, notice having been given to the Chair and Vice 
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee and the Public.  The 
matter requires a decision as it would be impracticable to defer.  This would 
delay Service Commencement and would impact on the Council’s commercial 
position. It would have been impracticable to include on the May 2010 
published Forward Plan as the evaluation was in progress and the Preferred 
Bidder was not appointed until the 27th May 2010. 

2. Final Tenders were received from the two remaining bidders in April 2010. A 
company within the Balfour Beatty Group was appointed as Preferred Bidder 
on 27th May 2010.  

3. The efficiencies generated from the partnership will be re-invested back into 
the highways service. The Partnership will not provide the level of additional 
funding required for significantly improving the condition of the highways 
network (for which it is estimated between £10-15m spend per annum is 
required) or move the Council away from a ‘managed decline’ strategy. 
However, it will ensure the Council is maximising the output from its existing 
budgets and that the decline is significantly slowed. 

CONSULTATION 

4. Regular briefings have been provided to Cabinet and opposition Members. 
Staff and Trade Unions have been consulted regularly through the process. 

5. External consultation has taken place with the Audit Commission and Local 
Partnerships on key risks and issues associated with the project. These, 
along with the Council responses, were summarised in the last Cabinet 
report.  

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6 A Strategic Business Case included an options appraisal which determined, in 
the absence of significant additional external investment (i.e. PFI), the model 
that best met the Critical Success Factors for the future of the Highways 
service was a long-term public/private service partnership. The alternative 
options considered were: Do-Nothing; Public/Public Partnership; Strategic 
Partnership; Externalisation; Fully in-house. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 3

DETAIL 

7. The benefits of the HSP, as set out in the original OBC and 15th February 
2010  Cabinet report are: 

- Inefficiencies driven out from service delivery to be reinvested back into 
the highways network 

- Increasing the service performance level 

- Increased investment in the service delivery infrastructure 

- Increased capacity and resources available to deliver the service 

- Maintaining and improving the customer focus 

8. The value for money case based on the preferred bidder submission is set out 
in confidential Appendix 2. This is within the forecast Outline Business Case 
(2008) and the updated Business Case (Feb 2010) and compares favourably 
to the Public Sector Comparator.  

9. The revenue cost will be fixed for the life of the contract as an annual Lump 
Sum payment (subject to any Council instigated change to the Contract).  
Value for money (vfm) can be demonstrated by comparing existing budget for 
delivering services with the Preferred Bidder’s final tender Lump Sum price for 
delivering the same services at a higher performance level. 

10. At Final Tender the Preferred Bidder has submitted prices for a number of 
example capital schemes which will be used as a benchmark (a ‘library of 
reference schemes’) for the pricing of all future capital schemes. Any scheme 
items which can not be referenced can be benchmarked against market rates. 
Additionally, there is no exclusivity clause within the contract meaning the 
Council could seek alternative quotes. 

11. As detailed in Appendix 2, there is a realistic expectation that the partnership 
will deliver 20% more (i.e. higher output) from current levels of expenditure 
than would be delivered under the current service delivery arrangements. 

12. The scope of services is unchanged from that set-out and agreed to in the 
Cabinet Report of 15th February 2010.  

13. A comprehensive performance framework regime has been developed which 
reflects and exceeds existing performance levels and which will incentivise 
the Provider to achieve required performance levels, ensuring the Council 
does not pay for a sub-standard level of service.  

14. The capital maintenance programme (a 5 year framework with locally agreed 
annually focused programmes based on the Council’s annual budget setting) 
will be based on a clear asset management approach yet also take into 
account wider Council priorities and objectives as they evolve.   

15. There have been no material changes to the contractual or commercial 
positions since the Cabinet Report of 15th February 2010.  

16. Payment Mechanisms – Payment for services are based on two mechanisms: 

- Lump Sum (Revenue Budget) covering routine and reactive maintenance 

- Target Cost (Capital) covering the Capital Programme. 

17. Guaranteed Capital Funding – The Council has an approved strategy for 
funding capital maintenance on the highway (approved by full Council on 



 4

16/07/08). However, there is no contractual guarantee as to the level of 
capital funding.  

18. Contract Length – the contract will be for a period of 10 years with the 
possibility of up to 5 years extensions based on performance. The Provider 
will be able to earn (and lose) extensions based on its performance through 
the life of the contract.   

19. Third Party Income – The Provider will guarantee a level of Third Party 
Income (mainly income from Traffic Management Act and New Roads and 
Street Works Act) which is deducted from the Lump Sum payment. The risk of 
income therefore rests with the Provider and acts as an incentive to achieve 
performance. The Council will not be able to re-direct this income. However, 
statutorily this income can only be spent on highways related work and the 
key project driver is to reinvest into the network.  

20.  A detailed Financial Risk analysis is attached at Confidential Appendix 2. 

21. There will be a more planned approach to delivering works under the 
partnership. This will be more efficient but in some areas will reduce the ability 
to direct work on an ad hoc basis. The contract has been drafted to retain a 
degree of flexibility for the Council.  

22. Post-contract award there is a risk that the provider will require additional 
monies for delivering services which were not included, or poorly set-out, 
within the specification. A thorough process was undertaken to ensure all 
functions were included and clearly specified within the Lump Sum, yet there 
will be ad-hoc requests for service which require additional payments.  

23. The target date for Contract Award is 14th July 2010. The Service 
Commencement date is scheduled for Monday 4th October 2010.    

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

24. The highways capital budget (whatever this is set at year on year) will be 
channelled through the partnership. The capital budget will continue to be 
agreed on an annual basis within the Council budget setting process. 

Revenue 

25. Existing revenue budgets for in-scope highways services will be transferred to 
the partnership. The Council will be committed to the revenue budget for the 
contract period. Any savings in revenue budgets from a reduced lump sum 
price will be re-invested back into the highways network. 

26. A Contract Management and Client Team will be funded through top-slicing of 
the existing revenue budget after contract payments.  

Property 

27. The Provider will be leased space at City Depot (Dock Gate 20) when 
available. In the interim the Provider will move into the space currently 
occupied by highways in Town Depot and Castle Way. The highways client 
team will be based at the Regional Business Centre.  



 5

28. It is intended that the Provider will be charged only nominal rent and service 
costs on the basis that any rent charged would simply have been passed 
back to the Council in the cost of service.  

Other 

29. The Council believes that the Transfer of Undertakings, (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) will apply. Where TUPE applies the 
Provider is required to protect the terms and conditions of transferred staff 
including pensions. 

30. The Provider is strongly encouraged to (and has indicated that it will) seek 
admission to the Local Government Pension Scheme but if this is refused / 
impractical it must provide a broadly comparable scheme as approved by the 
Government Actuary’s Department (GAD). 

31. The Provider is required to employ new joiners on terms that are overall no 
less favourable than those of transferred employees. The Council recognises 
the Best Value Code of Practice on Workforce Matters and intends to enter 
discussions on the avoidance of two-tier working. 

32. The procurement of Highways Services Partnership contract complies with, 
and contributes to, the Council’s Sustainability Principles. The performance 
framework includes a number of contributory performance indicators 
including the reduction of Carbon Dioxide emissions relating to the delivery 
of highways services, the percentage of sustainable materials used, 
apprentices employed and local labour employed. The Preferred Bidder’s 
solution contributes to the Councils’ Sustainability Principles in a number of 
ways including whole life costing for supplies, improving road safety, waste 
and recycling, mechanisms to engage socially excluded groups and those 
Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEET), supporting local 
suppliers, developing a learning hub and engaging with Small and Medium-
sized Enterprises (SMEs) and Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) owned and 
run organisations. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

33. Highways maintenance and associated and ancillary functions are authorised 
by a variety of Statutory powers including the Highways Act 1980 as amended 
and the Traffic Management Act 2004, together with secondary legislation 
(Regulations, Directions and Orders). The power to enter into contracts for the 
delivery of a Council function is contained in s1 of the Local Government 
(Contracts) Act 1997 and s.111 Local Government Act 1972 (power to do 
anything calculated to facilitate, ancillary to or conducive to the discharge of a 
primary function). Regard must be had to the Part 1 (Best Value) provisions of 
the Local Government Act 1999, the National Procurement Strategy and 
public procurement law including the Public Contracts Regulations 2006. 

34. Part II (Contracting Out) of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994 is 
the primary legislation which allows a Minister to make an Order enabling 
certain statutory functions to be carried out by persons on behalf of the local 
authority. The Contracting Out (Highway Functions) Order 2009 sets out 
those functions of the Highways Act 1980 and New Roads Street Works Act 
1991 which can be contracted out. The functions under the 2009 Order 



 6

include (among many others): 

o Section 41(1)  - duty to maintain highway maintainable at public 
expense;  

o Section 62 – general power of improvement; and  
o Section 150 – duty to remove snow, soil etc from the highway. 

Other Legal Implications:  

35. The Council will enter into a contract broadly based upon the Highways 
Agency Managing Agent Contract form of contract (“MAC”) with project 
specific revisions. An options analysis deemed this the most suitable to 
underpin the scope of services and standards of delivery required by the 
Council. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

36. The project is in line with the Council’s Local Transport Plan. The Council 
maintains control over setting policy and any policy changes will have to be 
considered and approved in light of the impact on the HSP and in accordance 
with Council priorities and objectives. 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. Parameters for Entering into Contract with Preferred Bidder (Confidential) 

2. Financial and Value for Money (Confidential) 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. Addendum Outline Business Case 

Background Documents 

 Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. Outline Business Case 2008 

2. Highways Service Partnership Cabinet report - 15th February 2010 

3. Highways Service Partnership Cabinet report – 30th June 2008 

Background documents available for inspection at:      45 Castle Way  

KEY DECISION? Yes   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All 

  



by virtue of paragraph number 7a of the Council’s Access to information Proceedure Rules

Document is Confidential



This page is intentionally left blank



by virtue of paragraph number 7a of the Council’s Access to information Proceedure Rules

Document is Confidential



This page is intentionally left blank



 ITEM NO: 13  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO 
DISTRICT CENTRES 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHOR: Name:  Robin McDonald Tel: 023 8083 2874 

 E-mail: robin.mcdonald@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

NONE 

 

SUMMARY 

A report into Southampton’s town and district centres, produced by the Economic 
Well-Being Scrutiny Panel, was presented to Cabinet in March 2010.  This report sets 
out Cabinet’s response to the 19 recommendations contained within the report.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) Approve the response to the 19 recommendations as detailed in Appendix 1. 

 (ii) That the role of co-ordinating actions of various relevant departments within the 
Council, to improve the economic climate of the District Centres, be delegated 
to the Head of City Development and Economy after consultation with local 
interest such as traders’ associations and residents’ associations. 

 (iii) To delegate authority to the Head of City Development and Economy to 
negotiate and look to other departments for supporting resources with regard to 
the prioritising and monitoring of district centre improvements. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The current actions by Economic Development and their help with the District 
Centres and work with the Traders’ Associations is in line with the aims and 
objectives of the 19 recommendations and demonstrates the ability to deliver 
and or co-ordinate many of the recommendations. 

CONSULTATION  

2. The following departments have been asked their views and these are recorded 
in Appendix 1 

a) Economic Development  & Regeneration 

b) Planning and Sustainability  

c) Highways and Parking  

d) Property Services 

3. Local consultation has and will continue, with the Shirley, Bitterne and Woolston 
Traders’ Associations and their views are reflected in Appendix 1. 

 



 2

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

4. Do nothing – meets neither the aspiration of the City Council nor aids the 
economic climate within the district centres. 

5. Create specific District Centre Manager/s role was rejected due to current 
financial pressures. 

DETAIL  

6. The 19 recommendations of the Economic Well-Being Scrutiny Panel have 
been responded to in detail in Appendix 1 where comment is made on the 
action taken. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

7. None. 

Revenue 

8. Some increased travel costs and other small resources will need to be utilised 
from the current  Economic Development budget. It is anticipated that various 
departments will support the prioritising and monitoring of the district centres. 

Property 

9. None. 

Other 

10. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

11. Section 2 Local Government Act 2000 

Other Legal Implications:  

12. None. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

13. Community Strategy – meets with objective 3 – A Dynamic Business 
Environment 

14. Local Area Agreement – meets with objective SO3 - A Dynamic Business 
Environment 

15. Corporate Improvement Plan – meets with Sec 5. Economic Development 
Portfolio – part of Southampton Economic Development and Regeneration Plan 
(SEDRAP) 



 3

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. DRAFT RESPONSE TO DISTRICT CENTRE INQUIRY – Summary of 
Recommendations – 5th July 2010 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None.  

Background documents available for inspection at:       

KEY DECISION? NO   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Woolston, Peartree, Portswood, 
Shirley, Coxford 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO:  13  Appendix 1 

   

DRAFT RESPOSE TO DISTRICT CENTRES INQUIRY – Summary of Recommendations – 5 July 2010 

 

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

To improve the co-ordination and management of Southampton’s 
town and district centres it is recommended that: 

1) Using Portsmouth’s model, appoint a District Centres Co-
ordinator to:  

a. Act as a link between Southampton City Council, traders and 
other commercial and community interests in town and district 
centres 

b. Work with traders to establish traders associations within 
each town and district centre 

c. Help establish a programme of events within town and district 
centres with traders associations and Active Communities 

d. Act as the lead officer for district centres within the Council, 
acting as the conduit for a joined-up, planned approach to the 
future development and improvement of town and district 
centres 

e. Explore potential external funding to support initiatives to 
improve town and district centre management. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Levenson 

1) TBC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

a. & b. 

Created May 2007 

Created Feb 2009 

Created Feb 2010 

Commence efforts for 
Traders’ Assoc. Sept 
2010 

Await Lordshill 
Masterplan 

 

c. Oct 2008 

    Apr 2010 

    Feb –Dec 2010 

 

 

 

d. Nov 2009 

e. January 2010 

1) The role of District Centre Co-
ordination is in effect already being 
undertaken by the ED&R team. To 
more fully endorse this role would 
necessitate i) creation of a specific 
Co-ordinator role/s, for which there 
are currently insufficient resources 
or ii) utilise an existing staff 
member within ED&R with a 
portfolio of work to cover district 
centres equalling 95% of work load 
and with fully endorsed standing. 

a. & b. 

Bitterne Traders’ Association 

Shirley Traders Association 

Woolston Traders’ Association 

Portswood Traders’Association 

 

Investigate possible Traders’ 
Association 

 

 

c. 

Created street market Bitterne 

Created Street Market Shirley 

Created Woolston Regeneration 
Plan outlining 12 points of action in 
agreement with Traders’ 
Association. Ongoing work 

 

d. Ongoing responsibility in ED&R 



 2  

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

which will require full endorsement 
and standing 

e. Recent DCLG grant utilised in 
Woolston and Below Bar 

To improve understanding of Southampton’s town and district 
centres, and to actively promote growth and manage change, it is 
recommended that: 

2) The City Council, using Planning Policy Statement 6 as a guide, 
collates and analyses on a regular basis, relevant performance 
measurement information on the health of the town and district 
centres.  This may include existing data on cleansing, crime, 
vacancy rates as well as information available from the Chamber 
of Commerce on business confidence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) Through the Sites and Policies Plan process, and monitoring / 
implementation of the existing adopted Local Plan, the City 
Council’s increases its understanding of the vitality and viability of 
the town and district centres, and that this information is used to 

Tim Levenson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Levenson, 
Paul Nichols  

Ongoing process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AMR produced every 
December 

2) This should now be updated to 
refer to PPS4 ‘Planning for 
Sustainable Economic Growth’ 
which supersedes PPS6.   

Planning Policy collects, every 2 
years, some information on the 
health of district centres, e.g. 
surveys of the retailers represented 
and vacant units.  We also 
commission studies of the 
shopping centres when we need 
updated evidence for our 
development plans.  We intend to 
commission consultants to look at 
the convenience (eg food) goods 
sector in 2011.  However, we do 
not have the resources or the 
expertise to collect all of the 
information listed in 
recommendation 2 – in particular 
data on cleansing and crime, or 
commercial data.  Whilst we will 
help where we have the 
information, it is suggested that 
Economic Development should 
take the lead on this 
recommendation particularly if a 
District Centre Co-ordinator is 
appointed.   

 

3) Planning Policy produces an 
Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 
every year.  As mentioned in point 
2 above Planning Policy do already 
collect some of this information 



 3  

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

assist in managing change in town and district centres where 
needed, and when consistent with planning powers. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Southampton 
Development Plan – 
early 2014 

which we can feed in, but do not 
have the resources or expertise to 
collect all the necessary 
information.  It is suggested that 
Economic development should be 
responsible for this.   

 

This information will feed into the 
production of the Sites and Policies 
Plan, now renamed the 
Southampton Development Plan.  
This plan is scheduled for 
completion in early 2014.    

 

To improve the accessibility of Southampton’s town and district 
centres it is recommended that:  

4) The clarity of the car park signage is improved to ensure that 
shoppers are aware of the 5hr free parking available within the 
City Council’s town and district centre car parks. 

 

 

5) To enhance access to the district centres, develop a sense of 
identity, and improve the attractiveness of district centres, extend 
the Legible Cities programme to the town and district centres and 
devise an approach to prioritise resources.  

 

 

Mick Bishop 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Levenson 

 

 

--Completed--- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing and 
developing 

4) This has been done. Signs have 
been installed at the four qualifying 
Long Stay District Centre Car 
Parks. These signs which promote 
‘free parking’ for the first 5 hours 
can be found at: 

- Portsmouth Road 
- Oakbank Road 
- Marlborough Road North 
- Angel Crescent 

5) Woolston Traders Association 
and Southampton Solent University 
currently developing street art 
reflecting Woolston. In addition 
WTA looking to create own Café as 
funding mechanism for Christmas 
& other events.  

Both Bitterne and Shirley traders’ 
associations are utilising the 
incomes from markets to create 
Christmas and other events.  

Actions and ideas learned will be 
crafted for appropriate model to 
share with Portswood and its 



 4  

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

traders in September 2010 

To enhance the vitality and viability of Portswood District Centre it 
is recommended that: 

6) The impact that the new development on the bus depot site has 
on the economic well-being, traffic levels and congestion within 
Portswood District Centre is monitored. 

7) The potential to reduce the length of the taxi rank to enable more 
on-street car parking within the District Centre is investigated. 

 

 

Tim Levenson 

 

 

 

 

--------------------- 

 

 

Where resources allow 
an annual monitoring 

 

 

 

 - Completed - 

6) Ideally the monitoring of traffic 
flows and their effect on trade and 
footfall to all the 5 district centres 
would be done on an annual basis. 
If this were to happen it would 
require considerable resources, 
which currently are not available to 
City Design and Economy. 

7) This has already been done 
prior to the Inquiry. There is an 
existing proposal to reduce the 
length of the taxi rank to enable 
better provision and access for 
disabled drivers. It is intended to 
carry this forward and build into the 
2010/11 TRO work programme. 

To enhance the vitality and viability of Bitterne District Centre it is 
recommended that: 

8)   Southampton City Council invests in the public realm to improve 
the appearance of Bitterne District Centre. 

 

 

9) Through the Sites and Policies Plan process, the existing 
adopted local plan, and the determination of planning 
applications, the City Council facilitates proposals which come 
forward for the provision of an additional food store within 
Bitterne District Centre to promote greater competition. 

 

 

John Harvey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paul Nichols 

 

 

Dependent upon 
funding opportunities 

 

 

 

 

 

The Southampton 
Development Plan is 
due for adoption in 
early 2014.   

 

 

 

 

 

8) Priority for 2010/11 is targeted at 
Woolston District Centre.  
Investment in Bitterne District 
Centre will depend upon sustaining 
future allocations through the 
Environment Capital Programme 
and opportunities to secure S106 
contributions from developments in 
the vicinity. 

 

9) Existing planning policy provides 
support in principle for any 
proposals for a further food store 
within Bitterne District Centre.  It 
also helps support the district 
centres by restricting new stores 
outside of the centres.  The 
Southampton Development Plan 
can include a statement to 
encourage a further food store in 
the district centre, and can 
consider whether there is a need to 



 5  

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Target date for 
completion – SDP= 
early 2014 

allocate a specific site.  If there is a 
need for a store Council may have 
to consider using CPO powers to 
obtain a site.   

 

As part of the work on the City 
Centre Action Plan and the 
Southampton Development Plan a 
retail study looking at the 
convenience goods sector is 
intended to be carried out in 2011.  
This study should also give an idea 
of what size store is suitable for the 
centre.   

If an application came in before the 
SDP is adopted then it will be 
judged against policy CS 3 from 
the Core Strategy and REI 5 from 
the Local Plan Review.   

To enhance the vitality and viability of Woolston District Centre it is 
recommended that: 

10) The time limit for on-street parking is raised from 30 minutes to a 
minimum of 1 hour. 

11) Signage within the District Centre is improved to raise awareness 
of available car parking provision within the District Centre. 

 

 

 

 

12) The Cabinet Member for Economic Development makes 
representation to the Government about the Business Rate 

 

 

------------------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Levenson 

 

 

- Completed - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12) Completed 
February 2010 

 

 

-------------------------------------------- 

 

 

11) Highways & Parking Service 
view is that the whereabouts of 
parking facilities in Woolston is well 
known and existing signage is 
adequate. Utilisation levels appear 
to confirm this. The service 
manager proposes reviewing 
customer communications and 
publicity in order to achieve wider 
and more relevant coverage 

 

12) Approaches were made to 
VOA who have reviewed the 



 6  

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

Valuation levels being charged within Woolston District Centre. 

 

13) If the initiative utilising the Future Jobs Programme to improve 
the externals of vacant business premises in Woolston District 
Centre is successful, this approach be applied across all of 
Southampton’s town and district centres. 

14) Building upon work undertaken by Swaythling Housing Society, a 
vision for Woolston District Centre is developed, in conjunction 
with traders and local community groups that identifies how 
Woolston District Centre can be revitalised, and funding is sought 
to deliver the vision. 

 

 

 

13) Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

14) Woolston 
Regeneration Plan 
(WRP) completed April 
2010 

Business Rates with the effect that 
there is an actual reduction in 
payment for many local businesses 
‘10/’11 

13) The current FJF has not been a 
full success within Woolston. This 
is in part due to non engagement of 
Freeholders of empty properties. 
Never the less there will be further 
attempts to secure their support 

14) WRP completed in full 
consultation with businesses and 
residents. It has identified an 
ongoing list of actions being 
updated in further consultation 
through residents and businesses 
and the Working Group, members 
being from Swaythling & Hyde 
Housing Associations and SCC 
officers. 

To enhance the vitality and viability of Lordshill District Centre it is 
recommended that: 

15) The consultants appointed to undertake the Lordshill Masterplan 
take into account the best practice in planning for district centres 
(eg as identified by the Association of Town Centre Management 
and others), and best practice employed within New Town 
developments when developing the Lordshill Masterplan. 

16) The consultants appointed to undertake the Lordshill Masterplan 
consult residents fully throughout the Masterplanning process, 
and utilise Sainsbury’s expertise in helping to promote successful 
centres. 

 

15) & 16) 

Paul Nichols 

 

 

15) & 16) 

late 2010 

 

15) & 16) 

These recommendations have 
been incorporated into the Lordshill 
Masterplan work, which is 
underway 

The District Centres Inquiry report was considered by OSMC on 18th 
February 2010 and agreed that the following recommendations 
should be included: 

17) That the possibilities of splitting vacant shop premises within the 

17) Paul 
Mansbridge 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

17) The Councils ownership in 
Portswood, Bitterne Lordshill and 
Woolston is limited and does not 
include retail premises. 
At Shirley the ownership is limited 



 7  

Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date for 
Completion 

Action Taken / Comments 

district centres into a number of smaller retail units or work areas 
be investigated. 

18) That an annual review of the health and potential of the district 
centres be undertaken and the results be presented to the 
OSMC as part of the State of the City report from the Leader. 

 

 

19) That the Cabinet Member for Economic Development request 
that officers investigate an appropriate mechanism or forum for 
traders across the City to exchange ideas and best practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Levenson 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Levenson 

 

 

 

 

18) 2010/11 initial 
monitoring complete 

 

 

 

 

19) To be initiated by 
November 2010 

to the Shirley Centre, and the 
Council does not have any direct 
control on the Retail Units. 
Any work undertaken would require 
the agreement of Private Landlords 
 
18) ED&R Business Plan now 
includes action to monitor the 
number and % of empty retail units 
in the 5 district centres. This will 
enable ED&R to assess the effect 
of their actions. 

19) To create bi- annual meetings 
between traders association 
Chairs, Chamber of Commerce 
members, Business Link/SEEDA, 
Federation of Small Business, 
Assistant Chief Executive for 
Economic Development and 
Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development. These meetings may 
encourage mutually respectful and 
frank exchanges of the 
expectations of local businesses 
and the forum for SCC to express 
their role, statutory obligations and 
realistic intervention with regards to 
business and economic 
development. 

 



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



          ITEM NO: 14 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT    

AUTHOR: Name:  Linda Haitana Tel: 023 8083 3989 

 E-mail: linda.haitana@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None. 

 

SUMMARY 

On 25th March 2010 the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) 
endorsed the recommendations of the Safer Communities Scrutiny Panel following 
their inquiry into how the incidence of domestic violence, including sexual violence 
and so called ‘honour’ based violence, can be reduced, particularly focussing on the 
services for standard and medium risk cases.  Their recommendations were received 
by Cabinet on 19th April 2010. The nine scrutiny inquiry recommendations and the 
Cabinet’s response to them are set out in Appendix 1 of this report to meet the 
requirements in the council’s constitution. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) To approve the Cabinet’s responses as set out in Appendix 1 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. As part of the council’s constitution the Executive need to consider all inquiry 
reports that have been endorsed by OSMC and formally respond to their 
recommendations. 

CONSULTATION 

2. The Southampton Domestic Violence Forum (SDVF) and respective partner 
organisations that are directly affected by the recommendations have been 
consulted.  In addition, the Safe City Partnership has been given the 
opportunity to consider the recommendations.  The Children and Young 
People’s Trust, Economy and Enterprise Board and NHS Southampton City 
were consulted on their relevant recommendations. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

3. None.  

DETAIL 

4. From January to March 2010 the Safer Communities Scrutiny Panel 
undertook a Domestic Violence Inquiry.  OSMC considered the final draft of 
the inquiry report on 25th March 2010 and approved it for submission to the 
Executive.  The scrutiny inquiry, containing nine recommendations, was 



 2

received by the Cabinet on 19th April and this report sets out the formal 
response of the Executive to the recommendations. 

5. The approved objectives of the inquiry were: 

a. To examine the kind and level of support needed for low/medium risk 
cases as well as the high risk cases that have been stabilised 

b. To examine the impact of domestic violence on children and young 
people 

c. To examine ways to improve prevention activities and awareness 
raising on domestic violence, sexual violence and honour based 
violence issues   

6. OSMC considered the inquiry panel’s final draft report at its meeting on 25th 
March 2010.  It resolved that the Safer Communities Scrutiny Panel met its 
terms of reference for the review and agreed that the inquiry report should be 
forwarded to the Cabinet to enable the Executive to formulate its response to 
the recommendations contained within it. 

7. The panel commended the nationally recognised achievements in a city of 
the size of Southampton to reduce domestic violence through strong 
partnerships, even extending outside of the city boundaries where good 
relationships with neighbouring authorities ensure that victims are never 
without refuge.    

8. The panel recognised that significant improvements have been achieved in 
high risk cases with extensive joint-working across the city through the use of 
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARACs) which bring together 
many agencies across the city on each high risk DV case. However, the 
panel agreed that the focus on higher risk cases has led to a gap in provision 
for medium and standard risk cases. 

9. The inquiry’s recommendations set out a number of proposals to support the 
continuing prevention and reduction of domestic violence incidents in the 
city.   

10 Appendix 1 sets out the inquiry recommendations and the associated 
response proposed by the cabinet member, following consultation with 
colleagues and advice from officers and partners.  It is recognised that this 
response is made in the context of recommendations to partnerships in the 
City and thus actions are accepted in principle and on behalf of multiple 
partners not just the Council.   

11. The Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Councillor Smith, has 
been nominated as the lead cabinet member to respond to the scrutiny 
inquiry recommendations. 

12. The recommendations have all been accepted and already are or will be 
implemented.  They include an indication of the timescales for 
implementation. 

13. Recommendations 5 and 6 have been consulted with the Children and Young 
People’s Trust.  The responses to these recommendations have been 
directed by Children’s Services and Learning.  

14. Recommendation 7 requires action from NHS Southampton City; the chief 
executive, Bob Deans, responded to this recommendation.   



 3

15. The response to recommendation 8 includes feedback from the Economy and 
Enterprise Board in relation to raising awareness in the business community.   

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

16. No additional costs were identified during the course of the inquiry. 

Capital 

17. No additional capital costs were identified during the course of the inquiry. 

Revenue 

18. All actions proposed in response to the recommendations within the inquiry 
report can be progressed by re-focussing officer or partners’ time, work 
programmes and existing budgets. 

Property 

19. None 

Other 

20. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

21. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the 
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007. This report is presented in accordance with 
section 7.1 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules which requires the 
Executive to submit its response to inquiry recommendations. 

Other Legal Implications:  

22. None. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

23. The proposals contained within the appended report are in accordance with 
the Council’s Policy Framework and, if implemented, the recommendations 
will help to deliver priorities within Southampton’s Domestic Violence Strategy 
and the Southampton Safe City Partnership Plan. 

 



 4

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Response to Domestic Violence Inquiry recommendations 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. Final report of the Domestic Violence Scrutiny Panel 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing 
document to be Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

 None.  

Background documents available for 
inspection at:  

Corporate Policy and Performance 

Southampton City Council 

1st Floor 

West Wing 

Civic Centre  

Southampton 

SO14 7LY 

KEY DECISION? NO   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES 
AFFECTED: 

All  

 



 

 5

ITEM NO: 14 APPENDIX 1 
EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO DOMESTIC VIOLENCE INQUIRY RECOMMENDATIONS 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTIONS  

Accepted 
or 
rejected 

Current Activity Proposed future action Lead 
agency/ 
partnership 
or officer 

Target 
date for 
completion 

Recommendation 1: The 
Safe City Partnership 
(SCP) should ensure the 
voluntary sector is fully 
involved and part of any 
future solutions to support 
standard/medium risk 
cases. 

 
Accepted   

A report on the domestic violence 
(DV) responses & funding is 
currently being drafted – to include 
an ‘invest to save’ approach; a way 
forward and business case for 
earlier intervention.  This includes 
involvement of the voluntary sector. 

Report to be taken to Safe City 
Partnership and Southampton 
Partnership Delivery Board to agree a 
way forward. 
 
 

Safe City 
Partnership 
and 
Southampton  
Partnership   

Sept 2010 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation 2: The 
SCP should consider how 
the Southampton Domestic 
Violence Forum (SDVF) 
can be better supported 
with leadership and 
direction and have clearer 
links to other partnership 
boards such as the 
Children and Young 
People Trust  

 
Accepted 

A review of links and support 
between the Safe City Partnership 
(SCP) and operational or single 
issue groups including the SDVF is 
underway and will report to SCP 
Performance Management Group 
with recommendations.  This action 
is also included in the 2010/11 SCP 
Plan. 
 
A review of the SDVF structures is 
also underway and this action will 
be integrated into proposals for re-
shaping the forum. Strengthening 
links to the CYP Trust will also 
come within this action. 
 
 
 
 
 

Review of operational group links to 
the SCP will report to chairs of the 
PMG and Executive Group in early 
July.  Recommendations to be 
considered and approved by PMG. 
 
SDVF to establish links to the Health 
& Wellbeing Partnership As part of the 
SDVF structure review SDVF lead 
professionals will be identified to 
attend Southampton’s partnerships.  
Leads will be responsible for providing 
regular updates on work to the above 
partnerships. SDVF minutes will be 
sent to partnership administrators as 
information sharing.   
 

 
SCP/ 
Linda 
Haitana 
 
 
 
 

 
28 July 
2010 
 
 
 
 
July 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 6 of 10

RECOMMENDED 
ACTIONS  

Accepted 
or 
rejected 

Current Activity Proposed future action Lead 
agency/ 
partnership 
or officer 

Target 
date for 
completion 

Recommendation 3: The 
SDVF should agree a 
more coordinated 
approach to key processes 
such as the use of risk 
assessments, training and 
information sharing 

 
Accepted 

Although risk assessments 
(CAADA and DASH models) are 
used by multiple agencies and 
there has been staff training, the 
application of risk assessments is 
not consistent across all service 
areas. SDVF accept the need for 
more coordination and will 
establish a process to identify 
related training needs in the city  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information Sharing at high risk 
level is routinely undertaken but 
SDVF will seek to strengthen 
information used to improve both 
direct case responses and drive 
service delivery. 

Risk assessment training is being 
organised for Family Intervention 
Project (FIP) workers at the end of 
July. Identified FIP workers will then 
be lead professionals on issues of 
domestic violence. SDVF have also 
organised training on talking to people 
about their alcohol use for DV 
services.  DV will also be a stronger 
focus for the Think Family Pathfinder 
in the city and thus strengthen family 
support for DV survivors 
 
SDVF feel that the wider roll-out of 
this risk assessment needs to be a 
gradual process to ensure that high 
risk services receiving referrals can 
manage demand.  
 
A Children & Young People at Risk 
Triage pilot will start in September 
with a view to improving information 
sharing and responses to reports 
completed by the police where 
children or young people are identified 
at a DV (or other) incident.    
A formalised programme for improving 
key processes including training, risk 
assessments and wider information 
sharing will be developed by SCC and 
SDVF – to form part of the SDVF 
Strategy (refresh). 

SDVF 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Police and 
Children 
Services & 
Learning and 
Health 
Visitors 
 
 
SDVF / SCC 

September 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commence 
September 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
December 
2010 
 



 

 7 of 10

RECOMMENDED 
ACTIONS  

Accepted 
or 
rejected 

Current Activity Proposed future action Lead 
agency/ 
partnership 
or officer 

Target 
date for 
completion 

Recommendation 4: 
Agree and share key 
information to provide 
more data at standard and 
medium risk levels across 
the partnership to 
overcome gaps in data.  
This should be supported 
by a programme of 
problem solving analysis to 
better understand the 
reasons and causes of 
high levels of DV reporting 
and hot spots to help 
target stretched resources 
to maximum effect. 

 
Accepted 

SDVF have identified this as an 
area for development and made 
links into the SCP strategic 
assessment process.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The SDVF support the need to 
explore further, evidence of higher 
than average reporting of domestic 
violence in some areas of 
Southampton   

Improved data collection and analysis 
for the SCP will include DV data and 
should lead to improved problem-
solving analysis for the 2010/11 SCP 
annual Strategic Assessment. 
Information collated from the 
specialist courts data, IDVA, MARAC, 
Southampton Police, Southampton 
Women’s Aid and refuges will be part 
of the annual strategic assessment. 
 
Violent crime problem profiles will be 
commissioned by SCP to include 
location data and a DV focus – to also 
specifically address the issues 
identified as data gaps by the Scrutiny 
Inquiry. 

 
SDVF & SCP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCP 
Analysts 

 
December 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 
2010 

Recommendation 5: 
Children and Young 
People’s Services to 
explore the extent and 
options for each school’s 
child protection liaison 
officer (CPLO) to include a 
focus on DV in the 
promotion of healthy 
relationships in the 
curriculum. 
 
 
 
 

 
Accepted 

 
Children’s Services and Learning 
(CSL) have accepted the 
recommendation and confirmed 
that training for CPLOs will include 
issues of domestic violence.  

 
CPLO training to be provided at termly 
meetings. 

 
CSL/  
Alison 
Alexander 
 

 
2010/11 
Ongoing  



 

 8 of 10

RECOMMENDED 
ACTIONS  

Accepted 
or 
rejected 

Current Activity Proposed future action Lead 
agency/ 
partnership 
or officer 

Target 
date for 
completion 

Recommendation 6: 
Awareness of DV issues to 
be raised with the School 
Governor’s Forum with the 
recommendation that Safe! 
Pack and Star projects are 
delivered at school and 
college cluster groups to 
stretch limited resources to 
a wider number of schools. 

 
Accepted 

CSL agree with the 
recommendation to promote SAFE! 
Pack further, along with other 
school and college work in the City. 

Action is to be discussed at 
Governors Forum steering group 
meeting on 15 July, this subject will 
then be added as an agenda item at 
the next full Governors Forum on 7th  
October. 
 
 

SDVF 
members 
and CSL /  
Alison 
Alexander 
 

October 
2010  

 
Recommendation 7: The 
SDVF and Health Service 
are urged to work more 
closely to improve the 
identification of DV in their 
patients and develop 
appropriate pathways for 
responding.  

 
Accepted 

 
This is an area that NHS 
Southampton has already 
prioritised.  Processes are in place 
for early identification of DV in 
relation to children and young 
people. Identification and relevant 
pathways for responding are 
incorporated into service 
specifications for maternity, health 
visiting and school nursing 
services, Walk in centre and other 
out of hours provision. Outcomes 
from this are monitored. Training is 
provided and there are good links 
to the MARAC process.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
There is more work to be done in the 
identification of adults who are at risk 
who are not parents. A working group 
has been established to progress this 
work and an action plan is being 
developed. This will be overseen by 
the Southampton City Primary Care 
Trust Safeguarding governance group 
and will share accountability for 
actions with SDVF. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SDVF & 
 
Lindsay  
Voss/Jaki 
Metcalf 
Designated 
Nurses 
Safeguarding  
NHS 
Southampton 
City 

 
Timescales 
to be set 



 

 9 of 10

RECOMMENDED 
ACTIONS  

Accepted 
or 
rejected 

Current Activity Proposed future action Lead 
agency/ 
partnership 
or officer 

Target 
date for 
completion 

Recommendation 8: The 
Safe City Partnership and 
SDVF should develop and 
agree a communication 
strategy to raise 
awareness of DV more 
widely to communities, 
businesses and partners. 

 
Accepted 

 
Chamber of Commerce agree with 
this recommendation and currently 
use a link to national NHS website 
‘Health at Work’ as a subtle way to 
highlight how to support those 
experiencing DV.  
 
http://www.hampshirechambers.co.uk/
newsdetails.php?id=1421 

 
 
The Council and Safe City 
Partnership have prioritised ‘public 
reassurance’ for multiple 
communications and campaigns in 
2010/11.  DV will form part of this  
activity 

 
To further explore the potential to 
publicise SDVF information material 
on this website and sharing of the 
SDVF newsletter & other local 
material. 
 
SDVF and Police to establish closer 
links with Business partnerships in the 
city e.g. Businesslink to identify ways 
in which local business can support 
awareness of DV and identify ways of 
engaging the private sector in 
reducing the impact of DV on 
employers, as well as supporting 
employees who may be affected by 
DV.  Identified actions to be included 
in the SDVF Strategy. 
 
DV awareness in communities and 
across partners will also form part of 
the SCP communications activities in 
2010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Chamber of 
Commerce & 
SDVF & 
Police 

 
December 

2010 
 
 
 
 
 

By Dec 
2010 



 

 10 of 10 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTIONS  

Accepted 
or 
rejected 

Current Activity Proposed future action Lead 
agency/ 
partnership 
or officer 

Target 
date for 
completion 

 
Recommendation 9:   If 
the Government publishes 
a consultation paper on the 
setting up of a DV 
Perpetrators Register, the 
scrutiny panel which will be 
responsible for scrutinising 
Crime & Disorder matters 
is to be a statutory 
consultee. 

 
Accepted 

 
The new coalition government are 
currently deciding a way forward 
regarding the violence against 
women agenda.  

 
If a national consultation takes place 
SDVF will coordinate the response 
and involve relevant parties. 
 

 
SDVF & SCP  

 
Await 
national 
guidance  

 
 



 ITEM NO: 15  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: WOOLSTON AND ST ANNE'S CONSERVATION 
AREAS APPRAISAL 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLANNING AND SUSTAINABILITY 

AUTHOR: Name:  Kevin White Tel: 023 8083 3192 

 E-mail: kevin.white@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out recommendations for boundary changes to the five Conservation 
Areas in Woolston. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) To consider the representations received in relation to the proposed 
changes to the Woolston Conservation Area. 

 (ii) To approve the ‘Woolston – Southampton Conservation Areas 
Appraisal’ (document in Members Rooms) setting out the changes to 
the Woolston and St. Anne’s road Conservation areas (five in all) for 
development control purposes for all proposals within the 
conservation areas received after 01 August 2010. 

 (iii)  To approve the maps setting out the boundary changes to the 
conservation areas at Appendix 2. 

 (iv) To delegate authority to the Head of Planning & Sustainability 
following consultation with the Solicitor to the Council to make such 
amendments as may be necessary to give effect to the 
recommendations of Cabinet or as otherwise considered appropriate 
and to finalise the draft of the ‘Woolston – Southampton 
Conservation Areas Appraisal’ for publication. 

 (v) To delegate authority to the Solicitor To The Council to give notice of 
the revised conservation Area prior to implementation. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To ensure the future conservation and enhancement of the five Conservation 
areas in Woolston and St. Anne’s Road. 

CONSULTATION 

2. Public Consultation meetings were held on 31 July 2009 and on 3 February 
2010 and produced generally supportive feedback regarding the desirability of 
conserving the area.    

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

3. To leave the conservation area boundaries unchanged.  It is felt that this 
would potentially accelerate the negative changes to the area as a whole, and 



 2

would be detrimental to the character of Woolston. 

DETAIL 

4. In 2009 Conservation Area Appraisals were carried out by HGP Architects in 
the four existing Old Woolston Conservation Areas, and the St. Anne’s 
Conservation Area.  These were carried out as part of the ongoing Appraisal 
programme, which is designed to ensure that all existing Conservation Areas 
in the city have up-to-date appraisals by the end of 2012. 

5. In broad terms the aim of the appraisals is to ensure that information relating 
to the Conservation Areas is correct, that the character of the area is properly 
understood, that historical evidence is presented, and that the existing 
boundaries are still relevant.  Clearly, the latter consideration can result in 
recommendations for expansion or contraction of the boundaries, or for the 
boundaries to remain the same. 

6. The final draft of the Appraisal is available in the Members Room.  It is 
recommended that Cabinet accept the suggested boundary changes for Old 
Woolston 1—3, and St. Anne’s.  No changes are recommended for Old 
Woolston 4. 

7. The work carried out by HGP involved extensive historical research on the 
development of the areas, supplemented by detailed street-by-street surveys, 
which looked at the whole of Old Woolston, not just the existing Conservation 
Areas (see Spatial Analysis map, in the Conservation Area Appraisal for the 
extent of the area considered). 

8. A public meeting was held in St Mark’s Community Hall in July 2009, to 
explain the purpose of the appraisal, and to table preliminary proposals.  This 
was followed by a further meeting in the same venue in February, to table the 
final draft appraisal.  The draft was placed on the Council’s website, and 
copies were also placed at Woolston Library for a four-week consultation 
period. 

9. A total of 17 consultation responses were received, mainly dealing with minor 
typological inaccuracies.  No negative comments were received.  The 
comments and responses are set out in Appendix 1. 

10. Letters will be sent to all residents living within the proposed Conservation 
Areas, inviting them to attend respond direct to the Historic Environment 
Team Leader, and to attend Cabinet if they wished to make formal 
representations. 

11. Appendix 2 shows the new boundaries of the five Conservation Areas. 

12. Old Woolston 1 would be expanded to include additional properties in Obelisk 
Road; Church Road; Garnock Road; Longmore Crescent; Longmore Avenue; 
the former St. Mark’s Primary School and St Mark’s Church (a Grade II Listed 
Building). 

13. Old Woolston 2 would be expanded to include additional properties in 
Hazeliegh Avenue, and Obelisk Road.  Additionally it is proposed that 1a 
Lyndock Place is removed from the area. 

 



 3

14. Old Woolston 3 would be expanded to include the Woolston Library and three 
other properties on Oak Road.  Number 64 Portsmouth Road will be removed 
as it has been demolished. 

15. No changes are suggested for Old Woolston 4. 

16. St. Anne’s Road would be expanded to include number 171. 

17. The 2008 revisions to the General Development Order (GDO), which has 
removed Permitted Development (PD) rights for previously permitted works 
has an impact both on how planning applications within the proposed 
Conservation areas will be assessed, and an influence on the desirability of 
pursuing an article 4 (2) Direction (to remove specific PD rights for residential 
properties).  Additionally, the recent publication of Planning Policy Statement 
5 (PPS 5) and revisions to PPS 3 relating to garden grab will enable local 
planning authorities to better manage change in and adjacent to Conservation 
Areas. 

18. PPS 3, which was changed with immediate effect on 9 June, gives Councils 
the ability to exert greater control over the practice of building on existing 
gardens by redefining gardens as Greenfield rather than Brownfield 
(previously developed) land.  However, it would not on its own prevent a 
developer from demolishing a house and building on the previous footprint. 

19. PPS 5, which came into force in March 2010 has clarified the previous 
guidance on the historic environment.  It uses the all-encompassing term 
‘Heritage Asset’ for all aspects of the historic environment, places greater 
emphasis on understanding the significance of these assets prior to allowing 
change, and has produced clearer guidance on the importance of protecting 
the setting of heritage assets. 

20. However, key changes relating to the management of Conservation Areas are 
contained within the GDO.  This has considerably restricted permitted 
development rights within conservation areas, which previously required the 
imposition of an Article 4 (2) Direction to achieve. 

 

These are the removal of PD rights for: 

• Cladding any part of the exterior of a dwellinghouse 

• Enlargements which would extend beyond the original side elevation 

• Enlargements of more than one storey the extend beyond the rear wall 

• Enlargement consisting of an addition or alteration to the roof 

• Installation, alteration or replacement of a chimney, flue or soil and 
vent pipe where it would either front onto a highway or would be part of 
the principle or side elevation 

• Installation, alteration or replacement of solar photovoltaics or solar 
thermal equipment 

• Any building or enclosure, swimming or other pool within the curtilage, 
required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse 

• The total area of ground of any new build exceeds 50% of the original 
dwellinghouse 



 4

• Anything that is forward of the wall of the principal elevation 

• Any new build that would exceed 4m (in the case of a building with a 
dual pitched roof, or 2.5m if within 2m of the boundary or 3m in any 
other case 

• Any new build where the height of the eaves would exceed 2.5m 

• The installation of microwave antennae (satellite dishes) that faces on 
to and is visible from a highway. 

21. Much of what is set out above are issues that would have normally have been 
covered by an article 4 (2) Direction.  The next phase of this project will be to 
draft a Management Plan for the area, at which time it will also be expedient 
to fully consider the desirability of imposing an article 4 (2) Direction, however 
the Council would at this point only consider serving an Article 4 (2) Direction 
in respect of: 

• Removal or alterations to front boundary walls and gates 

• Conversion of existing front gardens for hard standings 

• Alterations to windows and external doors and the painting of the front 
or side elevations (if visible from the public highway 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

22. N/A 

Revenue 

23. It will be necessary to publish copies of the final, approved Conservation Area 
Appraisal for public reference.  The costs will be kept to a minimum, with the 
Appraisal being published on-line.  However, it is recognised that not all 
residents will have access to a computer, and therefore copies will be made 
available at the local library, and in the central Reference Library.  The 
approximate publication cost is less than £3,000 and can be met from the 
approved Environment and Transport revenue estimates. 

Property 

24. The former St. Mark’s Primary School will be included within the Old Woolston 
1 Conservation Area.  The Building is used as the Woolston Community 
Centre, and is owned by the Council. 

Other 

25. N/A 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

26. S32 of the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservations Areas) Act 1990 
requires Local Authorities to review their areas from time to time and publish 
proposals for preservation and enhancement of conservation areas. The 
proposals in this report are brought forward in accordance with these 
provisions. 

 



 5

Other Legal Implications:  

27. In making changes to conservation areas, the Council is required to have 
regard to the impact of it’s proposals on individuals and communities under 
the Human Rights Act 1998, in particular article 1 of the First Protocol (the 
protection of Property) and Article 8 (right to respect for private and family 
life). The proposals in this report are considered necessary and proportionate 
to meet the needs of the wider community and to preserve and protect the 
community from unsympathetic or inappropriate development in the Woolston 
area. Any interference with individual rights is minimal and justified in the 
circumstances. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

28. The proposals in this report are consistent with the Core Strategy / Local Plan 
saved policies and the overall Local Development Framework. 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

1. Summary of responses from Woolston Conservation Area Consultation 

2. Map setting out proposed extent of Conservation Areas 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. 'Woolston - Southampton Conservation Areas Appraisal' 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at:       

FORWARD PLAN No:  KEY DECISION? No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Woolston 

 



 6

 ITEM NO: 15   APPENDIX 1 
 

Summary of responses from Woolston Conservation 
Area Consultation 

 

 

Comment Response Action 

Text change.  Page 20, 128 
Obelisk Road to 126 

Change to be made Text changed 

Text change.  Show 131 
Obelisk Road as 
‘Residential Multiple 
Occupation’, (page 23) 

Change to be made Text changed 

Similar protection should be 
afforded to the ‘High street’ 
(Victoria Road). 

Victoria Road was 
considered as part of 
the assessment and 
analysis of the area.  
Unfortunately too 
many changes have 
occurred to both the 
built environment and 
the public realm for it 
to be considered for 
inclusion. 

Victoria Road to be 
omitted. 

Agrees that restrictions 
should be placed on future 
development, especially 
with regard to: 

• Loss of front gardens 

• Unsympathetic 
extensions 

• Overdevelopment of 
flats 

Conservation area 
status ensures that 
applications for new 
developments are 
looked at in relation to 
the character 
appraisal.   

None required 

Guidelines should not be 
retrospective 

Agreed None required 

Archery Gardens recreation 
ground mistakenly 
identified as Mayfield Park 
(page 5). 

Change to be made Text to be changed in 
final document 

Mistake in text regarding 
original Lankester and 
Crook chimneys (page 12) 

Change to be made Reference deleted 

12 Oak Road incorrectly 
identified as 2 Oak Road 
(page 14). 

Should be 18 Oak 
Road 

Text changed 



 7

7 Oak Road mis-identified 
as 6 Oak Road 
(Photographic Record of 
Properties) 

 Text to be changed 
prior to publication 

Amend 3.4.1.7, para 2, 
from ‘…state of disrepair of 
the Roynon Dance Centre’ 
to ‘…structural decay of 18, 
Obelisk Road’. 

Change to be made Text changed 

Amend 3.4.2.1 item 1 from 
‘Hazeleigh Road’ to 
‘Hazeleigh Avenue’. 

Should be West Road Text changed 

Amend 47-49 Obelisk Road 
from Late 19th Century to 
Mid 19th Century (page 14). 

Change to be made Text changed 

Amend text to clarify that 
No. 47 front door has been 
obscured by a UPVC porch, 
not replaced by one (page 
14). 

Change to be made Text changed 

Propose for inclusion 53, 
Weston Grove Road  

Weston Grove Road 
was considered as 
part of the assessment 
and analysis of the 
area.  Unfortunately 
too many changes 
have occurred to both 
the built environment 
and the public realm 
for it to be considered 
for inclusion. 

It is recommended that 
this property is 
omitted. 

Propose for inclusion 
119,125,127 Swift Road  

Swift Road was 
considered as part of 
the assessment and 
analysis of the area.  
Unfortunately too 
many changes have 
occurred to both the 
built environment and 
the public realm for it 
to be considered for 
inclusion. 

It is recommended that 
these properties are 
omitted. 

Propose for inclusion 
113,115,129 Swift Road  

Swift Road was 
considered as part of 
the assessment and 
analysis of the area.  
Unfortunately too 
many changes have 

It is recommended that 
these properties are 
omitted 



 8

occurred to both the 
built environment and 
the public realm for it 
to be considered for 
inclusion. 

Propose for inclusion most 
of the houses on the east 
side of Bedford Avenue  

Bedford Avenue was 
considered as part of 
the assessment and 
analysis of the area.  
Unfortunately too 
many changes have 
occurred to both the 
built environment and 
the public realm for it 
to be considered for 
inclusion. 

It is recommended that 
these properties are 
omitted 

 



 9

ITEM NO: 15   APPENDIX 2 
 

Proposed extent of Conservation Areas. 
 

 

 



 10

 

 



 11

 



 12

 



 13

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 ITEM NO: 16  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND 
TRANSPORT AND CABINET MEMBER FOR 
RESOURCES AND WORKFORCE PLANNING 

AUTHOR: Name:  Frances Martin Tel: 023 8083 4693 

 E-mail: frances.martin@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

Not applicable.   

SUMMARY 

This report seeks approval to adopt a Sustainable Procurement Policy to enable the 
Council to have a more robust approach to the sustainable procurement of goods and 
services.  The Policy (Appendix 1) outlines how the Council will meet its needs for 
goods, services, works and utilities in a way that achieves value for money and 
ensures benefits to the economy and society whilst minimizing damage to the 
environment. A Resource Plan (Appendix 2) shows how specific targets in the policy 
will be achieved. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Having had regard to s.2 Local Government Act 2000 and the provisions of the 
Community Strategy: 

 (i) To approve the Sustainable Procurement Policy, as set out in 
Appendix 1, as a framework within which to take forward future 
procurement activities across the Council. 

 (ii) To endorse the Sustainable Procurement Resource Plan (attached 
as Appendix 2) to achieve Level 2 of the UK Flexible Framework by 
April 2011, following a review, progress to Level 3 by April 2012 
should there be no net financial implication.  

 (iii) To approve the Employment and Skills Statement, as set out in 
Appendix 4, to communicate to Council suppliers how they can 
provide additional skills and learning benefits for the community 
through their contracts. 

 (iv) To delegate authority to the Head of Policy and Performance 
(Environment) to make any minor changes to the policy and 
Resource plan following consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Environment  

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To provide a clear policy direction on sustainable procurement across the 
Council and enable us to be in a good position to influence partners and the 
supply chain. 

2. To agree a series of achievable and measureable actions to ensure the 



 2

Council reaches a good practice level of sustainable procurement.  

3. To approve the Employment and Skills Statement to ensure service providers 
and suppliers provide additional social and economic benefits to maximise 
community gain through their contracts. 

CONSULTATION 

4. A draft of this Cabinet report with the policy and resources plan has been 
taken to Chief Officer Management Team, Policy Co-ordinators and 
Resources and Environment and Transport Cabinet Member Briefings for 
discussion. 

5. A number of key officers with expertise in procurement and commissioning 
from across each Directorate have been involved in the development of the 
policy and action plan.   

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. To continue an ad hoc approach to sustainable procurement activities across 
the Council relying on one small team and other committed individuals to 
initiate and implement changes to current practice.  This would result in 
missed opportunities to improve performance in a number of key areas and a 
lack of consistency in policy direction and service delivery. 

DETAIL 

 Background and current position 

7. Sustainable procurement is a key mechanism through which local authorities 
can address social, economic and environmental objectives.  Sustainable 
procurement can deliver benefits to the local community such as,  

• increasing local employment opportunities 

• putting money back into the local economy 

• making the city a better place to live and work through increased 
opportunities, markets and skills 

• reducing carbon emissions from council activities 

• delivering efficiencies 

• managing risk and reputation 

8. The Council currently spends approximately £219m per annum on externally 
sourced goods, services and works.  Approximately 60-65% of spend is on 
contracts or tenders over £100,000 which triggers robust management 
controls.  All spend under £100,000 is directly managed by the Directorates. 
Currently there is little direct central influence over the less than £100,000 
procurements other than the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. There are a 
number of implications associated with this fragmented spend approach 
which include trading with a huge amount of suppliers, significant process 
costs, limited ability to influence and lost saving opportunities. Furthermore, 
there are also a number of public sector procurement specific requirements 
highlighted within ‘The Coalition: our programme for government’  document 
that will be difficult to meet in a decentralised model of procurement. Due to 
this fragmented approach the Council is not achieving the optimum balance 
between the need for information, control and process efficiency, and 



 3

opportunities to achieve economic, social and environmental outcomes are 
often lost.  The Council is therefore progressing, as part of its wider approach 
to procurement, the implementation of a centrally administered purchasing 
model (‘Purchase to Pay’), combined with options for cost effective 
enhancements to the Councils Financial System (Agresso) which will increase 
the systems procure to pay capabilities. 

9. In the 2009 CAA Use of Resources Assessment, sustainable procurement 
was identified as an area for improvement for the Council.  Activities have 
since progressed to develop a clear policy and action plan.  It is 
recommended that Cabinet approve the adoption of the Sustainable 
Procurement Policy (Appendix 1). 

10. The Council adopted a Procurement Strategy in 2009, which committed the 
council to further developing the sustainability elements of the strategy.  The 
adoption of this policy and action plan will help us to deliver against this 
commitment as well as our aspirations set out in the Council’s Sustainability 
Principles.  

11. Sustainable procurement is currently an area of real interest for other public 
and private sector bodies, such as the PCT and Universities, and their 
combined purchasing power is significant. The City Council is well placed to 
drive this agenda forward through working with the Southampton Partnership 
to potentially deliver considerable savings through joint commissioning and 
procurement.  There is also an opportunity to make public sector procurement 
processes in Southampton more open for SMEs and the voluntary sector. 

12. The Council has already achieved some significant sustainable procurement 
outcomes on key council contracts, for example:    

City Depot - 4 apprentices secured; BREEAM Very Good; commitment to 
invite local contractors to quote for the work packages  

Stationary contract - Price matching available for green products to offer at 
same price as standard products 

SCC Academy Regeneration Commitments -12 new Apprenticeships 
created; 40 new work experience placements with Carillion supply chain; 
both Academies will be Carbon Neutral, featuring a range of renewable 
energy solutions including Solar PV, Bio-fuel and ground source heating; 
working with third sector local organisations (e.g. recycling/reuse of 
redundant school furniture and reuse of redundant paint pallets) - these 
commitments come at zero cost to the Council for the life of the project and 
all achieved through one question in the tender documentation. 

Street Lighting PFI – installing a remote monitoring system to enable the 
council to control the lights and reduce carbon emissions – the first of its kind 
in Europe 

Leisure Centre contract - Includes carbon emission reduction targets  

Adopting this policy and resource plan will enable the council to ensure good 
practice is applied consistently across all procurement activity. 

Fairtrade – City Catering refreshments include Fairtrade tea, coffee and 
sugar as standard and opportunities for sourcing of other ethical products are 
sought on a continual basis 



 4

 Activities to date 

13. The policy development has been underpinned by a number of activities over 
the past year, which include: 

• A sustainable procurement workshop held in November 2009 to 
involve council officers in developing a sustainable approach to 
procurement. 

• The establishment of a sustainable procurement project board, the 
members of which include the Head of Policy and Performance 
(Environment), the Assistant Chief Executive (Economic Development 
& Regeneration), the Head of Property and Procurement, and other 
representatives from the Sustainability Team and the Children’s 
Services & Learning Directorate.  

• A review of the Council’s procurement expenditure and key suppliers 

• A sustainable procurement prioritisation exercise to identify high and 
medium risk areas of procurement activity (in terms of their impact on 
sustainability objectives) within each of the council’s top spend 
categories. 

 Priorities 

14. The sustainable procurement prioritisation exercise (Appendix 3) was 
undertaken as a quick assessment to identify high, medium and low impact 
areas of procurement spend against our Sustainability Principles.  From this 
exercise the following priority areas of work have been identified: 

• Work with high impact service areas where there is the greatest room 
for improvement (see Appendix 3 for further details) 

• Address the procurement process for contracts over £100,000 to better 
deliver sustainable outcomes 

• Work in partnership through the Southampton Partnership Delivery 
Board to look across public sector procurement and identify areas of 
opportunity for joint procurement, commissioning and saving money 

• In the longer term address the procurement process for contracts, 
goods and services under £100,000 and work with medium impact 
service areas 

• Influence the supply chain to open up the process for SMEs and the 
voluntary sector and seek to promote a culture of Corporate Social 
Responsibility with our suppliers 

 Policy and targets 

15. The UK Sustainable Procurement Action Plan introduced the Flexible 
Framework as a tool for public sector organisations to measure their 
progress in making sustainable procurement happen.  The Flexible 
Framework is divided into five levels;  

• Level 1 Foundation 

• Level 2 Embed 

• Level 3 Practice 

• Level 4 Enhance 



 5

• Level 5 Lead  

16. A self assessment against the Flexible Framework (see Appendix 1 of the 
Sustainable Procurement Policy) shows that the Council is currently at Level 
1, with Level 2 achieved in some areas.  A Sustainable Procurement 
Resource Plan has been developed (see Appendix 2) to set out priority areas 
of work within the council, and align these to the attainment of various Levels 
against the Flexible Framework.  The recommendation to Cabinet is to 
endorse the Sustainable Procurement Resource Plan and work towards 
achieving Level 2 of the Flexible Framework by April 2011. A review would 
then be undertaken to assess progress and review the outcomes of the 
‘Purchase to Pay’ efficiency review (aimed at delivering improvements and 
tighter controls to managing spend under £100,000) to assess whether it is 
cost effective to move to Level 3 of the flexible framework. 

 Management arrangements 

17. The Sustainable Procurement Policy and Resource Plan implementation will 
be managed as a PM Connect project.  This will ensure a robust monitoring 
process is applied to the roll out of actions.  The Assistant Chief Executive 
(Economic Development & Regeneration) will be the project sponsor and the 
Head of Property and Procurement the project manager. 

18. An expert working group with representation from all Directorates will be set 
up.  The group will be responsible for developing a Sustainable Procurement 
Toolkit to put the policy into practice through our contracts and commissioning 
process.  

 Engaging staff and partners 

19. A staff training programme will be required to embed the principles and 
practice of sustainable procurement across the organisation. Training will 
initially be targeted at procurement staff and Council managers with 
procurement responsibilities.  This training will form part of the Management 
Academy programme. 

20. The project board will work with the Southampton Partnership Delivery Board 
to agree a joint approach to sustainable procurement, sharing good practice 
and looking at joint opportunities to achieve efficiencies and savings. 

 Employment and Skills Statement 

21. The Employment and Skills Statement (Appendix 4) describes the 
requirements and commitment the Council will require from suppliers for 
goods and services to support its priority to improve the employability and 
skills for residents in Southampton. It has been prepared following legal 
advice to ensure the robustness of our systems and pulls together the various 
aspirations and targets as set out in some of the councils other policies and 
plans such as the City of Southampton Strategy and the Children and Young 
People’s plan. 

Service providers and suppliers will be required to contribute towards 
positive social and economic benefits linked to procurement of contracts, 
including targeted employment and skills opportunities. This builds on the 
significant impact the Council has achieved using its Section 106 planning 



 6

powers. 

These contributions will include activities that complement and benefit the 
local labour market and economy by raising skills and enabling local people 
to compete for jobs, with a focus on priority groups such as young people not 
in education, employment or training (NEET), disadvantaged adults and 
residents in priority neighbourhoods. Activities will include new 
Apprenticeships, adult vocational training opportunities, work and diploma 
placements, and education business partnerships with schools and colleges. 

The Employment and Skills Statement (Appendix 4) sets out the local 
economic circumstances and the rationale for seeking contributions and is 
recommended for adoption by Cabinet. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

22. None 

Revenue 

23. A resource plan is included in Appendix 2. This identifies the cost associated 
with achieving each level of the Flexible Framework.  Level 2 is cost neutral 
and can be reached utilising existing resources.   

24. To achieve Level 3 or above, resources will be required. A review will be 
undertaken by April 2011 to assess progress against Level 2 and what the 
cost implications will be to progress to Level 3 and recommendations, such as 
invest to save, will be made on the way to proceed.  

Property 

25. None 

Other 

26. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

27. S.2 Local Government Act 2000 permits the Council to do anything likely to 
improve the economic, social or environmental well being of it’s area 
provided it first has regard to the provisions of the community Strategy. The 
proposals in this report are consistent with and supported by the Community 
Strategy and are considered likely to improve both the economic and 
environmental well being of the area. 

Other Legal Implications:  

28. All procurements entered into by the Council are made pursuant to powers 
contained within s.111 Local Government Act 1972 and / or s.1 Local 
Government (Contracts) Act 1997. Procurements must comply with National 
and EU procurement law, including the National Procurement Strategy and 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 together with associated case law.  

In order to remain compliant with public procurement law, sustainability issues 
need to be objectively justifiable as part of the solution being sought and not 
have a non-discriminatory effect on bidders and their proposed solutions. So, 



 7

for example, it is not appropriate or possible to require ‘localness’ per se or to 
require certain numbers of types of persons (such as apprentices) in a 
bidder’s workforce. Conversely though bidders can be encouraged to 
accommodate [the Council’s] aspirations in terms of sustainability albeit that 
such particular aspect of a bid may not be something which is evaluated to 
the effect of determining a winning bidder. Accordingly, it will be necessary for 
the application of the sustainable procurement policy in [the Council’s] 
procurements themselves to be monitored going forward to ensure that it is 
being used and applied in an appropriate and legally compliant way. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

29. The Sustainable Procurement Policy is in accordance with a number of policy 
framework plans which contain sustainability objectives. In particular it 
contributes towards the City of Southampton Strategy priority to ‘seek more 
sustainable use of resources and energy and source more goods and 
services from local suppliers’.  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. Sustainable Procurement Policy  

2. Sustainable Procurement Resource Plan 

3. Sustainable Procurement Prioritisation Matrix 

4. Employment and Skills Statement within Sustainable Procurement Strategy 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at:       

KEY DECISION? YES   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO: 16 Appendix 1 

 

Sustainable Procurement Policy  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Subject to the requirements of procurement law and the need to ensure that potential 
contractors are treated in a non-discriminatory way, the council will, through its 
procurement activities and using appropriate and effective evaluation techniques, 
strive to: 
 
• Promote use of local products and services 
• Create job opportunities for local people, including NEETS, and increase the 

number of apprentices in employment  
• Address the issue of worklessness through providing training and job 

opportunities 
• Engage effectively with the third sector, SMEs, and HE and FE institutions 
• Influence the supply chain to deliver sustainable procurement 
• Reduce carbon emissions and mitigate the impacts of Climate Change 
• Increase the proportion of renewable energy and the use of energy efficient 

products 
• Increase the percentage of reused, recycled and sustainable or ethically sourced 

materials, resources and products 
• Reduce the percentage of waste to landfill 
• Reduce water use 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The council will meet its needs for goods, services, works and utilities in a 
way that achieves value for money and ensures benefits to the economy 

and society whilst minimizing damage to the environment. 



Page 2 
 

Background 
 
Southampton City Council is committed to achieving value for money and delivering 
economic, environmental and social benefits through our procurement activities.  As 
a major purchasing power in the city, the council intends to improve its sustainability 
performance.  The council’s ambition is to ensure that sustainable procurement is 
being consistently undertaken in practice across the organisation. 
 
Through encouraging staff, suppliers and contractors to follow more sustainable 
procurement practices, this can be achieved.  Sustainable Procurement need not 
cost more.  As part of an improved procurement process which questions the need to 
spend, cuts out waste, seeks innovative solutions and is delivered by well trained 
professionals, sustainable procurement will reduce rather than add to public 
spending in both the short and long term.  
 
The UK Sustainable Procurement Action Plan defines Sustainable Procurement as a 
process where organisations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities 
in a way that achieves value for money on a whole life basis - in terms of generating 
benefits not only to the organisation, but also to society and the economy, whilst 
minimising damage to the environment.   
 
The public sector needs to procure more sustainably in order to offer real value for 
money in the long term and to ensure wider benefits are achieved.  Sustainability 
cannot be driven by procurement alone and wider ownership needs to be gained 
across the Council particularly in terms of those Officers that commission goods, 
services and works and develop specifications at all contract value levels. 
 
The Council’s Sustainable Procurement Policy and Action Plan underpin the 
Sustainability Principles, which are:   
 
1. Protect and preserve natural resources 
2. Take account of sustainable procurement and budgeting 
3. Reduce energy consumption and waste production 
4. Create vibrant and safe places 
5. Reduce traffic and the impact of transport on the environment 
6. Maintain a vibrant city economy 
7. Involve people in decision-making  
8. Promote health and healthy living 
9. Develop people and communities 
10. Reduce our impact on the climate and promote environmental justice 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 
 

Why do we need sustainable procurement? 
There are a number of national, regional and local drivers for sustainable 
procurement, as illustrated in Figure 1 below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Figure 1 Drivers for the Sustainable Procurement Policy  
 
 
 

Southampton City Council 

Council 

Sustainable Procurement 

Procurement 

Policy Statement 

Southampton City 

Council 

Procurement Strategy 

City of Southampton 

Strategy & 

Southampton 

Partnership 

Southampton City 

Council 

Sustainable 

Procurement 

PUSH Sustainable Procurement 

Procurement 

(Under Development) 

National Sustainable 

Procurement Action Plan 

UK Sustainable 

Development Strategy 

Carbon Reduction 

Commitment (CRC) 

Contractors,  Suppliers  

& the supply chain 



Page 4 
 

Appendix 1 SCC Flexible Framework Position 

 
Highlighted sections show measures already achieved. 

 

 Foundation - Level 1 Embed Level - 2 Practice Level - 3 Enhance Level - 4 Lead Level - 5 

People 

Sustainable procurement champion 
identified. Key procurement staff 
have received basic training in 
sustainable procurement principles. 
Sustainable procurement is 
included as part of a key employee 
induction programme. 

All procurement staff have 
received basic training in 
sustainable procurement 
principles. Key staff have 
received advanced training on 
sustainable procurement 
principles. 

Targeted refresher training on 
latest sustainable procurement 
principles. Performance objectives 
and appraisal include sustainable 
procurement factors. Simple 
incentive programme in place. 

Sustainable procurement included 
in competencies and selection 
criteria. Sustainable procurement 
is included as part of employee 
induction programme. 

Achievements are publicised and used 
to attract procurement professionals. 
Internal and external awards are 
received for achievements. Focus is on 
benefits achieved. Good practice is 
shared with other organisations. 

Policy, Strategy & 
Communications 

Agree overarching sustainability 
objectives. Simple sustainable 
procurement policy in place 
endorsed by CEO. Communicate to 
staff and key suppliers. 
 

Review and enhance sustainable 
procurement policy. In particular 
consider supplier engagement. 
Ensure it is part of a wider 
sustainable development 
strategy. Communicate to staff, 
suppliers and key stakeholders. 

Augment the sustainable 
procurement policy into a strategy 
covering risk, process integration, 
marketing, supplier engagement, 
measurement and a review 
process. Strategy endorsed by 
CEO. 

Review and enhance the 
sustainable procurement strategy, 
in particular recognising the 
potential of new technologies. Try 
to link strategy to EMS and 
include in overall corporate 
strategy. 

Strategy is: reviewed regularly, 
externally scrutinised and directly linked 
to organisations’ EMS. The sustainable 
procurement strategy recognised by 
political leaders, is communicated 
widely. A detailed review is undertaken 
to determine future priorities and a new 
strategy is produced beyond this 
framework. 

Procurement 
Process 

Expenditure analysis undertaken 
and key sustainability impacts 
identified. Key contracts start to 
include general sustainability on the 
basis of value for money, not lowest 
price. Procurers adopt quick wins. 
 

Detailed supplier expenditure 
analysis undertaken, key 
sustainability risks assessed and 
used for prioritisation. 
Sustainability is considered at an 
early stage in the procurement 
process of most contracts. Whole 
life cost analysis adopted. 

All contracts are assessed for 
general sustainability risks and 
management actions identified. 
Risks managed throughout all 
stages of the procurement process. 
Targets to improve sustainability 
are agreed with key suppliers. 

Detailed sustainability risks 
assessed for high impact 
contracts. Project/contract 
sustainability governance is in 
place. A life-cycle approach to 
cost/impact assessment is 
applied. 

Life-cycle analysis has been undertaken 
for key commodity areas. Sustainability 
key performance indicators agreed with 
key suppliers. Progress is awarded or 
penalised based on performance. 
Barriers to sustainable procurement 
have been removed. Best practice 
shared with other organisations. 

Engaging Suppliers 

Key supplier spend analysis 
undertaken and high sustainability 
impact suppliers identified. Key 
suppliers targeted for engagement 
and views on procurement policy 
sought. 
 
 

Detailed supplier spend analysis 
undertaken. General programme 
of supplier engagement initiated 
with senior management 
involvement. 

Targeted supplier engagement 
programme in place, promoting 
continual sustainability 
improvement. Two way 
communication between procurer 
and supplier exists with incentives. 
Supply chains for key spend areas 
have been mapped. 

Key suppliers targets for intensive 
development. Sustainability audits 
and supply chain improvement 
programmes in place. 
Achievements are formally 
recorded. CEO involved in the 
supplier engagement programme. 

Suppliers recognised as essential to 
delivery of organisations’ sustainable 
procurement strategy. CEO engages 
with suppliers. Best practice shared with 
other/peer organisations. Suppliers 
recognise they must continually improve 
their sustainability profile to keep the 
clients business. 

Measurements & 
Results 

Key sustainability impacts of 
procurement activity have been 
identified. 
 

Detailed appraisal of the 
sustainability impacts of the 
procurement activity has been 
undertaken. Measures 
implemented to manage the 
identified high risk impact areas. 

Sustainability measures refined 
from general departmental 
measures to include individual 
procurers and are linked to 
development objectives. 

Measures are integrated into a 
balanced score card approach 
reflecting both input and output. 
Comparison is made with peer 
organisations. Benefit statements 
have been produced. 

Measures used to drive organisational 
sustainable development strategy 
direction. Progress formally 
benchmarked with peer organisations. 
Benefits from sustainable procurement 
are clearly evidenced. Independent audit 
reports available in the public domain. 



ITEM NO: 16 Appendix 2  
 

Sustainable Procurement Resource Plan June 2010 
 

Action Timescale and Milestones Measures of success Financial 
and 
Resource 
requirements 

Responsible 
officer 

Short term actions/level 2 of the flexible framework 

Adopt 
Sustainable 
Procurement 
Policy  

• Policy and action plan adopted at 
Cabinet  

• Flexible framework and action plan 
agreed 

• July 2010 

Cabinet report approved Officer time FM 

Develop Toolkit • Develop a toolkit for officers – simple 
guide to effective contract management 
and evaluation taking into account SP 
(include example method statements; 
tendering and contract clauses; bid 
assessment criteria; evaluation and 
monitoring guidance) 

• Highlight best practice and case studies 

• Network of key council officers who have 
experience of contracting and 
commissioning to share learning and 
best practice  

• Dec 2010 

Intranet based toolkit 
developed and launched 
Guidelines and checks 
built into PM Connect at 
key gateways 
Regular evaluation 
taking place 
  
 

Meet within 
existing 
resources – 
officer time 

DB 

Training • All staff receive training in sustainable 
procurement  

• Include information on Sustainable 
Procurement (SP) in induction 
programme and contract procedure rules 

Training included as a 
module in Management 
Academy 
On-line induction 
programme and contract 

Allocation of 
one of the 
annual 
Management 
Academy 

JS/FM  



SPresourceplan/v1/FM/0610 2 

• Senior Managers conference and 
breakfast briefing to be held 

• Sustainable procurement workshops to 
be held for key procurement staff 

• April 2011 

procedure rules 
amended to reflect new 
policy 
Programme of 
briefings/workshops 
agreed 

modules to 
SP 
Can be met 
within existing 
resources and 
staff time 

Supplier 
workshop 

• Key suppliers targeted for engagement 
and views and sharing best practice 
through a workshop 

• Work with Southampton Partnership 
Delivery Board (SPDB) and local 
business community to engage suppliers 
on key issues 

• Dec 2010 

Workshop held and well 
attended 
Agree programme of 
work with the SPDB to 
further develop ideas 

Cost of 
workshop and 
associated 
admin to be 
met from 
existing 
budgets 
Expert officer 
input will be 
necessary.  

JS/DB 

Address 
contracts and 
commissioning 
over £100k and 
high impact 
areas 

• Identify a programme for managing 
contracts and commissioning over £100k 
in areas with the potential for highest 
impact and improvement  

• Work with officers in areas of highest 
impact to understand the issues and 
identify opportunities for improvement in 
a timely and cost effective way (i.e. when 
contract comes up for renewal) 

• Support officers to prepare tendering and 
contract documents and bid assessment 
criteria 

• April 2011 onwards 

PM Connect gateways 
have trigger points built 
in  
Capita delivering against 
our policy 
Evaluation of contracts 
and spend identifies 
areas where 
improvement are 
coming through  

Some of this 
can be met 
within existing 
resources 
through 
officer time 
 

JS 

Whole life cost • Review and understand the implications Decision made about Met within JS 



SPresourceplan/v1/FM/0610 3 

analysis 
adopted 

of whole life cost analysis for the council 
and decide if it is the right approach to be 
adopted 

• April 2011 

approach  existing staff 
resources 
(Finance, 
procurement 
and 
sustainability) 

Undertake 
Review  

• Assess progress against achieving Level 
2 of the Flexible Framework 

• Assess the outcomes of the ‘Purchase to 
Pay’ efficiency review and agree how this 
can be used to help drive further benefits 
from SP  

• Identify whether there is a need for an 
‘Invest to Save’ post or other resources 
necessary to drive forward the work to a 
Level 3 and push forward the partnership 
and supply chain working and make the 
appropriate recommendations to 
Cabinet. The aim is to be cost neutral. 

• April 2011 
 

Level 2 of the Flexible 
Framework achieved 
Agree next steps and 
levels of resources 
needed to drive the 
agenda forward with 
recommendations to 
Cabinet 

Meet within 
existing 
resources 

JS/FM 

Medium term/level 3 of the flexible framework; contracts under £100k 

Staff Awareness • Advanced training for key procurement 
staff  

• Performance objectives and appraisals 
include sustainable procurement factors  

• April 2012 

Management Academy 
module updated to 
reflect changes in 
council activity  
Targeted training for key 
staff 
Staff actively managing 
SP as part of their ‘day 

£TBC  JS 



SPresourceplan/v1/FM/0610 4 

job’ 

Strategy • SP policy integrated and embedded into 
the broader procurement strategy when it 
is revised in 2012  

• April 2012 

The procurement 
strategy for the council 
becomes the 
sustainable procurement 
strategy in one 
seamless document  

Meet within 
existing 
resources 

JS 

Address 
contracts and 
commissioning 
under £100k 
and 
medium/low 
impact areas 

• Detailed understanding of areas of spend 
and how best to support managers to 
make sustainable procurement choices  

• April 2013 

A programme of SP 
improvements and 
agreed outcomes in 
place 

£TBC JS 

Supply chain 
management 

• Develop a partnership approach to SP 
and produce a shared guidance/toolkit 
on how to apply the SP principles to be 
rolled out with the SPDB 

• Identify resources to deliver a detailed 
mapping and assessment of the supply 
chain, focussing on ethical procurement 

• Work with local businesses and focus 
efforts on enabling local SME’s and the 
voluntary sector to access our 
procurement processes 

• April 2012 onwards 

Guidance and toolkit 
agreed with SPDB 
Resources identified 
and programme of 
activity agreed  

£TBC DB 

 



ITEM NO: 16 Appendix 3  
Sustainable Procurement Prioritisation Matrix 

 

January 2010 

 

Sustainability Principles  

Top areas of procurement spend in the City Council (some categories have been sub-divided for ease of assessment) 

C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 

A
d
u
lt
 H

ea
lt
h
 

&
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

eo
p
le

 

P
ro

f 
&

 

B
u
si

n
es

s 

C
h
ar

it
ie

s 
&

 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

E
n
er

g
y,

 F
u
el

, 

W
at

er
 

H
o
u
si

n
g
 

F
le

et
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

C
lie

n
t 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

S
ta

ff
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

P
u
b
lic

 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

IT
  

S
ch

o
o
ls

 

O
ff

ic
e 

&
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

 
Natural Resources 
 

High Low Med Low Med Med Low High High High High Low High Med 

 
Energy & Waste 
 

High Low Low Low Low High Low High Med Low High High High Low 

 
Vibrant places 
 

High Med Med Low High Med Low High Med Low Med High High High 

 
Transport & Traffic 
 

High Med Med Low Low High High High High High High Med High Low 

 
Economy 
 

High High High Med High Med High Med Med Low Med Med High Low 

 
Involving People 
 

High High High Low High Low Low Low High Low High Low High Low 

 
Healthy Living 
 

High High High Low High  Low Low High High Low High High High Low 

 
People & Communities 
 

High High High Med High Low Med Low Med Low Med Low High Low 

 
Climate Change 

 
High Low Low Low Low High Low High High High High High High Low 

The assessment of priority (low, medium or high) is based on: 

• Scope for improvement (what could be achieved if no barriers) 

• Size of impact on the sustainability principle 

• Ability to influence (including cost, clarity & flexibility of contracts) 

 



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



ITEM NO: 16 Appendix 4  
 

Employment and Skills Statement within 
Sustainable Procurement Strategy 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 This statement describes the requirements and commitment the city 
council will place upon suppliers for goods and services to support its 
priority to improve the employability and skills for residents in 
Southampton. It will form part of the suppliers contractual agreement 
entered into with the local authority. This builds on the good practice 
the authority has developed in using its Section 106 Planning powers 
to support employment and skills on major development schemes in 
the city. It will relate initially to projects and programmes procuring 
construction services, with the intention to expand to other service 
categories, as part of sustainable procurement strategy approach. 

 
2. Objective of the Statement 
 
2.1 Two of the city council’s six key priorities are relevant to the 

Employment and Skills Statement: 
- To get the city working and, 
- Investing in education and training 
And it seeks to increase the employment and skills levels of city 
residents where possible. This priority is reflected in several policy 
documents including: 
 
City of Southampton Strategy 
SO1 - People Proud of Southampton and making a Positive 
Contribution 
SO2 - Learning and Innovation at its heart 
SO3 - A Dynamic Business Environment 

 
Children and Young People’s Plan 
Priority 5: Many more of our children and young people will enjoy, 
actively engage with and achieve well at school. 
Priority 8: Many more of our young people will successfully achieve 
the right skills and qualifications needed for their future economic 
independence. 
Priority 9: We will significantly reduce the number of children and 
young people living in poverty. 

 
Southampton Economic Development Plan,  
Priority One: To increase educational attainment, skills qualifications 
and employment progression 
Priority Two: To reduce worklessness and improve employability 
 
Southampton Local Regeneration Strategy, Priority 1 of which is  
Economic Inclusion 
-Tackle worklessness, improve skills and employability and  



 2

- Promote financial inclusion, mitigating poverty and maximise incomes  
 
Southampton Adult Learning and Skills Plan vision is; ’to reduce the 
number of city residents with low skills, narrow the skills gap of 
Southampton residents against their counterparts, and increase 
residents’ employability’. 
 
The 14-19 plan for Southampton includes the following relevant 
priorities: 
 - strengthening employer engagement and work-related learning 
provision to prepare young people for the world of work 

- improving the curriculum and the range of learning  opportunities 
 

2.2 The city council is also a member of the sub-regional Partnership for 
Urban South Hampshire (PUSH), a grouping of 11 local authorities 
covering this area. It has developed and agreed a Skills for 
Employability and Growth Strategy in 2009, which sets out a vision 
that by 2026 the PUSH area will be a highly productive and dynamic 
economy encouraging a cohesive and prosperous society driven by a 
talented and growing workforce. Learning and skills development will 
play a driving role in increasing productivity and reducing economic 
inactivity by raising workforce skills. 

 
2.3 Within our Local Area Agreement 2008-2011, there are two key 

outcomes we are seeking to achieve: 
 

Key Outcome 2 – to increase the enjoyment, aspirations and 
achievement of all children and young people living in the city 

 
Key Outcome 11 – To increase employment opportunities and 
choice for residents with a particular focus on individuals living 
within priority areas which have the lowest labour market 
positions and reducing economic inactivity and unemployment for 
all residents who are experiencing barriers to employment (in 
support of sub-regional outcome 1 of the PUSH strategy) 
 
The Local Area Agreement has a number of key targets that relate to 
employment and skills which the city council and its partners are 
seeking to improve, as indicated in the main Sustainable Procurement 
policy document. 

 
3. Backdrop to the policies 

 
3.1 The prioritisation of employment and skills of residents in the city is 

born out by the statistics for employment, skills and worklessness . The 
information below provides a summary of the situation on these 
agendas for the city. 

 
3.2 The University of Portsmouth undertook an analysis of worklessness 

across Southampton in 2008 and 2009. They describe worklessness in 



 3

two ways; those of working age who are described as economically 
inactive, and those who are claiming out of work benefits. The first 
method takes the broad view as measured by the Annual Population 
Survey 2009 which is based on a sample of the city’s residents. This 
highlighted that: 

• Southampton has nearly 33,900 working age residents who can be 
described as economically inactive 

• 7,100 residents are unemployed but actively seeking work 

• The city has about 40,000 working age people who are not 
participating in the labour market, or just over 25% of the working 
age population 

 
3.3 When measured in terms of actual claimants of out of work benefits, 

the level of worklessness is 19,720 as at May 2009, or 12.5% of the 
working age population. 
 

3.4 The analysis of claimants across the city, when mapped across the 
Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs), demonstrated that there are a 
group of 13 localities  with very high levels of worklessness, or 
‘hotspots’, as can be seen in the map below. These localities are those 
with claimant levels of 24% or above of the working age population. 
Such high levels of worklessness are closely aligned with areas of high 
deprivation and social housing estates in the city. The highest level of 
out of work benefit claimants at LSOA level is located in the South East 
corner of the city where over 1/3rd of the working age population is 
claiming out of work benefits. 

 

 
3.5 In terms of direct out of work benefit claimants in the city, the table 

below demonstrates the changes in claimant levels since 2002. This 

Average number of out-of-work benefit claimants

per 1,000 head of working age population

237 to 362  (13)

211 to 237   (7)

100 to 211  (59)

50 to 100  (49)

16 to 50  (18)



 4

seven year timespan reveals that the city witnessed a small but steady 
decline in claimant levels until 2005, while between 2006 – 2008, the 
number of claimants was relatively stable at just over 17,000. However, 
during 2009 there was a steep increase in Job Seekers’ Allowance 
claimants which lead to a rise of over 15% in overall claimants. This 
was largely driven by the recession but also the Welfare Reform 
agenda. The other two key claimant groups of Incapacity Benefit and 
Income Support claimants declined in numbers. 

 

 
 
The impact of the recession 

3.6 Southampton, in common with the rest of the country, has seen 
significant rises in unemployment levels in the city from autumn 2008 
when the credit crunch began to impact on businesses and investment. 

 
Since October 2008, the level of Jobseekers Allowance claimants rose 
from 3,832 (2.4%) to currently 5,887 (3.7%), as at April 2010 peaking at 
4.1% in December 2009. 

NEETS 
3.7 The level of 16-18 year olds not in Education, employment or training 

is high, just over 602 young people as at November – January 2009/10. 
The City Council agreed an action plan last year in order to make 
significant inroads on this number, as Southampton was recognised as 
a NEET ‘hotspot’ in the South East region. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Skills  
 



 5

  
% of all working 
age 

% of males 
(working age) 

% of females (working 
age) 

NVQ4+ 27 25.9 28.3 

NVQ3 18.9 20.6 16.9 

Trade 
Apprenticeships 

3.8 6.1 1.1 

NVQ2 14.9 11.3 19.1 

NVQ1 17 14.7 19.7 

Other Qualifications 8.1 11.6 4.1 

No Qualifications 10.3 9.9 10.7 

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey 2008 

 
3.8 The Learning and Skills Council Annual Business Plan 2008/09 

indicated that 1 in 10 working age residents in Hampshire and the 
Isle of Wight had no qualifications, whilst in Southampton this figure 
was higher, at 12%. The Partnership for Urban South Hampshire Skills 
for Employability and Growth Strategy noted that, at the time of the last 
census (2001), 15,400 economically inactive Southampton residents 
had no qualifications, of which 2,200 were aged 16-24. 

 
Attainment 

3.9 While school attainment at 16 has been improving in Southampton, it is 
still below the national average. For 2009 academic year the GCSE 
results for those gaining 5+ A-C grades including English and maths 
was 45.4%. For those schools serving the more deprived Priority 
Neighbourhoods of Southampton, this attainment rate was lower, at 
34.3%. 
 

4. Supporting Employment and Skills through procurement 
 

4.1 This strategy covers a wide range of skills and employment areas that 
could be supported by suppliers as an added value benefit through the 
purchase of services and works that relate to construction categories. 
It sets out the process by which the city council will ensure that skills 
development and employment are integrated by suppliers and/or their 
supply chain, within procurement contracts.  

 
4.2 It is recognised that the construction works and services purchased by 

the city council vary, and suppliers are not always based within the 
city. Therefore, what is possible to be achieved in terms of employment 
and skills delivery will also vary. The tendering process requires 
suppliers and contractors to identify what measures and outputs they 
are able to support within the contract as part of an Employment and 
Skills Plan (ESP), suggest any enhancements to theses outputs, and 
to provide a Method Statement on how they will be delivered. The 
framework for suppliers includes a range of activities to be supported. 
The city council is utilising the benchmarks provided by the National 
Skills Academy for Construction – Client Based Approach which sets 



 6

minimum standards against theses options on the basis of contract 
value. These can be seen in Annex A. This strategy covers four key 
categories; new entrants, existing workforce, skills culture, supply 
chain support. Within these there are a number of opportunities the 
suppliers may select, as listed below. 

 
New Entrants 
1. School / college / university site visits  
2. School workshops  
3. University research  
4. Work experience 14 – 16 Years (including Diplomas) 
5. Work experience 16+ years (including for disabled residents and    
young people not in education, employment or training) 
6. Apprentices – existing  
7. Apprentices – project initiated  
Existing workforce 
8. Health & safety tests  
9. National Vocational Qualifications  
10. Construction Skills Certification Scheme (CSCS) cards 
Skills Culture 
11. Short courses  
12. Progression into employment 
Supply Chain support 
13. SME and BME supply chain and sub-contractor development 
14. Local economic impact and benefit 

 

Additional employment and skills measures that will support the 
Employment & Skills Strategy 
The tenders should set out clearly what additional employment and 
skills support they would be willing to provide and / or suggest how 
their approach to delivering against the areas outlined within the ESP 
template will provide additional value.  Templates for use by suppliers 
or contractors can be seen in Annex B. 

 

4.3 The principle approach the city council will use to assess the 
contribution to employment and skills each supplier can deliver, as a 
an added value benefit and separate from the core services being 
procured, will be through the completion of an ESP by the each 
supplier/contractor submitting a tender as well as a Method Statement 
detailing how the plan is to be implemented.  

 
4.4 The requirement for suppliers and contractors to supply and comply 

with this strategy will be identified at each stage of the tendering 
process, from formal advert or notification of the contract opportunity, 
pre qualification stage, and to provide an outline ESP and Method 
Statement at the full ITT stage, although these will not be evaluated as 
part of the core service procurement. 

 
5. Employment and Skills Plan Method Statement 

 



 7

5.1 Tenders are required to include a Method Statement indicating how 
they intend to deliver the ESP. The Method Statement should be 
restricted to 700 words and clearly set out the proposed approach for 
delivering skills development against the output categories covering the 
following areas: 

 
i) who in the organisation will be responsible for managing the training 
scheme. 

ii) how the target outputs as set out in the Employment & Skills Plan will 
be delivered. 

iii) how any health & safety issues will be managed. 
iv) what actions will be taken to ensure compliance by the trade 
contractors working on the project. 

v) how compliance will be managed and monitored with respect to the 
contactor’s trade suppliers and/or sub-contractors. 

 

6. Monitoring of Employment and Skills Plans 
 

6.1  Achievement and delivery of the agreed Employment and Skills Plan 
activities and outputs will be monitored on a monthly basis for the 
period of the contract and up to post project review stage where this is 
appropriate. The supplier/contractor will provide a return each month 
showing the actual employment and skills outputs delivered against the 
targeted outputs. These will be reviewed by the city council’s appointed 
Contract Manager or relevant Employment and Skills expert within the 
authority. 

 
 



 8

Annex A Benchmark outputs for contract values up to £20 million and for those between £10 – 100 million 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 9

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 10 

 
Annex B Template for Employment & Skills Plan 
 

 
 
 
 



 11 

Employment & Skills Matrix 

 
CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 

PEOPLE 
SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

A  
16-17yr old 
NEETS 
(Not in Education 
Employment or Training) 

 

      

B 
18-19 yr old 
NEETS 
  
 

      

C 
Unemployed 
adults 
 
 

      

D 
Develop closer 
relationship with 
School and/FE 
College 

      

E 
Teacher & 
Lecturer 
awareness & 
development 

      

F 
14-16yr Groups 
Incl Pre-NEET 
 
 

      



 12 

CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 
PEOPLE 

SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

G 
16-20+yr olds 
involved in E2E 
(Entry to Employment) 
& NEET 

      

H 
18-19yr olds in 
FE. 
Site 
 

      

I 
16-20+yr olds in 
FE and HE  
 
 

      

J 
Apprentice – 
existing 
 
 

      

K 
Apprentice – 
project  initiated  
 
 

      

L 
Apprentice 
Portfolio Support 
in partnership 
with other 
companies. 
 

      

M       



 13 

CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 
PEOPLE 

SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

Health and 
safety tests 

N 
Construction 
Skill Certification 
Scheme (CSCS 
Cards) 

      

O 
National 
Vocational 
Qualifications 

      

P 
Short Courses 
 
 

      

Q 
Progression into 
Employment 
 
 

      

R 
 
 
 

      

S 
 
 
 

      

T 
 
 
 

      

 



 14 

 
 
 
Indicative program of work experience for unemployed adults and / or NEETS  
 
 
  

Day 1 Day2 Day 3 Day 4 

 
Arrive on site 
 
Site safety  induction 
and tour of the site 
 
Questions and 
answers 
 
Vocational Skills 
Certification 
 

 
Practical / Site lay out 
activity day 

 
Practical day 

  
Vocational Skills 
Certification 
 
 
 
 
 
Questions and 
Answers 
 
Register with a labour 
agency 
 
Closedown 

 
Notes: 

 
 

 
 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 15

 
 

Employment and Skills Management Plan  
 
 

updated 4th June 2010 
 

Site:    ____________      
 

Client- _____________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This document forms the developer’s response to sections  __________           
of the contract agreement between   _____________   and Southampton City 
Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 16

Index 
 
 
 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 17

 
1. Introduction 

 
In accordance with the terms of the obligation, this Employment and Skills 
management plan provides details of the objectives and mechanisms of how 
this project will promote the skills and training of the local labour market in 
respect to both the construction phase and occupation of the building.   
 

 
2. The Development 

 
The development of the _________________________will consist of 
______________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________ 
 
The total duration of construction will be approximately __ weeks beginning on 
the __________. 

 
3. Objectives 
  
The objectives of the employment and training initiatives plan are to; 
 

§ demonstrate the use of local labour from within the developer’s project 
team and within the company, 

§ where economically and practically feasible, to procure goods and 
services from contractors, sub-contractors and suppliers located 
_________to support the employment of the local community, 

§ demonstrate the recruitment and training opportunities within the 
contractors company 

§ provide opportunities for local residents to access jobs created during 
the construction phase of the development and subsequent occupation, 

§ reduce economic inactivity in the local area, and 
§ Support the development of skills within the local community  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 18

 
4. How ____________ aim to achieve the objectives of the Employment 
and Skills Management Plan 

 

labour 

 

Procurement of goods and services  

 

Subcontractors  

 

Recruitment and Training of staff 

 

Supporting the development of skills within subcontractors  

 

Provide opportunities for local residents to access Employment and 
Skills provision 

 
 

 
Mechanisms for achieving the objectives of the plan 

 

Relationships with local schools and FE Colleges  

 
 

16+ year old E2E (entry to employment) or NEET  

 
 

Unemployed adult training and work experience  

 
 

 
Please see the Employment and Skills matrix contained in Appendix __ for 
further details of the opportunities created by this project. 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 19

 

 

 Meeting the objectives- End User/Occupation Phase; 

 

Personnel Strategy 

 
 
 

Training and Development Opportunities 

 
 
 
 

Work Experience 

 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 20

Project Team Addresses; 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 21

Appendix __; 
Local Agencies used  
 
 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 22 

Appendix __; 
Local Labour Agencies Used  
 
 
 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 23

 
 
Appendix __; 
Internal Training Courses 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 24 

Appendix __; 
Training Matrix 

 Employment & Skills Matrix 
 

CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 
PEOPLE 

SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

A  
16-17yr old 
NEETS 
(Not in Education 
Employment or Training) 

 

      

B 
18-19 yr old 
NEETS 
  
 

      

C 
Unemployed 
adults 
 
 

      

D 
Develop closer 
relationship with 
School and/FE 
College 

      

E 
Teacher & 
Lecturer 
awareness & 
development 

      



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 25 

CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 
PEOPLE 

SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

F 
14-16yr Groups 
Incl Pre-NEET 
 

      

G 
16-20+yr olds 
involved in E2E 
(Entry to Employment) 
& NEET 

      

H 
18-19yr olds in 
FE. 
Site 
 

      

I 
16-20+yr olds in 
FE and HE  
 
 

      

J 
Apprentice – 
existing 
 
 

      

K 
Apprentice – 
project  initiated  
 
 

      

L       



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 26 

CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 
PEOPLE 

SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

Apprentice 
Portfolio Support 
in partnership 
with other 
companies. 
 

M 
Health and 
safety tests 

      

N 
Construction 
Skill Certification 
Scheme (CSCS 
Cards) 

      

O 
National 
Vocational 
Qualifications 

      

P 
Short Courses 
 
 

      

Q 
Progression into 
Employment 
 
 

      

R 
 
 

      



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 27 

CATEGORY ACTIVITY PERIODS No OF 
PEOPLE 

SUPERVISION Dates NOTES 

 

S 
 
 
 

      

T 
 
 
 

      

 
 

Indicative program of work experience for unemployed adults and / or NEETS  
 
 
  

Day 1 Day2 Day 3 Day 4 

 
Arrive on site 
 
Site safety  induction 
and tour of the site 
 
Questions and 
answers 
 
Vocational Skills 
Certification 
 

 
Practical / Site lay out 
activity day 

 
Practical day 

  
Vocational Skills 
Certification 
 
 
 
 
 
Questions and 
Answers 
 
Register with a labour 
agency 
Closedown 



__________________________ 
Employment and Skills Management Plan 

 -  - 28 

 
Notes: 

 
 



 ITEM NO:17  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: CHANGES TO EXISTING REVENUE AND CAPITAL 
BUDGETS 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

14 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND 
WORKFORCE PLANNING 

AUTHOR: Name:  Rob Carr Tel: 023 80 83 2708 

 E-mail: Rob.Carr@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

NOT APPLICABLE 

SUMMARY 

Since the Council set its 2010/11 budget in February 2010, the Country has seen a 
continued decline in the economic outlook.  The level of public debt continues to be a 
major issue and following the General Election in May, it was recognised that any 
incoming Government would be required to review public spending in order to reduce 
the debt burden in future years. 

Soon after the election, £6.2 billion of in year cuts in Government grant were 
announced of which £1.166 billion were targeted at Local Government.  This reports 
sets out the impact of these cuts on the City Council but in round terms over £4.6M of 
grants were withdrawn. 

On 22nd June an interim budget was announced by the Government that outlined 
major cuts in public spending which will inevitably have a significant impact on the 
City Council.  However it will no doubt be some time before the direct impact on the 
Council’s finances are known. 

The medium term financial outlook for the City Council estimates that a budget 
reduction of around £40M is required over the next three years, assuming a £3.75M 
per annum reduction in Government grant in each year.   

The full extent of the cuts in grant will not be known until the Comprehensive 
Spending Review has been announced and even then we may have to wait until the 
provisional grant settlement in late November / early December before we know the 
full impact on the City’s finances. The Council is now taking an approach which 
challenges every aspect of service delivery in order to ensure that the services 
provided and the performance levels are at an appropriate level commensurate with 
the Council stated priorities of:- 



 2

 

1. Providing good value, high quality services 

2. Getting the city working 

3. Investing in education and training 

4. Keeping people safe 

5. Keeping the city clean and green 

6. Looking after people 

This report sets out the first set of proposed variations to the Budget for 2010/11 in 
response to the in year cuts in Government grant and to prepare for the difficult 
budget setting process for 2011/12 and beyond.  Further proposals may be brought 
forward to Cabinet and Council if appropriate throughout the course of the year in 
order to continue to effect change at the earliest opportunity and ensure timely 
delivery in keeping with the principles of sound financial management. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  Cabinet recommends Full Council to: 

 (i) Note the key issues outlined in Appendix 1 arising from the Budget 
on 22nd June that will have an impact on Local Government. 

 (ii) Note the high level forecast for the General Fund for the next three 
years contained in Appendix 2 

 (iii) Note the cuts in Government grant for 2010/11 detailed in Appendix 
3. 

 (iv) Approve the reductions in budget for 2010/11 in Appendix 4 in 
response to the cut in Government grant. 

 (v) Note the actions that are being taken to manage the in year cuts in 
grant outlined in paragraphs 21 to 25. 

 (vi) Approve an additional draw from General Fund Balances of up to 
£1M in 2010/11 if required during the year. 

 (vii) Approve the efficiencies, income generation proposals and service 
reductions as set out in Appendix 5, subject to recommendation (viii). 

 (viii) Note that prior to a final decision being made regarding grant 
reductions and new income generation referred to in Appendix 5, 
formal consultation with affected people and organisations be 
commenced as soon as possible and to note that the implementation 
of these savings is subject to the outcome of consultation with 
affected parties. 

 (ix) Delegate authority to the Executive Director of Resources following 
consultation with the Solicitor to the Council and the Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Workforce Planning to make any further 
changes to budgets during 2010/11 in response to the cuts in 
Government grants, subject to these being reported to Council at a 
later date. 

 



 3

  That Full Council: 

 (i) Notes the key issues outlined in Appendix 1 arising from the Budget 
on 22nd June that will have an impact on Local Government. 

 (ii) Notes the high level forecast for the General Fund for the next three 
years contained in Appendix 2 

 (iii) Notes the cuts in Government grant for 2010/11 detailed in Appendix 
3. 

 (iv) Approves the reductions in budget for 2010/11 in Appendix 4 in 
response to the cut in Government grant. 

 (v) Notes the actions that are being taken to manage the in year cuts in 
grant outlined in paragraphs 21 to 25. 

 (vi) Approves an additional draw from General Fund Balances of up to 
£1M in 2010/11 if required during the year. 

 (vii) Approves the efficiencies, income generation proposals and service 
reductions as set out in Appendix 5, subject to recommendation (viii). 

 (viii) Notes that prior to a final decision being made regarding grant 
reductions and new income generation referred to in Appendix 5, 
formal consultation with affected people and organisations be 
commenced as soon as possible and to note that the implementation 
of these savings is subject to the outcome of consultation with 
affected parties.  

 (ix) Delegates authority to the Executive Director of Resources following 
consultation with the Solicitor to the Council and the Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Workforce Planning to make any further 
changes to budgets during 2010/11 in response to the cuts in 
Government grants, subject to these being reported to Council at a 
later date. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The current medium term financial forecast highlights the challenges facing 
the Authority.  This combined with the potential impact of reductions in future 
funding levels for Local Government and a further worsening economic 
position make it imperative that proposals for 2011/12 onwards are 
developed and savings achieved as early as possible. 

2. The recommendations have been put forward to ensure that the operating 
budget for 2010/11 remains in balance and reflects the priorities of the 
Executive and to ensure that proposals are advanced as early as possible as 
part of the budget process for 2011/12. 

CONSULTATION 

3. Where new proposals have been put forward these have been subject to 
consultation with the Chief Officers Management Team and relevant 
Cabinet Members. 

4. Consultation will be undertaken with trades unions and staff affected by the 
proposals in line with the agreed HR policies. 



 4

5. Full consultation will be undertaken with any people or organisations affected 
by the proposals (in line with recommendation viii) to ensure all options have 
been considered, taking into account the requirements of the council’s 
COMPACT with voluntary and community organisations. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. The option to not consider changes to existing revenue budgets is not 
compatible with the need to ensure effective and robust financial planning 
given the financial challenges facing the Authority.  There are almost limitless 
options that can be applied to budget changes in the year most of which are 
driven by political priorities.  In formulating the final options to present in this 
paper the Executive have taken into account the relevant impact of all options 
that were under consideration and as a result some have not been 
progressed. 

DETAIL 

 June 22nd Budget 

7. Following the formation of the coalition Government, an “emergency budget” 
was announced by the Chancellor on 22nd June.  The majority of the content 
deals with high level forecasts and tackling the structural deficit and the direct 
impact for Local Government is therefore almost impossible to gauge at this 
point. 

8. Appendix 1 provides a brief analysis of some of the key issues that will impact 
on the City Council and perhaps the most significant is that “unprotected 
departments face a real terms cut of 25% over four years”.  This equates to 
6.25% per annum and assuming an inflation rate of 2.50% would indicate a 
cut in government grant of around 3.75% per annum against current levels. 

9. Other issues of note are a public sector pay freeze over the next two years, 
and funding for Council’s which propose low council tax freezes to enable 
them to freeze council tax for one year in 2011/12. 

10 The expected increase in VAT was also announced but this only impacts on 
the Council from an income generation point of view, since the Council is 
generally able to reclaim all VAT paid on the purchases it makes. 

11 The announcements in the budget have been reflected as far as possible in 
the forecast set out in the next section. 

 

 Budget Forecast 

12 The budget setting process within the Council has generally been focused on 
the final decisions made at the February Council meeting, although in reality 
the development of the budget is a year long activity. 

13 In the past there has been a tendency to wait until the February meeting 
before progressing new options for spending and saving which can mean that 
implementation is delayed until later in the financial year depending on the 
lead in times required for the different proposals. 

 



 5

14 The Council has been improving its medium term budgeting approach over a 
number of years and has been re-prioritising expenditure towards stated 
Council priorities and driving out significant efficiency savings year on year.  
Under normal circumstances this improving strategic approach would have 
continued on an incremental basis.  The worsening economic situation across 
the Country, and the impact that is having on both the Council financial 
situation and the demand for services, requires the Council to now take an 
extremely robust approach to medium term planning. 

15. A high level forecast for 2011/12 and 2012/13 based on a 2.5% Council Tax 
increase, was included in the budget report presented to Council in February 
2010 and assumed gaps of £12M and £25M respectively.  At this point an 
increase in grant of 1% had been assumed but this has now been revised to a 
reduction of 3.75% per annum following the emergency budget (a loss of 
£4.75M per annum against the previous forecast).  The current position for 
the next three years is shown in Appendix 2.  This forecast indicates that the 
Council faces a budget gap of £15M in 2011/12 rising to nearly £39M by 
2013/14. 

16. It is important to note that the revised forecast represents the most realistic 
forecast position moving forward.  However, there are a number of risks 
associated with these revised forecasts, the main risks being as follows: 

 

• Revenue Pressures – inevitably the Council will be faced with revenue 
pressures on an annual basis.  There is a risk that only allowing £2M 
per annum will be insufficient to cover the level of pressures which 
materialise. 

• Revenue Bids – each year there are usually a number of revenue bids 
which Members will wish to take forward.  There is now no allowance 
for Bids and so these will only be possible to accommodate if additional 
savings are found. 

• Government Grant – A general reduction of 3.75% per annum has 
been assumed, it is more likely however that specific grants and Area 
Based Grants will be cut, which may impact on specific service areas. 

 

17. Given this financial position and the risks associated with the forecast, it is 
estimated that savings options of at least £50M will be required over the next 
three years in order to balance the budget. 

 

 Cuts in Government Grant 

18. Following the general election, the Government announced a package of in 
year cuts in grant to begin to tackle the significant level of national debt.  This 
announcement is unprecedented in recent times and underlines the 
seriousness of the nation’s finances. 

19. Of the £6 billion cuts announced, Local Government was to take a £1.166 
billion share, details of which are contained in Appendix 3 and show that the 
impact on Southampton is a reduction in grant of nearly £4.3M.  However it 



 6

should be noted that in addition, some of the cuts in other Government 
Departments are also being passed on to Local Government and to date, a 
further £355,000 of grant reductions have also been notified, increasing the 
overall total to nearly £4.7M.  Further reductions of this sort are expected to 
be notified in coming weeks. 

20. Not all of the reductions necessarily impact on the bottom line of the Council’s 
finances.  The table below shows the net impact against the budget that was 
set for 2010/11 

 

  £000’s 

Total reduction in grant 4,678 

Assumed to be passported to other organisations (151) 

Impact on Capital that will be reviewed when the 
programme is updated 

(790) 

Not budgeted for as income (1,114) 

Budgeted but not yet allocated (380) 

Net impact on 2010/11 Revenue Budget 2,243 
 

 

21 

 

The loss of this amount of grant during a financial year will have a direct 
impact on services and Officers have already identified some areas of 
spending which are supported by this grants that will have to be reduced.  
These are outlined in Appendix 4 and total £1,638,000 in 2010/11. 

22 In addition, Officers have identified further savings that could be implemented 
during this financial year, that will have a part year impact of £378,000 to 
offset against the grant losses in 2010/11 and which will provide savings in 
future years to help close the gap in 2011/12 onwards.  These are outlined in 
more detail in the next section. 

23 This leaves a budget gap in the current year of £227,000 and Officers will 
continue to review the impact of the grant cuts with a view to passing on the 
reduction where the grant supports other organisations spending or reducing 
expenditure where the funding is used to provide City Council services. 

24 Separate management instructions will also be issued by the Chief Executive 
in due course to remind managers of the continued need to eliminate all 
unnecessary expenditure in order to further assist in managing the deficit. 

25 However, given the £227,000 gap and other in year pressures on the budget 
already being highlighted through monitoring, it is also prudent at this stage to 
assume that a further draw on balances may be required to manage the 
overall position.  This report therefore requests approval to draw up to a 
further £1M from balances in the current financial year if deemed necessary 
by the Chief Financial Officer.  This reduction in balances would need to be 
made good in future years if it took the Council below the minimum 
recommended level of £4.5M. 



 7

 

 In Year and Future Budget Savings 

26 The combined impact of future years forecasts, in year cuts in Government 
grants and forecasts for spending in the current financial year mean that 
immediate action is required to ensure that the City Council continues to 
operate on a sound financial basis. 

27. Given the forecasts for future years, the Cabinet has already asked the Chief 
Officers Management Team to fundamentally review all service areas to 
consider what reductions could be made in the following areas in order to 
deliver up to £50M of savings over the next three years :- 

 

• Efficiency savings 

• Income generation 

• Service reductions and 

• Major impact items (those that would only be considered in exceptional 
circumstances) 

 

28. These options will continue to be developed by the Cabinet over the summer 
period with a view to producing a consultation report for publication in 
October.  In the meantime, it is necessary to consider reductions that could 
either be implemented immediately to offset the loss of Government grants or 
that can be progressed by Portfolios during the year to be implemented as 
soon as possible  or at the latest by 1st April 2011. 

29. Appendix 5 sets out savings proposals which have been developed and 
where possible these will be implemented as soon as practicable in the 
current financial year, leading to savings of £378,000. 

30. The savings for 2011/12 and future years will be taken into account in the 
development of the budget for that year as part of the longer term strategic 
approach outlined, but the early decision making will enable implementation 
to be progressed in advance of the February 2011 budget meeting. 

31. The overall impact of the proposals contained within this report are shown in 
the following table:- 

  

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Efficiencies 176 1,165 1,400 

Additional Income 137 382 387 

Service Reductions 65 923 1,023 

Savings Proposals 378 2,470 2,810 
 

  

32. The savings proposals and the reductions following the loss of grant will 
inevitably have an impact on staffing within the City Council with 40.2 FTE 



 8

posts affected of which 11.7 are currently vacant.  The City Council has an 
excellent past record of using its redeployment policies to minimise any 
redundancies arising out of the budget proposals and the Executive will 
ensure that this continues for 2010/11 onwards. 

33. In the context of the Country’s economic climate and continuing recession 
and the impact that has on the stability of the Council’s financial position it is 
imperative that proposals for 2011/12 onwards are developed and savings 
achieved as early as possible.  Speed of change is essential and therefore 
those proposals approved when this report goes to Full Council on 14th July 
will fall into the classification of ‘urgent, unplanned’ reductions in employee 
numbers.  Therefore, employees will be notified that they are being placed 
on the ‘Redeployment Register’ for a period of three months following Full 
Council decision on 14th July once due process in respect of restructures and 
staff consultation has taken place.  This has resulted in some of the financial 
savings being reduced in order to take account of the part year costs of 
redeployment, and any extension to that period would undermine the 
Councils financial planning process.   

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

34. As set out in the report. 

Revenue 

35. As set out in the report. 

Property 

36. None 

Other 

37. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

38. Local Government Acts 1972, 2000 and 2003 and Local Government Finance 
Act 1992. 

Other Legal Implications:  

39. It should be noted that any proposal to reduce grants or introduce new 
income streams of the kind envisaged in Appendix 5, will be subject to 
extensive consultation and any representations must be taken into account 
before a final decision is made, in order to be consistent with current case law 
and to minimise the risk of legal challenge.  It should be noted that this may 
mean that some savings referred to in Appendix 5 may not be achieved until 
later in 2010/11 or 2011/12. 

  

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

40. This report proposes variations to the budget that was approved by Council 
on 17th February 2010. 



 9

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

1. Emergency Budget – Key Issues 

2. High Level Forecast 2011/12 to 2013/14 

3. Summary of Cuts in Government Grant 

4. Reductions in Spending in Response to Cuts in Government Grant 

5. Variations to the Approved 2010/11 Budget and Future Years 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information Procedure 
Rules / Schedule 12A allowing 
document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. General Fund Revenue Report 2010/11  

2. The Genera Fund Capital Programme Report 
2009/10 to 2012/13 

 

Background documents available for inspection at:       

FORWARD PLAN No:  KEY DECISION? YES 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

KEY MESSAGES FROM THE 22ND JUNE BUDGET 
 
 
The Budget takes action to eliminate the bulk of the structural deficit through 
plans for “additional consolidation” of £40 billion per year by 2014/15.  This is 
expected to be achieved through £32 billion of spending cuts and £8 billion of 
net tax increases.  The plans are for the structural current deficit to be 
eliminated by 2014/15, with a projected surplus of 0.8% of GDP in 2015/16. 
 
The Budget included a number of proposals that specifically affect councils 
and these are detailed below, together with comments on the local position (in 
italics). 
 
The Spending Review and Fiscal Targets 
The Budget puts forward a programme for reducing public sector spend by a 
further £30 billion by 2014/15 on top of the £44 billion pledge by the previous 
Government, of which £17 billion is to come from departmental budgets and 
the rest from reductions in the welfare bill and other areas.  This amounts to a 
real terms cut of around 25% over the next four financial years in Government 
spending in areas other than the NHS and overseas aid.  
 
Further information on exactly how departmental budgets will be affected, and 
where cuts will be made, will be announced in the Spending Review, the 
results of which will be announced on Wednesday 20th October.  
 
Help Towards a Time Limited Council Tax Freeze  
The Chancellor announced that the Government will help councils to freeze or 
reduce council tax in 2011/12.  The Budget documentation assumes that this 
help will be given assuming a loss of revenue to authorities of 2.9% - the 
average of the three years’ most recent council tax increases.  The 
Government assumes that this will lead to a loss of revenue of £625M, (taking 
into account lower council tax benefit payments), but details of the exact 
mechanism for funding has yet to be announced. 
 
Current forecasts for Southampton assume council tax increases of 2.5% per 
annum and therefore it is expected that the City Council would benefit from 
this funding in 2011/12.  Whilst it does not impact on the net gap position it will 
mean that council tax payers face no increase for the year. 
 
Prudential Borrowing  
The Government has indicated that it will monitor lending from the Public 
Works Loans Board (PWLB) more closely, and will consider the approach 
taken in Scotland to increase transparency around borrowing undertaken 
more than two years in advance of expenditure.  To achieve this, when 
applying to the PWLB for a loan we will be required to express in terms of the 
number of months from the point of application when we expect the loan to be 
entirely applied to expenditure. 
 
The Council does not tend to borrow in advance of need and it is therefore 
expected that this will have no impact. 



Appendix 1 

 
Public Sector Pay and Pensions 
The Government announced a two year pay freeze from 2011/12 for public 
sector workforces, except for those earning £21,000 or less who will receive 
an increase of £250 a year.  This assumption has been reflected in the 
updated High Level Forecast contained in Appendix 2. 
 
John Hutton (ex Labour cabinet minister) is to head an independent 
commission to undertake a fundamental and structural review of public sector 
pensions which will unveil "early steps" by September, with full proposals in 
time for the 2011 Budget.  
 
Regional Development Agencies (RDAs) and Local Enterprise 
Partnerships (LEPs) 
RDAs will be abolished through the Public Bodies Bill.  In place of the RDAs, 
the Government will enable locally-elected leaders, working with business, to 
lead local economic development, in the form of LEPs.  These LEPs will 
coordinate public and private investment in transport, housing, skills, 
regeneration and other areas of economic development.  
 
Regional Growth Fund  
There will be a Regional Growth Fund, accessible to all areas of the UK, 
which will provide finance for regional capital projects over the next two years.  
This Fund will incorporate existing housing, transport, regeneration and other 
funding streams into one “pot” which is expected to be distributed in part 
through formula and in part through a bidding process. 
Further details of how the Regional Growth Fund will operate are yet to be 
announced. 
 
Regional Growth in Targeted Areas  
To support private sector enterprise and investment in those regions that are 
particularly reliant on the public sector, the Government will introduce a three 
year scheme to exempt new businesses in targeted areas from up to £5,000 
of class 1 employer National Insurance Contributions payments, for each of 
their first ten employees hired in their first year of business.  This measure will 
apply to all regions outside London, the South East and East of England.  
 
Changes to Business Rates  
The Government confirmed that the temporary increase in the threshold for 
small business rate relief, announced by the previous Government in the 
March 2010 budget giving full relief for eligible businesses occupying 
premises with a rateable value of up to £6,000 and tapering relief to £12,000 
will go ahead from October 1st 2010.  It also announced that legislation will be 
introduced to cancel backdated business rates bills mainly affecting ports.  
 
Housing Benefit Reform  
The Government announced a package of reforms aimed at saving £1.8 
billion in housing and council tax benefit costs. 
 
 



Appendix 1 

VAT Rise  
The Chancellor announced that the rate of VAT will rise from 17.5% to 20% 
from 4th January 2011.  No changes to the scope of VAT were announced and 
the current exemptions will continue to apply.  Local government does not pay 
VAT on the majority of its transactions and this will continue to apply.  
However there will be an impact on payments to individuals and voluntary 
organisations where these are not zero rated.  Suppliers of services to 
councils such as the care sector will have increased costs which may be 
reflected in their charges. 
 

Since the Council generally recovers all VAT on purchases this has little 
impact on spending unless as the note suggests our service suppliers are 
impacted by the increase.  The Council will need to decide before 4th January 
whether or not to pass on the increase within its charges.  If it does not then 
this will reduce the net income we receive. 
 

Landfill Tax  
The Budget confirmed that standard rate of landfill tax will increase by £8 per 
tonne each year from 1st April 2011 until at least 2014, as announced by the 
previous Government. 
 
Place-Based Budgeting  
While this does not in feature in the Budget document, following from 
conversations between the Local Government Association (LGA) Group and 
Ministers the LGA anticipate that the Spending Review will be informed by a 
strand of work on place-based budgeting.  This will be led by CLG with the 
close involvement of LGA and the Treasury, and will involve officials from 
other Government departments and officers from councils and other local 
organisations.  



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

£000's £000's £000's

Net Budget Requirement 183,269.6 192,085.6 198,770.6

Base Changes & Inflation 6,891.0 6,085.0 8,500.0

Capital Financing Costs 600.0 600.0 600.0

Contribution from Balances 1,325.0

Net Requirement for Expenditure 192,085.6 198,770.6 207,870.6

Maximum Budget at 2.5% council tax increase* 180,418.5 178,910.9 177,580.4

Roll Forward Gap before Pressures 11,667.1 19,859.7 30,290.2

Increased Requirements for :-

Revenue Developments 735.3 1,365.3 1,365.3

Risk Based Contingency Fund 1,000.0 1,500.0 1,500.0

Revenue Bids (506.0) (606.0) (606.0)

Known Pressures 74.0 74.0 74.0

Allowance for Other Pressures (Not Known) 2,000.0 4,000.0 6,000.0

Net Gap 14,970.4 26,193.0 38,623.5

* This includes assumed reductions in Government Grant

HIGH LEVEL FORECAST 2011/12 to 2013/14



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Dept. Description Capital Revenue Capital Revenue

£M £M £'000 £'000

DfE
Reduction in the overall amount available to local

authorities through Area Based Grant from DfE.
311.0 1,521.5

DfT Integrated Transport Block 150.8 790.0

DfT Major Projects 61.4

DfT Yorkshire and Humber ITB transfer 23.5

DfT Capital detrunking 6.8

DfT PRN networking funding 5.9

DfT Urban congestion fund 7.9

DfT Road Safety capital grant 17.2 70.0

DfT Kickstart 2009 5.0

DfT Other funding support, as yet unallocated 10.0

DfT Area Based Grant - Road Safety revenue grant 20.6 81.0

DCLG Housing Market Renewal 50.0

DCLG Gypsy & Traveller site grant 30.0

DCLG Housing and Planning Delivery Grant 146.0 300.0

DCLG Connecting Communities 19.1

DCLG Other cohesion funding 5.0

DCLG Area Based Grant - Supporting People administration 30.0 152.0

DCLG Area Based Grant - Working Neighbourhood Fund 49.9 0.0

DCLG Area Based Grant - Local Enterprise Growth Initiative 17.5 0.0

DCLG Area Based Grant - Prevent 7.0 56.6

DCLG Area Based Grant - Cohesion 4.0 17.6

DCLG Local Area Agreement Reward 125.0 1,000.0

DCLG Local Authority Business Growth Incentives scheme 50.0 307.0

DEFRA Contaminated Land 7.5

Home

Office

Reduction in the overall amount available to local

authorities through Area Based Grants (ABG) from HO.
6.0 26.3

Adjustment

Grant
Adjustment grant (1.1)

361.0 805.0 860.0 3,462.0

1,166.0 4,322.0

Migration Impact Funding 240.0

Free Swimming (Full Year £173,211 loss of grant from

31/07/2010)
115.5

Harnessing Technology Grant TBC

0.0 355.5

Total Reduction 4,677.5

Other Notifications of Grant Losses

National SCC Share

REDUCTIONS IN GOVERNMENT GRANT - 2010/11



This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
4

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f

S
e

rv
ic

e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

A
S

C
H

1
L

e
a

rn
in

g

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s

F
o

llo
w

in
g

th
e

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

in

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
0

,
th

e
ri

n
g

fe
n

c
e

fo
r

th
e

A
d

u
lt

S
tr

o
k
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

g
ra

n
t

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
re

m
o

v
e

d
.

T
h

e
g

ra
n

t
is

d
u

e
to

fi
n

is
h

a
t

th
e

e
n

d
o

f
2

0
1

0
/1

1
a

n
d

in

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
ti
o

n
,

w
a

s
to

b
e

u
s
e

d
fo

r
a

s
h

o
rt

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
o

f
th

e
g

ra
n

t
fu

n
d

e
d

e
le

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
in

2
0

1
0

/1
1

.
T

h
e

re
fo

re
,

it
is

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
th

a
t

th
e

c
a

rr
ie

d
fo

rw
a

rd
b

u
d

g
e

t
a

n
d

th
e

u
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
s
u

m
in

2
0

1
0

/1
1

b
e

u
s
e

d
to

d
e

liv
e

r
a

o
n

e
-o

ff
in

y
e

a
r

s
a

v
in

g
.

T
h

e
a

c
ti
v
it
y

fu
n

d
e

d
b

y
th

e
A

d
u

lt
S

tr
o

k
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

g
ra

n
t

c
a

n
n

o
t

n
o

w
b

e
e

x
te

n
d

e
d

b
e

y
o

n
d

o
ri

g
in

a
l

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s

w
it
h

o
u

t
s
e

e
k
in

g
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
o

f
th

e
g

ra
n

t
fu

n
d

e
d

e
le

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
w

ill
n

o
t

b
e

p
o

s
s
ib

le
.

(6
9

)
J
a

n
e

B
re

n
to

r

A
S

C
H

2
H

e
a

lt
h

&
W

e
ll

B
e

in
g

T
h

e
A

ID
S

S
u

p
p

o
rt

g
ra

n
t

h
a

s
a

n
u

n
d

e
r

s
p

e
n

d

c
a

rr
ie

d
fo

rw
a

rd
fr

o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s

y
e

a
rs

.
T

h
is

,

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

a
n

u
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
s
u

m
a

g
a

in
s
t

th
e

2
0

1
0

/1
1

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
c
a

n
b

e
re

le
a

s
e

d
to

d
e

liv
e

r
a

o
n

e
o

ff
s
a

v
in

g
in

y
e

a
r.

P
le

a
s
e

n
o

te
th

is
h

a
s

o
n

ly
b

e
e

n
p

o
s
s
ib

le
s
in

c
e

th
e

re
m

o
v
a

l
o

f
th

e

ri
n

g
fe

n
c
e

w
it
h

in
th

e
G

ra
n

t
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
in

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
0

,
a

n
d

th
a

t
th

e
g

ra
n

t
is

d
u

e
to

fi
n

is
h

a
t

th
e

e
n

d
o

f
2

0
1

0
/1

1
.

T
h

e
a

c
ti
v
it
y

fu
n

d
e

d
b

y
th

e
g

ra
n

t
c
a

n
n

o
t

n
o

w
b

e

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

b
e

y
o

n
d

o
ri

g
in

a
l
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s

w
it
h

o
u

t

s
e

e
k
in

g
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

It
w

a
s

h
o

p
e

d
to

e
x
te

n
d

th
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
a

s
h

o
rt

p
e

ri
o

d
u

s
in

g

th
e

a
c
c
u

m
u

la
te

d
ri

n
g

fe
n

c
e

d
u

n
d

e
r

s
p

e
n

d
s
.

(1
0

4
)

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

7
3

)
0

0
0

0
.0

0
.0

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(1
7

3
)

0
0

0
0

.0
0

.0

R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

S
IN

S
P

E
N

D
IN

G
IN

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

T
O

C
U

T
S

IN
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
T



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
4

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f

S
e

rv
ic

e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

S
IN

S
P

E
N

D
IN

G
IN

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

T
O

C
U

T
S

IN
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
T

C
h

il
d

re
n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

C
S

1
P

la
n

n
in

g
&

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

m
o

d
e

l
in

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
w

ill
b

e
m

a
d

e
w

it
h

m
in

im
a

l
im

p
a

c
t

w
h

e
re

p
o

s
s
ib

le
(6

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

4
.0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

2

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

to
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
te

a
m

T
h

e
re

w
ill

b
e

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
im

p
a

c
t

o
n

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

to
e

n
g

a
g

e
in

p
o

s
it
iv

e

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
s
u

c
h

a
s

c
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip

(1
3

0
)

(3
0

0
)

(3
0

0
)

(3
0

0
)

7
.0

2
.0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
&

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

in
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

a
n

d
C

u
s
to

m
e

r
C

a
re

te
a

m

S
o

m
e

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

fa
m

ili
e

s
w

h
o

fa
il

to
a

p
p

ly
fo

r

th
e

ir
s
c
h

o
o

l
p

la
c
e

in
th

e
p

ri
m

a
ry

to
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n

(7
)

(3
1

)
(3

1
)

(3
1

)
1

.0
A

lis
o

n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

4

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
te

a
m

T
h

is
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
a

b
s
o

rb
e

d
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o

n
o

f
a

ll
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

tr
a

in
in

g
b

u
d

g
e

ts
.

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

5
P

la
n

n
in

g
&

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

in
P

la
n

n
in

g
&

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

te
a

m
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

w
ill

b
e

m
a

d
e

w
it
h

m
in

im
a

l
im

p
a

c
t

w
h

e
re

p
o

s
s
ib

le
(1

9
)

(3
7

)
(3

7
)

(3
7

)
A

lis
o

n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

6

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
e

a
s
e

E
x
te

n
d

e
d

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

fu
n

d
e

d
fr

o
m

A
re

a

B
a

s
e

d
G

ra
n

t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

fu
n

d
in

g
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
b

y
s
c
h

o
o

ls
to

p
ro

v
id

e
e

x
te

n
d

e
d

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

(3
2

0
)

(3
2

0
)

(3
2

0
)

(3
2

0
)

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

7

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

o
u

ts
o

u
rc

e
d

N
o

m
a

jo
r

im
p

a
c
t

a
s

fu
n

d
in

g
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

u
n

a
llo

c
a

te
d

(2
6

2
)

(6
0

8
)

(6
0

8
)

(6
0

8
)

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

8

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

a
n

d

In
c
lu

s
io

n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

d

T
h

e
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
is

fu
n

d
in

g
w

ill
m

e
a

n
th

a
t

it
w

ill

n
o

t
b

e
p

o
s
s
ib

le
to

ta
k
e

u
p

n
e

w
tr

a
in

in
g

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
a

n
d

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l
c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
.

(1
0

8
)

(1
0

8
)

(1
0

8
)

(1
0

8
)

F
e

lic
it
y

B
u

d
g

e
n

C
S

9

S
c
h

o
o

l

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s

&

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

D
e

le
ti
o

n
o

f
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
H

e
a

lt
h

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

b
u

d
g

e
t

c
e

a
s
in

g
s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

H
e

a
lt
h

y
S

c
h

o
o

l

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

S
o

m
e

im
p

a
c
t

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
tr

a
in

in
g

s
e

s
s
io

n
s

th
a

t
a

re
a

v
a

ila
b

le
fo

r
s
c
h

o
o

l
s
ta

ff
to

s
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

h
e

a
lt
h

y
s
c
h

o
o

ls
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

(3
8

)
(3

8
)

(3
8

)
(3

8
)

P
a

u
l

N
u

g
e

n
t

C
S

1
0

S
c
h

o
o

l

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s

&

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

to
S

c
h

o
o

l
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

&

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
e

a
m

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

a
d

v
is

o
ry

s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
o

n
k
e

y
s
k
ill

a
re

a
s

(2
5

)
(4

3
)

(4
3

)
(4

3
)

0
.7

P
a

u
l

N
u

g
e

n
t



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
4

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f

S
e

rv
ic

e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

S
IN

S
P

E
N

D
IN

G
IN

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

T
O

C
U

T
S

IN
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
T

C
S

1
1

In
c
lu

s
io

n

s
u

p
p

o
rt

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

in
In

c
lu

s
io

n
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
T

h
is

w
ill

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

a
b

ili
ty

to
s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
c
h

o
o

ls
in

im
p

ro
v
in

g
s
c
h

o
o

l
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

(9
4

)
(1

1
3

)
(1

1
3

)
(1

1
3

)
2

.0
F

e
lic

it
y

B
u

d
g

e
n

C
S

1
2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

to
C

h
ild

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
E

s
ta

te
te

a
m

s
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

w
ill

b
e

m
a

d
e

w
it
h

m
in

im
a

l
im

p
a

c
t

w
h

e
re

p
o

s
s
ib

le
(4

1
)

(4
1

)
(4

1
)

(4
1

)
K

a
rl

L
im

b
e

rt

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

,1
2

4
)

(1
,7

5
9

)
(1

,7
5

9
)

(1
,7

5
9

)
8

.0
8

.7

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
T

o
ta

l
(1

,1
2

4
)

(1
,7

5
9

)
(1

,7
5

9
)

(1
,7

5
9

)
8

.0
8

.7

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

E
D

E
V

1
S

a
fe

r

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
b

u
d

g
e

t
p

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
o

f
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
G

ra
n

t
-

H
o

m
e

O
ff

ic
e

R
e

v
ie

w
/

re
v
is

e
a

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
in

lin
e

w
it
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
g

ra
n

ts
fr

o
m

2
0

1
0

/1
1

.
2

0
1

0
/1

1
is

th
e

la
s
t

y
e

a
r

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
.

S
a

v
in

g
s

d
e

liv
e

re
d

b
y

re
m

o
v
in

g
th

e
s
u

m
s

y
e

t
to

b
e

a
llo

c
a

te
d

to
a

n
y

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
.

(2
6

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

6
)

0
0

0
0

.0
0

.0

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(2
6

)
0

0
0

0
.0

0
.0



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
4

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f

S
e

rv
ic

e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

S
IN

S
P

E
N

D
IN

G
IN

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

T
O

C
U

T
S

IN
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
T

H
o

u
s

in
g

&
L

o
c

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

H
L

S
1

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

a
n

d
e

q
u

it
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
b

u
d

g
e

t
p

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
o

f
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
G

ra
n

t
-

D
C

L
G

fo
r

C
o

h
e

s
io

n

R
e

v
ie

w
/

re
v
is

e
a

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
in

lin
e

w
it
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
g

ra
n

ts
fr

o
m

2
0

1
0

/1
1

.
2

0
1

0
/1

1
is

th
e

la
s
t

y
e

a
r

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
.

S
te

e
ri

n
g

G
ro

u
p

to
d

e
te

rm
in

e
h

o
w

s
a

v
in

g
s

to
b

e

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.

(1
8

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

H
L

S
2

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

a
n

d
e

q
u

it
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
b

u
d

g
e

t
p

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
o

f
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
G

ra
n

t
-

D
C

L
G

fo
r

P
re

v
e

n
t

R
e

v
ie

w
/

re
v
is

e
a

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
in

lin
e

w
it
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
g

ra
n

ts
fr

o
m

2
0

1
0

/1
1

.
2

0
1

0
/1

1
is

th
e

la
s
t

y
e

a
r

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
.

S
te

e
ri

n
g

G
ro

u
p

to
d

e
te

rm
in

e
h

o
w

s
a

v
in

g
s

to
b

e

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.

(5
7

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

H
L

S
3

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

a
n

d
e

q
u

it
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
b

u
d

g
e

t
p

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
o

f
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
G

ra
n

t
-

M
ig

ra
ti
o

n
Im

p
a

c
t

F
u

n
d

R
e

v
ie

w
/

re
v
is

e
a

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
in

lin
e

w
it
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
g

ra
n

ts
fr

o
m

2
0

1
0

/1
1

.
5

0
%

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

g
ra

n
t

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
w

it
h

2
0

1
0

/1
1

a
s

th
e

la
s
t

y
e

a
r

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
.

-
re

d
u

c
e

d

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
a

n
d

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
/

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

n
e

w

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

(2
4

0
)

J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(3

1
5

)
0

0
0

0
.0

0
.0

H
o

u
s

in
g

&
L

o
c

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(3
1

5
)

0
0

0
0

.0
0

.0

L
e

is
u

re
C

u
lt

u
re

a
n

d
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
-

S
e

rv
ic

e
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

L
C

H
1

S
p

o
rt

&

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
F

re
e

S
w

im
m

in
g

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

m
o

v
a

l

o
f

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
G

ra
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1

J
u

ly
.

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
fr

e
e

s
w

im
m

in
g

fo
r

o
v
e

r
6

0
's

fr
o

m
1

A
u

g
u

s
t

a
n

d
w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l
o

f
fa

c
ili

ty
fo

r
u

n
d

e
r

1
6

's

fr
o

m
1

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r,

th
e

la
tt

e
r

b
e

in
g

c
lo

s
e

to
th

e

e
n

d
o

f
th

e
s
u

m
m

e
r

h
o

lid
a

y
s

a
n

d
c
o

in
c
id

in
g

w
it
h

th
e

tr
a

n
s
fe

r
o

f
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s

to
th

e
n

e
w

s
p

o
rt

a
n

d

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
p

a
rt

n
e

r.
N

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s

n
e

e
d

e
d

w
it
h

p
a

rt
n

e
r

to
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
v
a

lu
e

o
f

s
a

v
in

g
s

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

M
ik

e
H

a
rr

is

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

0
0

0
0

.0
0

.0

L
e

is
u

re
C

u
lt

u
re

a
n

d
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
to

ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
.0

0
.0

G
ra

n
d

T
o

ta
l

(1
,6

3
8

)
(1

,7
5

9
)

(1
,7

5
9

)
(1

,7
5

9
)

8
.0

8
.7



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
O

T
H

E
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
B

U
D

G
E

T
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

C
h

il
d

re
n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

C
S

1
T

ie
r

4
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
R

e
v
ie

w
o

f
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
c
a

re
p

ro
v
is

io
n

A
re

v
ie

w
o

f
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
c
a

re
is

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

b
e

in
g

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
to

re
-s

h
a

p
e

th
e

c
u

rr
e

n
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

to
p

ro
v
id

e

m
o

re
ta

rg
e

te
d

a
n

d
c
o

s
t

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
y
o

u
n

g

p
e

o
p

le
.

T
h

e
re

s
h

a
p

in
g

o
f

s
e

rv
ic

e
w

ill
re

s
u

lt
in

a
p

o
s
it
iv

e

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l
y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

a
n

d
th

e
ir

fa
m

ili
e

s

(3
0

0
)

(3
0

0
)

(3
0

0
)

T
B

C
T

B
C

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(3
0

0
)

(3
0

0
)

(3
0

0
)

0
.0

0
.0

C
h

il
d

re
n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

C
S

2
C

h
ild

re
n

's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

IC
T

S
tr

a
te

g
y

T
e

a
m

M
in

im
a

l
im

p
a

c
t

th
ro

u
g

h
c
o

m
b

in
in

g
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s

o
f

tw
o

p
o

s
ts

in
to

o
n

e
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
1

.0
K

a
rl

L
im

b
e

rt

C
S

3
S

c
h

o
o

l
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s
s
e

rv
ic

e
to

b
e

c
o

m
e

s
e

lf
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
-

e
x
p

lo
re

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
fo

r
g

ra
n

t
fu

n
d

in
g

S
o

m
e

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

fr
o

m
m

in
o

ri
ty

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
w

h
o

m
a

y
h

a
v
e

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
th

e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

if
th

e
y

h
a

v
e

to
p

a
y
.

(6
5

)
(6

5
)

(6
5

)
1

.0
P

a
u

l

N
u

g
e

n
t

C
S

4
S

c
h

o
o

l
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
w

it
h

in
G

o
v
e

rn
o

r
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

to
b

e
c
o

m
e

fu
lly

fu
n

d
e

d
b

y
s
c
h

o
o

ls

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
B

o
d

ie
s

w
ill

h
a

v
e

le
s
s

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
a

d
v
ic

e
a

n
d

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
if

th
e

y
d

e
c
id

e
n

o
t

to
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
a

t
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
c
o

s
t

(4
7

)
(4

7
)

(4
7

)
1

.0
P

a
u

l

N
u

g
e

n
t

C
S

5
S

c
h

o
o

l
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

to
S

c
h

o
o

l
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

&

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
e

a
m

T
h

is
w

ill
m

a
k
e

it
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
to

in
te

rv
e

n
e

s
w

if
tl
y

in
s
c
h

o
o

ls

c
a

u
s
in

g
c
o

n
c
e

rn
,

w
it
h

a
n

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

K
S

2
a

n
d

G
C

S
E

re
s
u

lt
s

(2
9

6
)

(2
9

6
)

(4
6

6
)

7
.0

P
a

u
l

N
u

g
e

n
t

C
S

6
C

h
ild

re
n

's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

in
C

h
ild

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
s
ta

te
a

c
ti
v
it
y

M
in

im
a

l
im

p
a

c
t

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

th
e

re
is

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
lo

s
s

o
f

u
s
e

a
b

le
p

la
y
in

g
fi
e

ld
s
p

a
c
e

(2
7

)
(2

7
)

(2
7

)
K

a
rl

L
im

b
e

rt



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
O

T
H

E
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
B

U
D

G
E

T
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

C
S

7
C

h
ild

re
n

's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

w
it
h

in
C

h
ild

re
n

's

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
S

e
rv

ic
e

M
in

im
a

l
im

p
a

c
t

a
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o

f
b

e
tt

e
r

u
s
e

o
f

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
m

e
d

ia
a

n
d

s
e

rv
ic

e
m

o
v
in

g
in

to
th

e

lo
c
a

lit
ie

s

(4
2

)
(4

2
)

(4
2

)
1

.0
K

a
rl

L
im

b
e

rt

C
S

8
C

h
ild

re
n

's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te

S
e

rv
ic

e
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

w
it
h

in
C

it
y

C
a

te
ri

n
g

S
c
h

o
o

ls
m

a
y

s
tr

u
g

g
le

to
fi
n

d
v
a

lu
e

fo
r

m
o

n
e

y
c
a

te
ri

n
g

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

in
c
u

rr
e

n
t

c
lim

a
te

.
(7

5
)

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

1
.5

K
a

rl

L
im

b
e

rt

C
S

9
C

h
ild

re
n

's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te

IC
T

S
tr

a
te

g
y

T
e

a
m

-
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

s
e

rv
ic

e

M
e

d
iu

m
im

p
a

c
t

a
s

s
o

m
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
IC

T
p

ro
je

c
ts

w
ill

b
e

le
s
s

w
e

ll
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

a
n

d
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

.
(1

0
5

)
(1

0
5

)
(1

0
5

)
3

.0
K

a
rl

L
im

b
e

rt

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(4

5
)

(7
0

2
)

(7
7

7
)

(9
4

7
)

1
4

.5
1

.0

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
T

o
ta

l
(4

5
)

(1
,0

0
2

)
(1

,0
7

7
)

(1
,2

4
7

)
1

4
.5

1
.0

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

E
D

E
V

1
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
p

le
te

re
v
ie

w
o

f
s
e

rv
ic

e
to

e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s
s

s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

th
e

T
IC

a
n

d
a

ra
d

ic
a

l
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

o
f

th
e

d
iv

is
io

n
.

In
o

rd
e

r
to

d
e

liv
e

r
th

e
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
o

f
th

e
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
P

la
n

(2
0

1
0

-
1

3
),

s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

th
e

T
IC

n
e

e
d

to
b

e

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
a

n
d

th
e

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
n

d

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
te

a
m

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

to
b

e
fi
t

fo
r

p
u

rp
o

s
e

,
(t

o

b
e

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
b

y
D

e
c

2
0

1
0

).

(1
4

6
)

(1
4

6
)

(1
4

6
)

T
B

C
T

B
C

D
a

w
n

B
a

x
e

n
d

a
le

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(1
4

6
)

(1
4

6
)

(1
4

6
)

0
.0

0
.0

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

0
(1

4
6

)
(1

4
6

)
(1

4
6

)
0

.0
0

.0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

-
In

c
o

m
e

E
&

T
1

O
n

S
tr

e
e

t
C

a
r

P
a

rk
in

g
C

h
a

rg
e

fo
r

v
is

it
o

r
p

e
rm

it
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
c
o

s
t

to
re

s
id

e
n

ts
to

e
n

a
b

le
v
is

it
o

rs
to

p
a

rk
in

th
e

lo
c
a

l
re

s
id

e
n

ts
p

a
rk

in
g

z
o

n
e

s
.

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

c
h

a
rg

in
g

re
g

im
e

a
n

d
p

ri
n

t
p

e
rm

it
b

o
o

k
s
.

U
s
e

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
'o

n
s
tr

e
e

t

a
c
c
o

u
n

t'
fu

n
d

in
g

fo
r

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

c
a

p
it
a

l
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

(8
5

)
(9

0
)

(9
0

)
M

ic
k

B
is

h
o

p

E
&

T
2

W
a

s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
In

tr
o

d
u

c
e

B
u

lk
y

W
a

s
te

c
h

a
rg

e
fo

r

c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
s

In
s
te

a
d

o
f

th
e

fr
e

e
s
e

rv
ic

e
th

e
re

w
ill

b
e

a
le

v
y

o
f

5
0

%
o

f

th
e

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

c
h

a
rg

e
(i

.e
.

£
1

2
.5

0
5

0
%

o
f

£
2

5
)

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(1
1

0
)

(1
1

5
)

(1
1

5
)

0
.0

0
.0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

0
(1

1
0

)
(1

1
5

)
(1

1
5

)
0

.0
0

.0



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
O

T
H

E
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
B

U
D

G
E

T
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

H
o

u
s

in
g

&
L

o
c

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

H
L

S
1

H
o

u
s
in

g

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
H

R
A

fo
r

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
o

ff
ic

e
r

ti
m

e
to

s
u

p
p

o
rt

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

p
ro

je
c
t

w
o

rk
.

S
o

m
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
d

ir
e

c
te

d
to

fo
c
u

s
o

n
E

s
ta

te
R

e
g

e
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
w

it
h

H
R

A
n

e
w

b
u

ild
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

b
e

in
g

c
h

a
rg

e
d

to
H

R
A

fr
o

m
2

0
1

0
/1

1
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
c
a

p
a

c
it
y

to
s
u

p
p

o
rt

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
m

e
s

a
n

d
e

m
p

ty
h

o
m

e
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

(3
3

)
(3

3
)

(3
3

)
(3

3
)

B
a

rb
a

ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

H
L

S
2

P
a

rk
s

a
n

d
S

tr
e

e
ts

C
le

a
n

s
in

g

R
e

-m
o

d
e

l
s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

fo
r

fr
o

n
t-

lin
e

p
a

rk
s

a
n

d

s
tr

e
e

t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
te

a
m

s

N
e

w
w

o
rk

in
g

p
a

tt
e

rn
s

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
to

m
o

re
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly

m
a

n
a

g
e

s
e

a
s
o

n
a

l
v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

in
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
,

a
n

d
re

d
u

c
e

c
o

s
ts

o
f

p
ro

v
id

in
g

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

d
u

ri
n

g
e

v
e

n
in

g
s

a
n

d
w

e
e

k
e

n
d

s
.

P
h

a
s
e

d
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
w

it
h

p
a

rt
y
e

a
r

s
a

v
in

g
s

in
2

0
1

1
/1

2
.

(5
0

)
(1

6
0

)
(1

6
0

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

H
L

S
3

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
f

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
e

n
tr

e
s

R
e

d
u

c
e

th
e

R
&

M
b

u
d

g
e

t
re

q
u

ir
e

d
to

c
a

rr
y

o
u

t
re

p
a

ir
s

to
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
s

a
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o

f
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
to

im
p

ro
v
e

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
.

R
e

c
e

n
t

a
n

d
p

la
n

n
e

d
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

to
a

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
s

is
lik

e
ly

to
re

d
u

c
e

th
e

d
e

m
a

n
d

o
n

th
is

R
&

M
b

u
d

g
e

t.
T

h
e

re
is

a
ri

s
k

o
f

s
o

m
e

re
p

a
ir

s
/

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

b
e

in
g

d
e

la
y
e

d
in

to
s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l

y
e

a
rs

.

(2
4

)
(2

4
)

(2
4

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(3

3
)

(1
0

7
)

(2
1

7
)

(2
1

7
)

0
.0

0
.0

H
o

u
s

in
g

&
L

o
c

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
In

c
o

m
e

H
L

S
4

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s

C
h

a
rg

e
a

ll
d

e
c
a

n
t

a
c
ti
v
it
y

to
H

R
A

R
e

c
h

e
c
k

c
o

s
t

o
f

d
e

c
a

n
ts

fo
llo

w
in

g
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
o

f
E

s
ta

te

R
e

n
e

w
a

l
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.
N

o
a

d
v
e

rs
e

im
p

a
c
t

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
(1

2
)

(1
2

)
(1

2
)

(1
2

)
B

a
rb

a
ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

2
)

(1
2

)
(1

2
)

(1
2

)
0

.0
0

.0

H
o

u
s

in
g

&
L

o
c

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

H
L

S
5

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d

W
a

rd
e

n
s

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
re

m
a

in
in

g
2

W
a

rd
e

n
s

fr
o

m
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
a

re
a

s
.

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
2

W
a

rd
e

n
s

fr
o

m
th

e
in

n
e

r
c
it
y

a
re

a
s

o
f

P
o

ly
g

o
n

&
N

e
w

to
w

n
/N

ic
h

o
ls

to
w

n
w

h
ic

h
w

ill
re

m
o

v
e

th
e

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

ta
c
k
lin

g
fr

o
n

t
lin

e
A

S
B

a
n

d
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l

is
s
u

e
s

in
th

e
in

n
e

r
c
it
y
.

A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
a

d
v
e

rs
e

im
p

a
c
t

a
g

a
in

s
t

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s

a
n

d
re

s
id

e
n

t
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

.

(5
6

)
(5

6
)

(5
6

)
2

.0
N

ic
k

C
ro

s
s



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
O

T
H

E
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
B

U
D

G
E

T
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

H
L

S
6

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d

W
a

rd
e

n
s

C
e

a
s
e

g
e

n
e

ra
l
fu

n
d

s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
J
u

n
io

r

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
W

a
rd

e
n

S
c
h

e
m

e
a

n
d

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

s
e

rv
ic

e
to

o
n

ly
H

R
A

te
n

a
n

ts

W
o

u
ld

n
e

e
d

to
re

s
tr

ic
t

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

to
H

R
A

te
n

a
n

ts
o

n
ly

.

E
x
p

lo
re

lin
k
s

to
J
u

n
io

r
P

C
S

O
s
c
h

e
m

e
ru

n
b

y
th

e
p

o
lic

e

fo
r

n
o

n
H

R
A

a
re

a
s

b
u

t
w

it
h

n
o

o
ff

e
r

o
f

a
n

y
fu

n
d

in
g

.

E
x
c
lu

d
in

g
o

f
c
h

ild
re

n
fr

o
m

J
u

n
io

r
W

a
rd

e
n

S
c
h

e
m

e
if

n
o

t

c
h

ild
re

n
o

f
c
o

u
n

c
il

te
n

a
n

ts
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
d

iv
e

rs
io

n
a

ry

a
c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
to

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

p
ro

je
c
ts

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
N

ic
k

C
ro

s
s

H
L

S
7

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s

R
e

ta
in

o
n

ly
s
ta

tu
to

ry
e

le
m

e
n

ts
o

f
th

e

s
e

rv
ic

e
in

c
lu

d
in

g
c
e

a
s
in

g
a

d
v
ic

e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
a

d
v
ic

e
a

n
d

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

p
e

o
p

le
o

n
H

o
u

s
in

g

W
a

it
in

g
L

is
t

o
n

th
e

ir
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
o

p
ti
o

n
s

o
th

e
r

th
a

n

fo
r

c
o

u
n

c
il

h
o

u
s
in

g
.

C
e

a
s
e

v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
o

f
H

o
u

s
in

g

R
e

g
is

te
r

fo
rm

s
u

n
ti
l
o

ff
e

r
m

a
d

e
o

n
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
.

(2
5

)
(5

0
)

(7
5

)
3

.0
B

a
rb

a
ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(1
0

1
)

(1
2

6
)

(1
5

1
)

5
.0

0
.0

H
o

u
s

in
g

&
L

o
c

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(4
5

)
(2

2
0

)
(3

5
5

)
(3

8
0

)
5

.0
0

.0

L
e

a
d

e
rs

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

L
1

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
o

p
L

e
v
e

l
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o

f
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

s
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

W
ill

re
d

u
c
e

s
e

n
io

r
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
a

p
a

c
it
y

a
t

th
e

c
e

n
tr

e
o

f

th
e

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

lim
it

th
e

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
a

b
ili

ty
to

re
s
p

o
n

d

to
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
o

r
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
T

B
C

T
B

C
B

ra
d

R
o

y
n

o
n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
0

.0
0

.0

L
e

a
d

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

0
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

0
.0

0
.0

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

-
In

c
o

m
e

L
C

H
1

G
a

lle
ry

&
M

u
s
e

u
m

V
e

n
u

e
s

R
e

lo
c
a

te
C

it
y

V
is

io
n

M
o

d
e

l
S

c
h

e
m

e

fr
o

m
N

o
rt

h
B

lo
c
k

to
p

ro
v
id

e
m

o
re

re
ta

il
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
.

U
s
e

o
f

s
p

a
c
e

to
fu

rt
h

e
r

d
e

v
e

lo
p

re
ta

il
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
a

n
d

g
e

n
e

ra
te

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
n

e
t

p
ro

fi
t.

C
it
y

m
o

d
e

l
to

b
e

fo
u

n
d

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
.

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l
lo

s
s

o
f

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
m

o
d

e
l
if

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
c
a

n
n

o
t

b
e

fo
u

n
d

w
it
h

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

s
to

ra
g

e
c
o

s
ts

.
N

o
a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

m
a

d
e

fo
r

a
n

y
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l

s
to

ra
g

e
o

r
re

m
o

v
a

l
c
o

s
ts

.

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
M

ik
e

H
a

rr
is

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
0

.0
0

.0



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
O

T
H

E
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
B

U
D

G
E

T
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

L
C

H
2

A
rt

s
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

G
ra

n
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

fu
n

d
in

g
fo

r
H

a
rb

o
u

r

L
ig

h
ts

N
e

g
o

ti
a

te
c
h

a
n

g
e

to
S

L
A

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

re
n

t
a

n
d

s
e

rv
ic

e

c
h

a
rg

e
.

P
o

s
s
ib

le
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

p
u

b
lic

it
y

a
n

d
a

ri
s
k

th
a

t

le
s
s
e

e
c
o

u
ld

te
rm

in
a

te
th

e
le

a
s
e

le
a

v
in

g
th

e
c
o

u
n

c
il

n
e

e
d

in
g

to
m

e
e

t
c
o

s
ts

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

h
a

v
in

g
th

e

b
u

ild
in

g
e

m
p

ty
w

h
ils

t
a

n
e

w
te

n
a

n
t

w
a

s
s
o

u
g

h
t.

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
M

ik
e

H
a

rr
is

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
0

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
0

.0
0

.0

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

0
(3

5
)

(3
5

)
(3

5
)

0
.0

0
.0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

R
E

S
1

C
e

n
tr

a
l
C

lie
n

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
lie

n
t

T
e

a
m

/
R

e
ta

in
e

d
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

s
a

v
in

g
s

re
s
u

lt
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

re
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
o

f

th
e

o
v
e

ra
ll

c
lie

n
t

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
,

n
o

im
p

a
c
t

(1
5

5
)

(1
5

5
)

(1
5

5
)

T
B

C
T

B
C

C
a

ro
ly

n

W
ill

ia
m

s
o

n

R
E

S
2

A
u

d
it

&
R

is
k

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

D
e

le
ti
o

n
o

f
A

u
d

it
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

p
o

s
t

V
a

c
a

n
t

p
o

s
t

-
w

ill
re

d
u

c
e

c
a

p
a

c
it
y

in
th

e
s
e

rv
ic

e
(2

3
)

(5
5

)
(5

5
)

(5
5

)
1

.0
N

e
il

P
it
m

a
n

R
E

S
3

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

p
re

m
iu

m
s

A
lr

e
a

d
y

in
p

la
c
e

to
e

n
a

b
le

s
a

v
in

g
s

to
b

e
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
(1

0
0

)
(2

0
0

)
(3

0
0

)
(3

5
0

)
N

e
il

P
it
m

a
n

R
E

S
4

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

R
a

ti
o

n
a

lis
e

s
p

e
n

d
o

n
p

ri
n

ti
n

g
,

p
u

b
lic

it
y

a
n

d
d

e
s
ig

n
a

c
ro

s
s

th
e

c
o

u
n

c
il

to
e

n
s
u

re
a

c
ti
v
it
y

is
ta

rg
e

te
d

,

p
ro

v
id

e
s

V
F

M
a

n
d

lin
k
s

to
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
/p

la
n

s
.

R
e

v
ie

w
s
p

e
n

d
,

a
n

a
ly

s
e

c
u

rr
e

n
t

a
c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d
s
e

t
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
to

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
e

s
ir

e
d

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
.

T
o

b
e

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
b

y
th

e
te

a
m

o
n

c
e

s
ta

ff
in

p
la

c
e

(6
2

)
(8

7
)

(8
7

)
B

e
n

W
h

it
e

R
E

S
5

P
ro

p
e

rt
y

a
n

d

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

C
lie

n
t

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
V

a
c
a

n
t

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
p

o
s
t

-
w

ill
re

d
u

c
e

c
a

p
a

c
it
y

in
th

e

s
e

rv
ic

e
(2

0
)

(4
0

)
(4

0
)

(4
0

)
1

.0
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
6

B
u

ild
in

g
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

fo
r

C
iv

ic

C
e

n
tr

e
C

a
r

P
a

rk

R
e

v
is

e
d

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

w
ill

n
o

t
re

q
u

ir
e

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
t

p
o

s
t

w
h

o
w

ill
b

e
re

d
e

p
lo

y
e

d
w

it
h

in
th

e
T

o
w

n
S

a
rg

e
a

n
ts

te
a

m
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

1
.0

J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

4
3

)
(5

3
2

)
(6

5
7

)
(7

0
7

)
1

.0
2

.0



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

P
a

rt
Y

e
a

r

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
O

T
H

E
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
B

U
D

G
E

T
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

In
c

o
m

e

R
E

S
7

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e

r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
C

re
d

it
C

a
rd

C
h

a
rg

e
s

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
c
re

d
it

c
a

rd
c
h

a
rg

e
s

to
re

c
o

v
e

r
c
o

s
ts

o
f

2
.5

%
o

n
a

ll
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

o
v
e

r
£

1
3

.5
0

.
W

ill
re

q
u

ir
e

s
y
s
te

m
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
.

(2
5

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

R
o

b
C

a
rr

R
E

S
8

R
e

ta
in

e
d

L
T

&
B

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

N
N

D
R

&
C

ta
x

C
o

u
rt

C
o

s
ts

In
c
re

a
s
e

c
o

u
rt

c
o

s
ts

to
£

1
1

0
(1

0
0

)
(2

0
0

)
(2

0
0

)
(2

0
0

)
P

a
u

l

M
e

d
la

n
d

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

2
5

)
(2

5
0

)
(2

5
0

)
(2

5
0

)
0

.0
0

.0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

S
e

rv
ic

e
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n

R
E

S
9

A
u

d
it

&
R

is
k

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
te

rn
a

l
s
u

p
p

o
rt

fe
e

s
R

e
v
ie

w
A

u
d

it
p

la
n

a
n

d
w

h
e

re
p

o
s
s
ib

le
u

s
e

in
h

o
u

s
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
a

n
d

e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

(2
0

)
(4

0
)

(4
0

)
(4

0
)

N
e

il

P
it
m

a
n

R
E

S
1

0
C

e
n

tr
a

l
C

lie
n

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
lie

n
t

T
e

a
m

/
R

e
ta

in
e

d
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

F
u

rt
h

e
r

ra
ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
c
lie

n
t

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
a

n
d

a

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ro
le

th
a

t
is

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
.

(5
5

)
(5

5
)

(5
5

)
T

B
C

T
B

C
C

a
ro

ly
n

W
ill

ia
m

s
o

n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

0
)

(9
5

)
(9

5
)

(9
5

)
0

.0
0

.0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
T

o
ta

l
(2

8
8

)
(8

7
7

)
(1

,0
0

2
)

(1
,0

5
2

)
1

.0
2

.0

G
ra

n
d

T
o

ta
l

(3
7

8
)

(2
,4

7
0

)
(2

,8
1

0
)

(3
,0

5
5

)
2

0
.5

3
.0



 ITEM NO:18  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

SUBJECT: REDUCTION IN SIZE OF PLOT FOR DISPOSAL AT 
HAREFIELD PRIMARY SCHOOL 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES  

AUTHOR: Name:  Richard Hards Tel: 023 8083 2823 

 E-mail: Richard.hards@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY  

There is a confidential appendix attached to this report and is not for publication by 
virtue of Category 3 (Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person including the Authority) of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules. It is not in the public interest to disclose this because 
publication of this information could influence bids received for property which may be 
to the Council’s financial detriment. 

 

SUMMARY 

An opportunity has arisen to retain the old Harefield Junior School hall for remodelling 
as additional classroom space, which will most likely be required in the 
implementation of the Primary Review Phase 2. Retention of the hall would require 
the repositioning of the school car park which would have to be relocated onto land 
currently declared surplus to educational requirements and previously approved for 
disposal by Cabinet on 17th March 2008. This report seeks approval to vary the size of 
the plot declared surplus / for disposal. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Having complied with the requirements of Paragraph 15 (General Exception) of the 
Access to Information Procedure Rules it is recommended: 

 (i) To approve a reduction in the size of the plot of land for disposal at 
Harefield Primary School previously approved by Cabinet on 17th 
March 2008; and to note the likely consequential reduction in the 
realisable capital receipt and the knock on impact to the funding of 
the Harefield Primary rebuild project. 

 (ii) To delegate to the Executive Director of Children’s Services and 
Learning in consultation with the Executive Director of Resources, 
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services and the Cabinet Member for Resources, authority to 
determine the size of the plot ultimately declared surplus to 
educational requirement at Harefield Primary School. 

 

 

 



 2

 (iii) To delegate authority to the Executive Director of Children’s Services 
and Learning, following consultation with the Solicitor to the Council, 
to do anything necessary to give effect to the proposals set out in 
this report.  Including but not limited to the entering into and varying 
of contracts; submission of planning applications; and all other 
matters ancillary to, conducive to, or calculated to facilitate the 
completion of the Harefield Primary School project. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. This report is submitted for consideration as a General Exception under 
paragraph 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the 
Council’s Constitution, notice having been given to the Chair and Vice Chair 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee and the Public.  The 
matter requires a decision because the demolition of the old Harefield Junior 
School is due to commence in August and an opportunity has arisen to retain 
the old school hall for remodelling as additional classrooms which could be 
required to satisfy some of the demand for additional primary places currently 
being assessed within the Primary Review. To delay the decision would not 
allow sufficient time for the necessary arrangements to be made to keep open 
the option to retain the hall.  

CONSULTATION 

2. The Children’s Services &Learning Capital Board have considered this 
matter. 

3. The Head Teacher of Harefield Primary School has been consulted on the 
proposals and is supportive. 

4. The main contractor on the Harefield Primary School rebuild project has been 
consulted and has given advice on how this proposal could be implemented.  

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. To demolish the old Harefield Junior School and dispose of 1.9 acres as 
previously approved. This option was rejected as it would deny the Council 
the option to retain the old school hall for remodelling as classroom 
accommodation and could result in new school accommodation having to be 
built elsewhere to cater for the increasing numbers of primary age children. 

DETAIL 

6. The new Key Stage 2 block at Harefield Primary School is due to be 
completed at the beginning of July this year and at that point the school will 
move into the new accommodation and vacate the existing junior block 
which will then be demolished. Demolition is programmed to start from 2nd 
August 2010. 

7. There is considerable pressure on primary school places in the city  and 
whilst some extra places have been provided in the city centre and 
Freemantle areas, still more places need to be provided in other parts of the 
city, if the City Council is to avoid failing in its statutory duty. It is predicted 
that the Woodlands cluster of schools, which includes Harefield Primary 
School, will have a shortfall of 27 Year R places in September 2012. 



 3

8. Harefield Primary School is currently 1.5 forms of entry (1FE), providing 45 
Year R places annually. 

9. As a result of the pressure on Primary school places it was suggested that, 
instead of demolition, the old junior block be retained and Harefield Primary 
School could then expand to 2 forms of entry (2FE) subject to due process. 
The proposal to retain the old Junior School hall would, if approved, allow the 
City Council at some time in the future to raise Harefield Primary School to 2 
forms of entry and increase the Year R places to 60 per annum, subject to 
any statutory enlargement procedures that may be required.   

10. Such an increase to 2 forms of entry would have the full support of the 
school. A 2FE school has many advantages over a 1.5 FE school; it is easier 
to manage class sizes and can benefit from economies of scale. 

11. Capita were commissioned to undertake a feasibility study to investigate the 
possibilities for retention of all or part of the existing junior building. The 
CS&L Capital Board considered the feasibility study and decided to 
recommend the retention of the school hall to remodel as classrooms since 
this preserves the Council’s options for the next stage of the Primary Review.                                               

12. In order to make the retention of the hall possible then, the school car park 
would have to be relocated onto land declared surplus to educational 
requirements by Cabinet on 17th March 2008. A further Cabinet decision is 
required to amend the previous Cabinet decision to make this possible. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

13. The cost of retaining the old school hall, which will involve a variation to the 
existing contract are estimated as follows: 

           Retention of hall                         £40,000 

           Option appraisal fees                 £29,000 

                                           Total          £69,000 

This can be funded from within the existing Harefield Primary Rebuild 
budget. 

14. It is estimated that it will cost between £675,000 and £790,000 to remodel 
the hall, if retained, as 3 classrooms and ancillary accommodation. Options 
on whether to proceed with remodelling work will be covered in the Primary 
Review Phase 2 report, due to go to cabinet in the autumn.  It can therefore 
be determined in advance of selling the land whether or not the hall is 
required for additional classrooms as part of implementing Primary Review 
Phase 2. 

15. If is subsequently decided that the hall is not required for remodelling as 
classrooms then there could be a further cost to demolish it and the new car 
park and reconstruct the car park in its original location. 



 4

 

Revenue 

16. There are no revenue implications to this report. 

17. If it is determined that Harefield Primary School will become 2FE then the 
additional school places will be funded through the Individual Schools Budget 
funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant.  

Property 

18. If this proposal is approved then further work will be required to progress the 
disposal of that land remaining surplus to educational requirements. 

Other 

19. In order to retain Harefield Junior School’s existing hall, amend the extent of 
adopted highway and reposition the car park, planning approval is required to 
vary the planning consent previously granted. The earlier application 
proposed to completely demolish the old Harefield Junior School buildings 
and construct the school car park. Pre-application advice has been given by 
Planners and such advice has been incorporated into the planning 
application. The new planning application was submitted on 23rd June 2010 
and the planning authority has a statutory 8 weeks in which to determine the 
application. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

20. The provisions of facilities for schools, including the provision of land and 
buildings, together with the maintenance and renewal of such facilities is 
made in accordance with the Education Act 1996 as amended.  

21. Any contracts or contract variations made in relation to this project will be 
subject to the provisions of the Contract procedure Rules as set out within 
the Constitution and compliance with national procurement Regulations. 

Other Legal Implications:  

22. Disposal of land that is or was school land or buildings or land that was used 
as or comprised playing field land is subject to the requirement to obtain 
consent form the Secretary of State in accordance with s.77 School 
Standards and Framework Act 1998, as amended by Schedule 4 of the 
Education & Inspections Act 2006 and to Schedule 35A of the Education Act 
1996 as inserted by Schedule 7 to the Education Act 2002. The disposal of 
land declared surplus pursuant to this report will be subject to obtaining the 
necessary consents in due course. Retention of part of the site previously 
declared surplus for further use as school facilities will not amount to a 
disposal or change of use. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

23 The proposals in this report are consistent with the Children and Young 
People’s Plan and Community Strategy in providing enhanced facilities for 
young people and the community. 

 



 5

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. Capital Receipts – Confidential and not for general publication.  

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at:  

KEY DECISION?  Yes   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Harefield 

 

  



This page is intentionally left blank



by virtue of paragraph number 3 of the Council’s Access to information Proceedure Rules

Document is Confidential



This page is intentionally left blank



 ITEM NO: 19  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND 
LEARNING 

SUBJECT: SCHOOLS’ DEFICIT BUDGETS 2010/11 

DATE OF DECISION: 5 JULY 2010 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF STANDARDS, CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND 
LEARNING 

AUTHOR: Name:  Carolyn Worthy Tel: 023 8083 4346 

 E-mail: Carolyn.worthy@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

 

SUMMARY 

The Southampton Scheme for Financing schools, made in accordance with the 
Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998, makes provision for schools setting 
deficit budgets in accordance with Department for Education rules.  As part of the 
Southampton scheme, schools can request a deficit budget for which Cabinet 
Member approval must be given.  Six schools have requested to set a deficit budget 
in 2010/11 for which Cabinet Member approval is now sought. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the deficit budgets for the following schools for 2010/11 be 
approved: 

 

Sinclair Primary and Nursery School  £15,000 

Holy Family Catholic Primary School  £11,000 

Chamberlayne College of the Arts  £65,000 

Upper Shirley High School £96,000 

St George Catholic VA College  £90,000 

Vermont School £72,000 

Total Requested  £349,000 
 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.  Approval of the recommendations will allow schools to adjust to changes in 
pupil numbers without making significant cuts in staffing or other costs and 
without detrimentally affecting standards. 

 



 2

CONSULTATION 

2.  The individual schools have been consulted and discussions have taken 
place between the head teacher, representatives of the Governing body, and 
the Head of Standards, accompanied by officers from the Finance Team. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

3.  The following alternative was considered: 

Do not allow any deficit budgets.  This would have a detrimental effect on 
school standards and would not allow some schools time to adjust to 
significant changes in pupil numbers.   

DETAIL 

4.  Whilst pupil numbers in schools in the City continue to fall, a decrease of 1% 
over the last year, the increase in the birth rate in recent years is now starting 
to be reflected in the primary sector where pupil numbers increased by 1%.  
However numbers in the secondary sector are still falling, by 3% year on year.  
This directly affects the level of funding that schools receive in their budget 
share.   As staffing reductions may not come into effect until the start of the 
new school year in September 2010, some schools are unable to set 
balanced budgets in the current financial year. 

5.  Through the Primary Review, the Local Authority has recognised that there 
are capacity issues in the primary sector and has already addressed the need 
for more places in schools within the City Centre.         

6.  Southampton City Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools (approved May 
2010), gives the responsible Cabinet Member the power to approve 
applications by schools to set a deficit budget.  There are a number of 
conditions which have to be met: 

• the deficit for any one school should not exceed £150,000; 

• the total of the deficits approved should not exceed the value of 40% 
of the aggregate of surplus schools balances; 

• a deficit should not last beyond five years; and 

• the school should have a plan for moving out of deficit. 

7.  A strategic discussion has taken place between the head teacher of each 
school requesting a deficit, a representative of the governing body and the 
Children’s Services and Learning Head of Standards.  Finance officers were 
in attendance to advise both parties.   

8.  The discussion explored the reasons for the deficit and options for dealing 
with it within the context of securing a stable establishment that provides a 
broad curriculum to meet the needs of all of its pupils. 

9.  A deficit is only recommended for approval by officers where it is clear that a 
school needs time to adjust its staffing structure without jeopardising 
standards.  The school must have a robust three year plan for repayment.  
All schools with deficit budgets receive regular monitoring visits and support 
from the Children Services and Learning Schools Finance Team. 

10.  Sinclair Primary and Nursery School  - Deficit requested £15,000 

The school has struggled to set a balanced budget for a number of years 
due to falling pupil numbers and finished the last financial year 2009/10 with 



 3

a deficit of £74,000.  Last year there were a number of staff changes and the 
school was placed in the Special Measures category by OFSTED.   The 
school is now being run under new leadership, in partnership with Holy 
Family Catholic Primary School and an Interim Executive Board is in place.  
There has already been a restructure of support staff, standards are 
improving and pupil numbers are starting to increase.  To maintain this 
progress, the school has asked to set a deficit of £15,000 in 2010/11 and will 
return to a balanced position in 2011/12. 

11.  Holy Family Catholic Primary School – Deficit requested £11,000 

The school was given approval to set a deficit budget of £65,000 in 2009/10 
but ended the financial year in an improved financial position with a deficit of 
£52,000.  The school is now requesting to set a deficit budget of £11,000 for 
2010/11.  This is less than previously forecast and reflects the efficiency 
savings that are being achieved through joint leadership with Sinclair Primary 
School.  The school will return to a balanced budget in the 2011/12 financial 
year.  

12.  Chamberlayne College for the Arts – Deficit requested £65,000 

Pupil numbers have fallen in recent years as larger year groups have moved 
through the school with the number on roll falling from 679 in January 2009 
to 626 in January 2010.  In response, the school has reduced both teaching 
and support staff significantly over the last year.  This has been achieved 
through a redundancy programme and natural wastage.  Also one member 
of the leadership team has been seconded to another school. The school 
has worked hard to improve standards and this is now starting to be reflected 
in pupil numbers with an expected increase in the Year 7 intake in 
September to 135.  The school has requested approval to set a deficit of 
£65,000 in the financial year 2010/11 and expects to be back in balance in 
2011/12.    

13.  Upper Shirley High School – Deficit requested £96,000 

Over the last two years the school has become a mixed school and has 
moved to Trust status.  Following falling pupil numbers in recent years, 
staffing levels at the school were increased in order to improve standards 
and learning.  Despite finishing 2009/10 with a surplus, the school has 
recognised that it cannot continue to support the level of staffing that it 
considers necessary to retain capacity to deliver growth and the Building 
Schools for the Future Programme.  The school has asked for approval to 
set a deficit budget of £96,000 in the financial year 2010/11 and will move 
back to a balanced position in 2012/13.  This will be achieved through a 
restructure of teaching and support staff.  

14.  St George Catholic VA College – Deficit requested £90,000 

The college ended 2009/10 in an improved financial position with an in year 
surplus of £25,000.  Having carried forward a deficit of £104,000, this means 
a final overall deficit of £79,000.  Pupil numbers have increased significantly, 
from 423 in January 2009 to 462 in 2010.  Whilst this increase in roll is now 
reflected in the budget share, this has also meant that 4 classes per year 
group have to be supported instead of 3, leading to increased teaching 
costs.  Whilst the college continues to raise academic and behavioural 



 4

standards, a deficit of £90,000 has been requested for 2010/11.   

15.  In the run up to the college being rebuilt under the BSF programme, savings 
on maintenance and IT improvements will be made where possible.  
However the deficit is forecast to remain at this level until pupil numbers 
increase to a more sustainable level.   

16.  Vermont School – Deficit requested £72,000 

At the end of 2009/10 the school had a deficit of £154,000 compared to an 
approved deficit of £60,000.  This was due to the appointment of temporary 
staff and additional casual hours worked to support the exceptional needs of 
pupils accepted into the school during the year.  To bring the school back to 
a balanced position, the governing body has reviewed the staffing structure.  
This is possible as pupil numbers will be lower in September allowing the 
school to operate with 3 rather than 4 classes.  These pupils are also not 
expected to need such a high level of support as the current intake.  
Temporary contacts will cease from the end of the summer term and council 
officers are working with the school on other staffing changes.  The school 
has reviewed other areas of spend and agreed a number of savings.   

17.  The school anticipates moving back to a balanced position in 2012/13 and 
has been told that they must present evidence that their management and 
monitoring of the budget has improved to the Head of Standards at a 
specially convened meeting in September. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

18.  None. 

Revenue 

19.  The financial implications for the individual schools are as shown in the table 
above.  The deficits overall are funded by the total level of schools’ revenue 
balances, £3.9m as at the end of 2009/10. 

Property 

20.  No immediate property implications have been identified as a result of this 
report. It is possible that deficit budgets may impact on the schools ability to 
meet the cost of repairs.  As part of contingency planning a clear policy 
needs developing, in consultation with relevant parties, to meet this 
possibility and ensure stable financial management.  

Other 

21.  None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

22.  The Scheme for Financing Schools, made in accordance with the Schools 
Standards & Frameworks Act 1998, makes provision for schools setting deficit 
budgets in accordance with Department for Education rules. 

 



 

 5

Other Legal Implications:  

23.  None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

24.  The proposals set out in the report are consistent with the strategies and 
policy objectives set out in the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP).  
The targets for improvement in school performance set out in the CYPP 
would be harder for schools to meet if they were not permitted to set deficit 
budgets, as they would have to make significant cuts to expenditure in the 
current year, which would inevitably entail the reduction of teaching staff. 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. None 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. Southampton City Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools 

Background documents available for inspection at: 2nd Floor, Southbrook Rise 

KEY DECISION Yes   

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All 

 

  



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Proposals to extend the Coxford Area Residents' Parking Scheme in Warren Crescent, Warren Avenue, Chestnut Road, Sycamore Road, Holland Place, Stokes Road and Bracken Lane. (TRO)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	4 Proposed Reversal Of One-Way System, Lyon Street (TRO)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 3a
	Appendix 3b
	Appendix 4

	6 Record of the Previous Decision Making
	Minutes 7 June 2010
	Minutes 21 June 2010

	10 Corporate Plan 2010-13
	12 Highways Service Partnership:  Approval to Award Contract
	Confidential Appendix 1
	Confidential Appendix 2

	13 Response to the Scrutiny Inquiry into District Centres
	Appendix

	14 Response to the Scrutiny Inquiry into Domestic Violence
	15 Woolston and St Anne's Conservation Areas Appraisal
	16 Sustainable Procurement Policy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	17 Changes to existing Revenue and Capital Budgets
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4&5

	18 Reduction in size of plot for disposal at Harefield Primary School
	Confidential Appendix

	19 Schools' Deficit Budgets 2010/11

